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AGENDA

REGULAR JOINT MEETINGS

* * *

CLAYTON CITY COUNCIL

and

CLAYTON FINANCING AUTHORITY

* * *

TUESDAY, November 3, 2015

7:00 P.M.

Hoyer Hall, Clayton Community Library
6125 Clayton Road, Clayton, CA 94517

Mayor: David T. Shuey
Vice Mayor: Howard Geller

Council Members
Jim Diaz
Keith Haydon
Julie K. Pierce

A complete packet of information containing staff reports and exhibits related to each public item
is available for public review in City Hall located at 6000 Heritage Trail and on the City’'s Website
at least 72 hours prior to the Council meeting.

Agendas are posted at: 1) City Hall, 6000 Heritage Trail; 2) Library, 6125 Clayton Road; 3) Ohm’s
Bulletin Board, 1028 Diablo Street, Clayton; and 4) City Website at www.ci.clayton.ca.us

Any writings or documents provided to a majority of the City Council after distribution of the
Agenda Packet and regarding any public item on this Agenda will be made available for public
inspection in the City Clerk’s office located at 6000 Heritage Trail during normal business hours.

If you have a physical impairment that requires special accommodations to participate, please call
the City Clerk’s office at least 72 hours in advance of the meeting at (925) 673-7304.


http://www.ci.clayton.ca.us/
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*CITY COUNCIL *

November 3, 2015

CALL TO ORDER THE CITY COUNCIL — Mayor Shuey.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE — led by Mayor Shuey.

CONSENT CALENDAR

Consent Calendar items are typically routine in nature and are considered for approval by the
City Council with one single motion. Members of the Council, Audience, or Staff wishing an
item removed from the Consent Calendar for purpose of public comment, question or input
may request so through the Mayor.

Information Only — No Action requested.
1. Contra Costa County Library System scheduled closures of County-operated

local libraries in calendar year 2016.

Approve the minutes of the regular meeting of October 20, 2015.|(View Here)

Approve Financial Demands and Obligations of the City | (View Here)

Approve the City’s Investment Portfolio Report for the 1% Quarter of FY 2015-16

ending September 30, 2015.|(View Here)

RECOGNITIONS AND PRESENTATIONS

Administration of the Oath of Office by the City Clerk to the City’s new
Chief of Police, Chris Wenzel.

Certificates of Recognition to public school students for exemplifying the “Do The
Rii ht Thini” character trait of “Respect” for the month of October 2015.

Proclamation declaring November 4™, 2015 as “Shelter In Place Education Day”.

REPORTS

Planning Commission — No meeting held.

Trails and Landscaping Committee — No meeting held.

City Manager/Staff

City Council - Reports from Council liaisons to Regional Committees,
Commissions and Boards.

Other
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(@)

10.

11.

PUBLIC COMMENT ON NON - AGENDA ITEMS

Members of the public may address the City Council on items within the Council’s jurisdiction,
(which are not on the agenda) at this time. To facilitate the recordation of comments, it is
requested each speaker complete a speaker card available on the Lobby table and submit it
in advance to the City Clerk. To assure an orderly meeting and an equal opportunity for
everyone, each speaker is limited to 3 minutes, enforced at the Mayor’s discretion. When
one’s name is called or you are recognized by the Mayor as wishing to speak, the speaker
shall approach the public podium and adhere to the time limit. In accordance with State Law,
no action may take place on any item not appearing on the posted agenda. The Council may
respond to statements made or questions asked, or may at its discretion request Staff to
report back at a future meeting concerning the matter.

Public comment and input on Public Hearing, Action Items and other Agenda Items will be
allowed when each item is considered by the City Council.

PUBLIC HEARINGS - None.

ACTION ITEMS

Presentation and approval of the City’s Audited Financial Statement for Fiscal
Year 2014-2015 prepared by Cropper Accountancy Corporation, independent
Certified Public Accountant firm. |(View Here)

ropper,

(Finance Manager; and Mr. John PA)

Staff recommendation: Following presentation of the independent Auditor’s
Report, that Council receive public comments and then by motion approve and
accept the FY 2014-15 Audited Financial Statement of the City of Clayton.

COUNCIL ITEMS - limited to requests and directives for future meetings.

RECESS THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING — Mayor Shuey
(until after the conclusion of the Clayton Financing Authority Board meeting)

RECONVENE THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING — Mayor Shuey
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12. CLOSED SESSIONS

(@ Government Code Section 54957
Public Employee Annual Performance Evaluation
Position Title: City Manager

(b) Government Code Section 54957.6, Conference with Labor Negotiators
Agency designated representatives: Mayor Shuey, Vice Mayor Geller
Unrepresented employee: City Manager

Report out from Closed Session: Mayor Shuey.

13. ADJOURNMENT- the next regularly scheduled City Council meeting is November 17, 2015.

HHHHRH
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* CLAYTON FINANCING AUTHORITY *
November 3, 2015

1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL — President Shuey.

2. CLOSED SESSION — None.

3. CONSENT CALENDAR
Consent Calendar items are typically routine in nature and are considered for approval by the
Financing Authority Board with one single motion. Members of the Financing Authority,
Audience, or Staff wishing an item removed from the Consent Calendar for purpose of public
comment or input may request so through the President.

(@)  Approve the minutes of the regular meeting of January 20, 2015. [(View Here)

(b) Approve the Clayton Financing Authority’s Audited Financial Statement for Fiscal

Year 2014-2015.

4. PUBLIC COMMENTS ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS

Members of the public may address the Board on items within the Board'’s jurisdiction, (which
are not on the agenda) at this time. To facilitate the recordation of comments, it is requested
each speaker complete a speaker card available on the Lobby table and submit it in advance
to the Secretary. To assure an orderly meeting and an equal opportunity for everyone, each
speaker is limited to 3 minutes, enforced at the President’s discretion. When one’s name is
called or you are recognized by the President as wishing to speak, the speaker shall
approach the public podium and adhere to the time limit. In accordance with State Law, no
action may take place on any item not appearing on the posted agenda. The Board may
respond to statements made or questions asked, or may at its discretion request Staff to
report back at a future meeting concerning the matter.

Public comment and input on Public Hearing, Action Items and other Agenda Items will be
allowed as each item is considered.

5. ACTION ITEMS - None.

6. BOARD ITEMS - limited to requests and directives for future meetings.

7. ADJOURNMENT - the Clayton Financing Authority’s next meeting will be scheduled when
necessary.

RHHHHH
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County Library

1750 Oak Park Boulevard

Pleasant Hill, California 94523-4497
(925) 646-6423

FAX (925) 646-6461

10/20/2015

Gary Napper

City Manager, City of Clayton
6000 Heritage Trail

Clayton, CA 94517

Hello Mr. Napper,

Contra AgendaDate: wwwsﬁﬁﬁ;ﬁ'ﬁ""
Costa
County

D5

Agenda ltem: Ho-

Recsived
0CT 22 2015

City of Clayion

The County recently released its list of holidays occurring in 2016. As the County Library system, we follow these holiday
closures but also review our service hours and needs to add in additional closures as needed. For example, in the coming
year Christmas falls on Sunday December 25%. The County will be observing that holiday on Monday December 26t but

the Library will also be closed on that Sunday December 25,

Please see the attached list for a full schedule of closures that the Library will observe in the coming 2016 calendar year.

Feel free to contact me if you have any questions.

Thank you,

County Librarian

JHudson@ccclib.org

(925) 646-6423



Contra Costa County Library

Closures for January 1, 2016 through January 2, 2017

Friday, January 1, 2016
Monday, January 18, 2016
Monday, February 15, 2016
Sunday, March 27, 2016
Sunday, May 8, 2016

Sunday, May 29, 2016
Monday, May 30, 2016
Sunday, July 3, 2016
Monday, July 4, 2016
Sunday, September 4, 2016
Monday, September 5, 2016
Wednesday, October 12, 2016
Friday, November 11, 2016
Wednesday, November 23, 2016
Thursday, November 24, 2016
Friday, December 23, 2016
Saturday, December 24, 2016
Sunday, December 25, 2016
Monday, December 26, 2016
Saturday, December 31, 2016
Sunday, January 1, 2017

Monday, January 2, 2017

New Year’s Day

Dr. Martin Luther King Jr. Day
President’s Day

Easter

Mother’s Day

Memorial Day
Independence Day

Independence Day

Labor Day

All Staff Day Training
Veteran’s Day

(day before Thanksgiving)
Thanksgiving Day
Christmas Eve (observed)
Christmas Eve

Christmas Day

Christmas Day (observed)
New Years Eve

New Years Day

New Years Day (observed)

All libraries closed (holiday)
All libraries closed (holiday)
All libraries closed (holiday)
All libraries closed

All libraries closed

All libraries closed

All libraries closed (holiday)
All libraries closed

All libraries closed (holiday)
All libraries closed

All libraries closed (holiday)
All libraries closed

All libraries closed (holiday)
All libraries close by 6:00 p.m.
All libraries closed (holiday)
All libraries closed (holiday)
All libraries closed

All libraries closed

All libraries closed (holiday)
All libraries close by 5:00 p.m.
All libraries closed

All libraries closed (holiday)



MINUTES Agenda Date: 1)- 03- 200

OF THE
REGULAR MEETING Agenda ltem: Db

CLAYTON CITY COUNCIL
TUESDAY, October 20, 2015

1. CALL TO ORDER & ROLL CALL - The meeting was called to order at 7:00
p.m. by Vice Mayor Geller in Hoyer Hall, Clayton Community Library, 6125
Clayton Road, Clayton, CA. Councilmembers present: Vice Mayor Geller and
Councilmembers Diaz, Haydon and Pierce. Councilmembers absent: Mayor
Shuey. Staff present: City Manager Gary Napper, City Attorney Mala
Subramanian, and City Clerk/HR Manager Janet Brown.

2, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - led by Vice Mayor Geller.

3. CONSENT CALENDAR

It was moved by Councilmember Haydon, seconded by Councilmember
Pierce, to approve the Consent Calendar as submitted. (Passed; 4-0 vote).

(@)  Approved the minutes of the regular meeting of October 6, 2015.
(b)  Approved Financial Demands and Obligations of the City.

(c) Adopted Resolution No. 41-2015 establishing and approving a new Job
Classification title and position of Police Administrative Clerk for the City of
Clayton, and setting its associated salary range, employment benefits and
representation unit.

(d)  Approved the proposed schedule for the ten (10) Saturday “Concerts in The
Grove” series in The Grove Park in 2016.

4, RECOGNITIONS AND PRESENTATIONS

(@)  Recognition of Wendy Roden, former Police Office Coordinator, for her 5+ years -
of valued service with the Clayton Police Department.

Vice Mayor Geller presented Ms. Roden with a plaque of appreciation for her
dedicated service as Police Office Coordinator with the City of Clayton from
February 2010 to October 2015. He wished her luck in her new position with the
City of Pittsburg.

Councilmember Pierce aiso thanked Wendy for her service to the Clayton
Community and advised that she will be missed.
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(a)
(b)
(c)

(d)

(e)

REPORTS

Planning Commission — No meeting held.
Trails and Landscaping Committee — No meeting held.

City Manager/Staff

City Manager Napper advised advertising has begun for the Police Administrative
Clerk position; applications are currently being accepted until November 6, 2015
at 5:00 p.m. He noted this is an entry level position for the City, which is a rare
employment opportunity. Those interested should visit the City's website for an
employment brochure and City application.

Mr. Napper also announced the City’s new Chief of Police is Chris Wenzel. Mr.
Wenzel will start on November 2" he has extensive experience within the
Contra Costa County Sheriff's Office and held the Chief of Police position with
the Town of Danville for over 7 years.

City Council - Reports from Council liaisons to Regional Committees,
Commissions and Boards.

Councilmember Diaz attended the Contra Costa County Mayors’ Conference
hosted by the City of Walnut Creek and he also attended a Celebration of Life
memorial service in honor of Joan Culver.

Councilmember Haydon also attended the celebration of life in honor of Joan
Culver, a Clayton Community Library Foundation Used Book Sale, and a guided
tour of the Clayton Ranch development site outside the City. He advised the
Contra Costa County Habitat Conservancy meeting that was to be held in the
City of Clayton next week has been rescheduled to December 14th, 2015.

Councilmember Pierce attended meetings of Associated Bay Area Governments,
Central County TRANSPAC, Real Estate Round Table regarding growth, Contra
Costa Transportation Authority, Contra Costa County Mayors’ Conference,
Metropolitan Transportation Commission, signed the bond issuance on behalf of
the Contra Costa Transportation Authority, Stakeholder Transportation Authority,
Save Mount Diablo Clayton Ranch hike. She noted she will be meeting with
Community Development Director Mindy Gentry regarding some advance
planning information. Councilmember Pierce offered condolences to the Shinn
Family due to the sudden loss of former Concord Council Member Bill Shinn to
Parkinson’s disease.

Vice Mayor Geller attended the Contra Costa County Mayors’ Conference hosted
by the City of Walnut Creek, the Clayton Community Library Foundation Used
Book Sale, and a Celebration of Life memorial service in honor of Joan Culver.

Councilmember Haydon advised that Counciimember Julie Pierce was recently
elected to serve a second consecutive term as President of the Association of
Bay Area Governments (ABAG), a rare regional leadership occurrence.

Other — None.

Minutes
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(a)

PUBLIC COMMENT ON NON - AGENDA ITEMS — None.

PUBLIC HEARINGS - None.

ACTION ITEMS

City Council discussion to determine the preferred date of its annual joint special
meeting with the Board of Trustees of the Mt. Diablo Unified School District from
among the offered Monday dates, and preliminary identification of potential City-
initiated topics.

City Manager Napper advised this item is a discussion amongst City Council
members to determine which dates the City Council would be available to host a
joint meeting with the Mount Diablo Unified School District Board. A telephone
call was placed to the MDUSD Superintendent's office today to confirm all
suggested dates were still available as indicated in its letter of October 5, 2015.
Prior to this evening’s meeting, contact was made with Mayor Shuey who prefers
a joint meeting date in late January or early February 2016.

Vice Mayor Geller opened the matter to receive public comments; no public
comments were offered.

Councilmember Haydon suggested meeting on Monday, February 29" and
would like to discuss the joint trail enhancements recently made at Mt. Diablo
Elementary School with monitoring reports on the success of the
playground/hillside storm drainage repairs.

Councilmember Pierce advised she is not available to meet on February 1%t and
also suggested Monday, February 29",

Councilmember Diaz advised he is available to meet on any of the dates
provided by the Mount Diablo Unified School District.

Mr. Napper advised a motion is not required on this item at this time as it will be
brought back to City Council closer to the agreed upon date to determine agenda
topics of mutual discussion and to formally call the joint special meeting.

Vice Mayor Geller would also like to monitor the recent drainage improvements
at Mt. Diablo Elementary and the bordering trail system as a discussion topic.

Councilmember Pierce indicated she wishes to discuss a neighborhood mutual
respect item to receive advance notifications from Mt. Diablo Elementary School
of noise-generating events occurring on the school property outside of regular
school hours; a recent example was an Outdoor Movie Night by the PFC.

Mr. Napper advised he made a follow-up contact to Principal Irene Keenan about
this issue, who then contacted the Parent Faculty Club President:; they agreed
that notification to the surrounding neighbors is a great idea for after-school
hours’ noise-generating events.

Minutes
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He also reminded the City Council that no action is necessary on this item at this
time and City staff will notify MDUSD of the preferred date of February 29, 2016

for the annual joint meeting.

No action was taken on this item.

9. COUNCIL ITEMS — None.

10. CLOSED SESSIONS — None.

11. ADJOURNMENT- on call by Vice Mayor Geller, the City Council adjourned its
meeting at 7:23 p.m.

The next regularly scheduled meeting of the City Council will be November 3, 2015.

HHEHRH#E

Respecifully submitted,

Janet Brown, City Clerk
APPROVED BY CLAYTON CITY COUNCIL

David T. Shuey, Mayor

#HH#HH#H

Minutes October 20, 2015 Page 4



Agenda Date 11/3/2015

ff( s '(;‘»‘*;/V;%
e Q‘JITY’\OF Ichz“

™~ Fasdrduu /mmsor; 196’4 -----

Agenda Item: 3 [,

A
STAFF REPORT @

HONORABLE MAYOR AND COUNCILMEMBERS

\

FROM: Kevin Mizuno, FINANCE MANAGER

DATE: 11/3/2015
SUBJECT: FINANCIAL OBLIGATIONS

RECOMMENDATION:

Approve the following Invoices for payment:

10/30/2015 Cash Requirements $ 158,154.00

10/27/2015 ADP, Week 44, PPE 10/25/2015 $ 79,131.71
Total $§ 237,285.71

Aftachments:
Cash Requirements Report dated 10/30/2015 (3 pages)

ADP Report Week 44, PPE 10/25/15 (1 page)



10/30/2015 . .9:29 FM

Invoice

City on clayton

Cash Requirements Report

City Council Meeting 11/3/15

Page 1

Invoice Potential Discount
Vendor Name Due Date Date Invoice Number Invoice Description Balance Discount Expires On Net Amount Due
Erik or Alexis Alden
Erik or Alexis Alden 11/3/2015 11/3/2015 1049 Deposit refund for site plan review permit $632.06 $0.00 $632.06
Totals for Erik or Alexis Alden: 3632.06 30.00 $632.06
American Fidelity Assurance Company
American Fidelity Assurance Company ~ 11/3/2015 11/3/2015 1183554A August FSA $526.66 $0.00 $526.66
American Fidelity Assurance Company  11/3/2015 11/3/2015 B376144 November supplemental insurance $435.38 $0.00 $435.38
Totals for American Fidelity Assurance Company: $3962.04 30.00 $962.04
B & K Roofing
B & K Roofing 11/3/2015 11/3/2015 CAPO176 Deposit refund for 132 Mt Etna Dr $2,500.00 $0.00 $2,500.00
Totals for B & K Roofing: $2,500.00 30.00 $2,500.00
Best Best & Kreiger LLP
Best Best & Kreiger LLP 11/3/2015 11/3/2015 758050 September Services $8,000.00 $0.00 $8,000.00
Best Best & Kreiger LLP 11/3/2015 11/3/2015 758051 Conference on Development & Final Map $610.50 $0.00 $610.50
Best Best & Kreiger LLP 11/3/2015 11/3/2015 758052 Labor/Employment $302.50 $0.00 $302.50
Best Best & Kreiger LLP 11/3/2015 11/3/2015 758053 Affordable Housing $82.50 $0.00 $82.50
Totals for Best Best & Kreiger LLP: $8,995.50 $0.00 38,995.50
CalPERS Health
CalPERS Health 11/3/2015 11/3/2015 1868 Medical for November 2015 $32,641.29 $0.00 $32,641.29
Totals for CalPERS Health: $32,641.29 $0.00 $32,641.29
CalPERS Retirement
CalPERS Retirement 11/3/2015 11/3/2015 PPE 10/25/15 Retirement PPE 10/25/15 $11,616.25 $0.00 $11,616.25
CalPERS Retirement 11/3/2015 11/3/2015 10/24/15 City Council ending 10/24/15 $178.32 $0.00 $178.32
Totals for CalPERS Retirement: 311,794.57 $0.00 $11,794.57
Caltronics Business Systems, Inc
Caltronics Business Systems, Inc 11/3/2015 11/3/2015 1877515 contract 9/17/15-10/16/15 $273.55 $0.00 $273.55
Totals for Caltronics Business Systems, Inc: $273.55 30.00 $273.55
Contra Costa County Animal Svcs Dept
Contra Costa County Animal Sves Dept  11/3/2015 11/3/2015 ASD M5843 Animal Control 10/1/15-12/31/15 $15,568.00 $0.00 $15,568.00
Totals for Contra Costa County Animal Svcs Dept: $15,568.00 $0.00 315,568.00
Contra Costa Tractor Mobile Svc
Contra Costa Tractor Mobile Svc 11/3/2015 11/3/2015 016865 service call $882.05 $0.00 $882.05
Totals for Contra Costa Tractor Mobile Svc: 3$882.05 30.00 $882.05
CR Fireline, Inc
CR Fireline, Inc 11/3/2015 11/3/2015 103569 annual fire sprinkler inspection $375.00 $0.00 $375.00
CR Fireline, Inc 11/3/2015 11/3/2015 103570 annual fire sprinkler inspection $375.00 $0.00 $375.00
CR Fireline, Inc 11/3/2015 11/3/2015 103568 annual fire sprinkler inspection $375.00 $0.00 $375.00



10/30/2015 4:49:29PM

Invoice

City of Clayton

Cash Requirements Report
City Council Meeting 11/3/15

Page 2

Invoice Potential Discount
Vendor Name Due Date  Date Invoice Number Invoice Description Balance Discount Expires On Net Amount Due
CR Fireline, Inc 11/3/2015 11/3/2015 103624 WO 36357 $475.00 $0.00 $475.00
Totals for CR Fireline, Inc: $1,600.00 $0.00 $1,600.00
Jason Delmar
Jason Delmar 11/3/2015 11/3/2015 302 Network diagnoses, blackbaud server analysis $450.00 $0.00 $450.00
Totals for Jason Delmar: 3450.00 $0.00 $450.00
Dig & Demo
Dig & Demo 11/3/2015 11/3/2015  CAP0173 deposit refund for 267 Mountaire Pkwy $1,856.82 $0.00 $1,856.82
Totals for Dig & Demo: $1,856.82 $0.00 $1,856.82
G.N. Henley, Inc
G.N. Henley, Inc 11/3/2015 11/3/2015 115-112 pavement repairs on Verna Way $7,500.00 $0.00 $7,500.00
Totals for G.N. Henley, Inc: $7,500.00 $0.00 $7,500.00
Geoconsultants, Inc.
Geoconsultants, Inc. 11/3/2015 11/3/2015 18768 well monitoring for October 2015 $1,546.50 $0.00 $1,546.50
Totals for Geoconsultants, Inc.: $1,546.50 $0.00 $1,546.50
Health Care Dental Trust
Health Care Dental Trust 11/3/2015 11/3/2015 199734 December Dental $2,082.36 $0.00 $2,082.36
Totals for Health Care Dental Trust: $2,082.36 30.00 $2,082.36
J&R Floor Services
J&R Floor Services 11/3/2015 11/3/2015  ten October billing $4,938.34 $0.00 $4,938.34
Totals for J&R Floor Services: $4,938.34 30.00 $4,938.34
Arlene Kikkawa-Nielsen
Arlene Kikkawa-Nielsen 11/3/2015 11/3/2015 November 2015 volunteer coordinator hours for November 201 $900.00 $0.00 $900.00
Totals for Arlene Kikkawa-Nielsen: $900.00 $0.00 $900.00
LarryLogic Productions
LarryLogic Productions 11/3/2015 11/3/2015 1536 city council meeting 10/20/15 $200.00 $0.00 $200.00
Totals for Larrylogic Productions: 3200.00 $0.00 $200.00
Marken Mechanical Services Inc
Marken Mechanical Services Inc 11/3/2015 11/3/2015  415-1146-7 maintenance for July 2015 $502.17 $0.00 $502.17
Marken Mechanical Services Inc 11/3/2015 11/3/2015 415-1152-7 controls maintenance for July 2015 $150.00 $0.00 $150.00
Totals for Marken Mechanical Services Inc: $652.17 $0.00 $652.17
MPA
MPA 11/3/2015 11/3/2015  B1503-3 Workers' Compensation Premium 15/16 $25,397.50 $0.00 $25,397.50
MPA 11/3/2015 11/3/2015 November Life/LTD November 2015 $1,303.77 $0.00 $1,303.77
Totals for MPA: $26,701.27 30.00 $26,701.27

NBS Govt. ce Group
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Invoice Potential Discount
Vendor Name Due Date  Date invoice Number Invoice Description Balance Discount Expires On Net Amount Due
NBS Govt. Finance Group 11/3/2015 11/3/2015 1015000018 Interim Arbitrage Rebate Analysis $1,200.00 $0.00 $1,200.00
Totals for NBS Govt. Finance Group: 31,200.00 $0.00 $1,200.00
Neopost Northwest
Neopost Northwest 11/3/2015 11/3/2015 N5562826 contract for 11/7/15-12/6/15 $158.20 $0.00 $158.20
Totals for Neopost Northwest: $158.20 $0.00 3158.20
Pacific Telemanagement Svc
Pacific Telemanagement Svc 11/3/2015 11/3/2015 791029 courtyard phone November 2015 $73.00 $0.00 $73.00
Totals for Pacific Telemanagement Svc: $73.00 30.00 373.00
PERMCO, Inc.
PERMCO, Inc. 11/3/2015 11/3/2015 10470 General Services 10/10/15-10/23/15 $3,816.00 $0.00 $3,816.00
PERMCO, Inc. 11/3/2015 11/3/2015 10471 SWPPP inspection checklist for corp yard $152.50 $0.00 $152.50
PERMCO, Inc. 11/3/2015 11/3/2015 10472 CAP Inspections 10/10/15-10/23/15 $166.00 $0.00 $166.00
PERMCO, Inc. 11/3/2015 11/3/2015 10473 Review Conditions of Approval $825.00 $0.00 $825.00
Totals for PERMCO, Inc.: $4,959.50 $0.00 $4,959.50
PG&E
PG&E 11/3/2015 11/3/2015 10/22/15 service 9/22/15-10/20/15 $4,234.96 $0.00 $4,234.96
PG&E 11/3/2015 11/3/2015 10/21/15 service 9/22/15-10/20/15 $10.72 $0.00 $10.72
PG&E 11/3/2015 11/3/2015 10/15/15 service 9/16/15-10/14/15 $17,419.92 $0.00 $17,419.92
Totals for PG&E: $21,665.60 30.00 $21,665.60
Simpson Investigative Svc Grp
Simpson Investigative Svc Grp 11/3/2015 11/3/2015 1800 pre-employment background, new chief $2,059.42 $0.00 $2,059.42
Totals for Simpson Investigative Svc Grp: $2,059.42 $0.00 $2,059.42
Verizon Wireless
Verizon Wireless 11/3/2015 11/3/2015 9753175393 service September 2015 $411.76 $0.00 $411.76
Totals for Verizon Wireless: $411.76 30.00 $411.76
Waraner Brothers Tree Service
Waraner Brothers Tree Service 11/3/2015 11/3/2015 12468 North Clayton Rd tree work $1,200.00 $0.00 $1,200.00
‘Waraner Brothers Tree Service 11/3/2015 11/3/2015 12465 Peacock Di/DVMS Tree Work $750.00 $0.00 $750.00
Waraner Brothers Tree Service 11/3/2015 11/3/2015 12470 Clayton Rd, Opp CVS Tree Work $1,800.00 $0.00 $1,800.00
Waraner Brothers Tree Service 11/3/2015 11/3/2015 12467 South Clayton Rd Tree Work $1,200.00 $0.00 $1,200.00
Totals for Waraner Brothers Tree Service: $4,950.00 $0.00 $4,950.00
GRAND TOTALS: $158,154.00 $0.00 $158,154.00
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0 Employees Wlth Overflow Statement Ea rn i n g 3 Siate ment

0 Overflow Statement 1 Total Statement
Tot Cks/Vchrs:00000000031 Tot Docs in all:00000000034
First No. Last No. Total
Checks: ADPCHECK ADPCHECK 00000000007
Vouchers: 00000440001 00000440024 00000000024

ZiL TOTAL DOCUMENT
CITY OF CLAYTON
LOCATION 0001

CHECK STUFFING, RECONCILIATION

79131.71. GROSS Eals b
58239.63 NET PAY (INCLUDING ALL DEPOSITS)
9675.41 FEDERAL TAX :
178.83 SOCIAL SECURITY
1096.08 MEDICARE ,
.00 MEDICARE SURTAX
.00 SUI TAX
3238.61 STATE TAX
.00 LOCAL TAX
61901.84 DEDUCTIONS
3040.94 NET CHECK

COMPANY CODE Z7L
CITY OF CLAYTON
TOTAL DOCUMENT
LOCATION 0001

NON-NEGOTIABLE - VOID - NON- NEGOTIABLE

B rHE omigmar DOCUNSENT HAS AN AFTIRIGIAE WATERN AR ONTHE 82650 B HOLD AT AN AMGLE TO VIZW WiHEN CHECKING THE 2NDoAasEmENT.
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TO: HONORABLE MAYOR AND COUNCILMEMBERS
FROM: KEVIN MIZUNO, FINANCE MANAGER
DATE: NOVEMBER 3, 2015

SUBJECT: INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO REPORT - FIRST QUARTER FY 2014-15

RECOMMENDATION
Accept the City Investment Portfolio Report for the First Quarter of Fiscal Year 2015-16

ending September 30, 2015.

BACKGROUND

Pursuant to the Investment Policy, last revised on April 21, 2015, the Finance Manager is
required to submit a quarterly investment report to the City Council. The First Quarter 2015-
16 Fiscal Year report is provided herein.

DISCUSSION

With the first quarter of the fiscal year completed, annual interest earnings for the
General Fund is at $17,830, or 46.92% of forecasted General Fund interest revenues
per the 2015-16 fiscal year adopted budget of $38,000. City-wide investment earnings
solely attributable to pooled investments (i.e. not related to cash with fiscal agents such
as bond proceeds) through the first quarter of fiscal year 2015-16 totaled $46,567.
Approximately 5.64% of the current City Investment Pool (the Pool) is invested in Local
Agency Investment Funds (LAIF), which is a decrease of 9.19% since the last quarter
ended June 30, 2015. This reduction is largely attributable to substantial work progress
being made on the 2015 Neighborhood Street Program during the quarter requiring the
budgeted use of Gas Tax and Measure J reserves. In addition, the decrease is
attributable to the annual draw on the City LAIF balance during the summer and fall
seasons to fund ongoing operations until property taxes are allocated from the County
in December.
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The LAIF quarterly apportionment rate was approximately 0.32%, which is a slight
increase (0.04%) from a rate of 0.28% in the preceding quarter. This is a slight
improvement compared to the LAIF apportionment rate of 0.24% one year ago on
September 30, 2014. Certificates of Deposit comprised approximately 84.51% of the
City investment portfolio as of the quarter ended September 30, 2015 and had a
weighted average interest rate of 1.58%. Approximately 3.38% of the pool is made up
of cash deposits and low (0.01%) interest bearing money market funds. Federal
Agency Notes, authorized by the revised April 21, 2015 investment policy, were the
highest yielding investment type making up approximately 6.48% of the portfolio with a
weighted average interest rate of 1.89%.

The market value of the total investment portfolio was approximately $12,356,860,
which is $6,638 (or 0.05%) greater than total carrying value as of September 30, 2015.
This demonstrates how the conservative nature of the City’s investment strategy
mitigates the risk of the City incurring large unrealized losses in market declines. At the
same time, given less risk being incurred, more predictable and modest investment
returns will be realized following this same strategy.

As the review of the All Other Funds Due Diligence Review (DDR) has not yet been finalized
by the Califomia Department of Finance (DOF), it is still anticipated a payment ranging
between $550,396 and $1,527,113 will need to be made to the County Auditor-Controller’s
Office in the coming months. In anticipation of this demand, management has been diligent
to diversify the City Investment Portfolio with assets immediately available in LAIF, money
market funds and cash accounts. If the total All Other Funds DDR obligation were to
substantially increase based on review by the DOF, it is possible certificates of deposit or
government agency notes would need to be sold to have sufficient cash on hand to make
said payment.

In the aggregate, liquid cash and readily available investments (i.e. LAIF and money market
mutual funds) totaled approximately $1,113,222, or 9.01% of total pooled cash &
investments as of September 30, 2015. This along with proceeds from upcoming
investment maturities is projected to be sufficient to meet debt service and operational cash
requirements until the receipt of the first property tax installment in December 2015.

FISCAL IMPACT
The acceptance of this report has no direct fiscal impact to the City of Clayton.

CONCLUSION

For the first quarter ended September 30, 2015, the City of Clayton Investment Portfolio
is being managed in accordance with the City’s investment policy, last revised on April
21, 2015. The City’s cash management program provides sufficient liquidity to meet the
next six month’s expenditures. As such, staff respectfully requests the City Council’s
acceptance of this staff report and the attached Investment Holdings Summary.
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Respectively submitted,

Kevin Mizuno, CPA /
Finance Manager

Attachments:  City of Clayton Investment Holdings Summary — First Quarter of Fiscal Year 2015-16
(July 1, 2015 — September 30, 2015)



City of Clayton

| Holdings Si y
Quarter Ending
September 30, 2015

alue +

Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF)

Financial Northeastern Companies

UBS Financial Services Inc.

6tV

Local Agency Poot LAIF na 696,101.78 0.28% 0.28% n/a nfa 696,515.71
Cash Financial Northeastern Companies 40.27 0.00% 0.00% nfa n/a 40.27
Certificate of Deposit Onewest Bank, FSB, Covina, CA 5120862 49,000.00 1.00% 0.99% 92112 9/21/16 49,185.00

Total Financial Northeastern Companles 49,040.27 49,225.27
Cash BS Bank Sa Deposit Account n/a - 0.00% 0.00% nfa n/a -
Money Market Fund RMA Government Portfolio n/a 9,209.37 0.01% 0.01% n/a nfa 9,209.37
Certificate of Deposit Bmw Bank Na Ut Us 05568PZQ3 50,000.00 2.00% 2.00% 11/12/10 11/12115 50,095.00
Certificate of Deposit Ge Money Bank Ut Us 36159SVP3 50,000.00 2.00% 2.00% 11112110 111215 50,095.00
Certificate of Deposit Republic Bank Ut Us 760310TAOD 146,000.00 2.00% 1.99% 3/30/11 1/29/16 146,788.40
Certificate of Deposit Israel Disc Bk Ny Us 465076HC4 196,000.00 2.10% 2.09% 2/9/11 2/9/16 197,219.12
Certificate of Deposit Cenlar Bank Fsb Nj Us 15131XEM5 99,000.00 2.30% 2.28% 2/28/11 2/29/16 99,698.94
Certificate of Deposit Rockland Trust Co Ma Us 773709AM2 250,000.00 2.05% 2.03% 3/28/11 3/28/16 252,040.00
Certificate of Deposit Investors Svgs Bk Nj Us 46176PAK1 99,000.00 2.20% 2.18% 5/5/11 5/5/16 100,112.76
Certificate of Deposit Ge Cap Bk Ut Us 36160X7D3 100,000.00 1.05% 1.05% 711213 712116 100,446.00
Certificate of Deposit Bank Of West Ca Us 065680EUQ 49,000.00 1.75% 1.72% 9/28/11 9/28/16 49,768.32
Certificate of Deposit Goldman Sachs Bank Ny Us 3814266E0 50,000.00 2.00% 1.97% 9/28/11 9/28/16 50,683.50
Certificate of Deposit Capital One Bank U Va Us 140420QP8 99,000.00 1.00% 1.00% 111514 1117116 99,361.35
Certificate of Deposit Firstbank P R Sant Pr 33764JQ57 198,000.00 1.00% 0.99% 12120113 12/20/16 199,087.02
Certificate of Deposit Marlin Bus Bk Ut Us 57116AGM4 50,000.00 1.00% 0.99% M3 Mz 50,332.50
Certificate of Deposit Bmw Bk Na Salt Lak Ut Us 05568PV95 198,000.00 1.75% 1.73% 411312 4113/17 200,773.98
Certificate of Deposit Comenity Cap Bk Ut Us 20033ABN5 245,000.00 1.20% 1.20% 7/5113 715117 245,605.15
Certificate of Deposit Midwest Bk It Us 59828PBT6 245,000.00 1.15% 1.14% 715/13 Mz 246,702.75
Certificate of Deposit First Bk Highland H Us 319141CGO 247,000.00 1.10% 1.10% 8/21114 8/28/17 246,644.32
Certificate of Deposit Capital One Bk Va Us 140420PP9 99,000.00 1.35% 1.36% 10/114 102117 98,818.83
Certificate of Deposit Doltar Bk Pa Us 25665QAM7 198,000.00 1.20% 1.20% 111714 1MM717 197,807.94
Certificate of Deposit Banco Santander Pr 059646RZ4 245,000.00 1.20% 1.20% 1/23/15 1/23/18 245,786.45
Certificate of Deposit First Bus Bk Wi Us 31938QK78 200,000.00 1.15% 1.16% 313115 4/2/18 198,524.00
Certificate of Deposit American Exp Cent Ut Us 02587DPT9 100,000.00 1.70% 1.71% 7/5/13 7/5/18 99,489.00
Certificate of Deposit Compass Bank Al Us 20451PAU0 150,000.00 1.55% 1.54% 7/1013 7110118 150,655.50
Certificate of Deposit Goldman Sachs Bank Ny Us 38147JHW5 100,000.00 1.75% 1.74% 71013 7/10/18 100,436.00
Certificate of Deposit Jpmorgan Chase & C De Us 48124JL97 248,000.00 1.50% 1.50% 711013 7/10/18 247,394.88
Certificate of Deposit Cit Bank Ut Us 17284CHW7 146,000.00 1.80% 1.79% N3 71718 146,562.10
Certificate of Deposit Bank Baroda New Yo Ny Us 0606245Q2 247,000.00 2.05% 2.04% 10/18/13 10/18/18 248,669.72
Certificate of Deposit Sallie Mae Bank Ut Us 795450QS7 147,000.00 2.05% 2.03% 10/23/13 10/23/18 148,192.17
Certificate of Deposit First St Bk Dequee Ak Us 336460BS8 197,000.00 1.26% 1.25% 1114114 11/14/18 196,968.48
Certificate of Deposit American Express C Ut Us 02587DWJ3 100,000.00 2.00% 1.98% 11/28/14 11/28/18 100,594.00
Certificate of Deposit Sallie Mae Bank Ut Us 795450RT4 100,000.00 2.00% 1.99% 12111113 12111118 100,680.00
Certificate of Deposit Discover Bank De Us 254672GC6 150,000.00 1.60% 1.59% 1/28/15 1/28/19 150,474.00
Certificate of Deposit Homebanc Na Fi Us 4373BAFUS 200,000.00 1.50% 1.50% 3/29/15 3/29/19 199,476.00
Certificate of Deposit Discover Bank De Us 2546712E9 100,000.00 2.00% 2.00% 71914 7/9119 100,028.00
Certificate of Deposit Synchrony Bk Ut Us 87164XBQ8 100,000.00 2.05% 2.05% mina 71119 100,022.00
Certificate of Deposit Third Fed S&L Assn Oh Us 88413QAY4 200,000.00 1.50% 1.50% 2119115 8/19119 200,484.00
Certificate of Deposit Eagle B&T Co ArUs 26942ADC4 150,000.00 1.60% 1.63% 3/6/15 9/6/19 147,570.00
Certificate of Deposit Park Natl Bk Newar Oh Us 700854AT3 240,000.00 2.15% 2.15% 91214 9112119 239,680.80
Certificate of Deposit Ge Capital Bank Ut Us 36162YF24 145,000.00 1.80% 1.80% 1/16/15 1116/20 145,332.05
Certificate of Deposit Wells Fargo Bk Na Sd Us 94986TTT4 197,000.00 1.25% 1.26% 4/30/15 4/30/20 195,443.70
Certificate of Deposit Comenity Bank De Us 981996XS5 100,000.00 2.30% 2.33% 6/30/15 711720 98,750.00
Certificate of Deposit World'S Foremost B Ne Us 9159919E5 200,000.00 2.30% 2.33% 8/6/15 8/6/20 197,524.00
Certificate of Deposit Merrick Bk Ut Us 59013JHE2 149,000.00 1.90% 1.93% 8/20/15 8/20/20 146,441.67
Government Agency FHLMC Medium Term Note, Step 3134G7EN7 200,000.00 1.50% 1.50% 7129115 7/29/20 200,656.00
Government Agency FHLMC Medium Term Note 3134G7EM9 100,000.00 2.10% 2.10% 73015 7/30/20 100,142.00

Total UBS Financlial Services Inc. 6,888,209.37

6,897,266.77

Page 1 of 2
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Morgan Stanley Money Market Fund Morgan Stanley 6,396.54
Certificate of Deposit BMW Bank of NA, SLC, UT 05568P3A3 100,000.00 0.65% 0.32% 41213 10/13/15 100,011.00
Certificate of Deposit Ally Bank, Midvale Utah 02005QV34 100,000.00 0.65% 0.64% 4/10/13 4/11/16 100,197.00
Certificate of Deposit Ally Bank, Midvale Utah 02005QX99 148,000.00 0.70% 0.69% 6/12/13 6/13/16 148,476.56
Certificate of Deposit Aquesta Bank, Cornelius, NC 03841LAJ9 97,000.00 2.10% 2.07% 6/22/11 6/22/16 98,148.48
Certificate of Deposit Medallion Bank, Salt Lake City, UT 58403BF27 200,000.00 1.00% 0.99% 8/19/13 8/19/16 200,816.00
Certificate of Deposit Goldman Sachs Bank (Sait Lake) 3814264E2 99,000.00 1.85% 1.82% 8/24/11 8/24/16 100,148.40
Certificate of Deposit Investors Savings Bank, NJ 46176PDX0 49,000.00 0.90% 0.89% 3/27115 327117 49,019.11
Certificate of Deposit CIT Sait Lake City, UT 17284CBL7 48,000.00 0.90% 0.90% 410/13 410117 47,988.00
Certificate of Deposit Citizens National, Putnam, CT 176252AQ7 400,000.00 1.20% 1.19% 7M3/13 ™nmanz 100,684.00
Certificate of Deposit Whitney Bank, MS 966594AMS 157,000.00 1.20% 1.20% 812115 8M14/17 156,989.01
Certificate of Deposit Investors Savings Bank, NJ 46176PDY8 100,000.00 1.20% 1.20% 3/26/15 3/26/18 99,412.00
Certificate of Deposit Bank of North Carolina, NC 06414QUC1 200,000.00 1.50% 1.49% 116/15 4/16/18 200,140.00
Certificate of Deposit Compass Bank, AL 20451PMD5 100,000.00 1.50% 1.50% 6/30/15 72118 99,500.00
Certificate of Deposit Mercantile Bank of Grand Rapids, MI 58740XYT1 147,000.00 1.65% 1.63% 8/14/13 8/14/18 148,290.66
Certificate of Deposit Homebank, NA 43738AFUS 200,000.00 1.50% 1.50% 3/30/15 3/29/19 199,476.00
Certificate of Deposit State Bank of India, ILL 856283YNO 198,000.00 1.65% 1.66% 5/28/15 5/28/19 195,865.56
Certificate of Deposit First Business Bank, Wi 31938QL85 50,000.00 1.50% 1.51% 6/11/15 6/11/19 49,434.00
Certificate of Deposit Barclays Bank, DE 06740KHK6 149,000.00 2.10% 2.10% 7123114 7123119 148,980.63
Certificate of Deposit American Express Bank FSB, UT 02587CAJ9 247,000.00 2.00% 1.99% 724114 7124119 247,049.40
Certificate of Deposit Comenity Bank, DE 20099A7A9 100,000.00 2.10% 2.09% 8/2714 827119 100,007.00
Certificate of Deposit Capital One Bank Glen Allen, VA 140420QF0 130,000.00 2.15% 2.14% 10/16/14 10/16/19 130,144.30
Certificate of Deposit State Bk India, NY 8562842P8 50,000.00 2.25% 2.23% 8/27/114 10/17/19 50,362.50
Certificate of Deposit The Privatebank & Trust Co., IL 74267GUU9 100,000.00 1.90% 1.89% 1/23115 1/23/20 100,128.00
Certificate of Deposit American Express Centurion Bank, UT 02587DXE3 47,000.00 1.95% 1.96% 1/30/15 1/30/20 46,683.69
Certificate of Deposit Peoples United Bank, CT 71270QML7 151,000.00 1.75% 1.75% 3/4/15 3/4/20 150,255.57
Certificate of Deposit Everbank, FL 29976DVW7 200,000.00 1.75% 1.75% 3/30/15 3/30/20 198,932.00
Certificate of Deposit HSBC Bank USA 40434ASZ3 247,000.00 1.25% 1.25% 3/30/15 3/30/20 245,280.88
Certificate of Deposit CIT Bank, UT 17284DBM3 50,000.00 2.00% 2.02% 613115 6/3/20 49,407.50
Certificate of Deposit Capital One, NA, Mclean, VA 14042E4Y3 245,000.00 2.25% 2.25% 712215 7122120 244,414.45
Government Agency FNMA 3136G2KQ9 200,000.00 1.86% 1.86% 527115 5127120 199,758.00
Government Agency FHLMC 3134G7EM9 300,000.00 2.10% 2.10% 7/30/20 7/30/20 299,982.00
Total Morgan Stanley 4,315,396.54 4,312,378.24
Bank of America (book bal ) Cash (checking account)  Bank of America 401,474.16 0.00% 0.00% n/a n/a 401,474.16

Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF)

Financial Northeastern Companies 49,040
UBS Financial Services Inc. 6,888,209
Morgan Stanley 4,315,397
Bank of America (book balance) 401,474

Total investment Portfolio 12,350,222

2015-16 Budgeted Interest - General Fund
2015-16 Actual Interest Revenue to date (7/1/15 - 9/30/15)
Percent of General Fund Budget Realized

Quarterly Weighted Average Annual Yield*
2015-16 Total Pooled Investment Income To Date (7/1/15 - 9/30/15)

696,102

*This calculation excludes the City's non-interest bearing pooled checking account with Bank of America

0.40%
55.77%
34.94%
3.25%
100.00%
$ 38,000
17,830
46.92%
1.47%
$ 46,567

696,516

49,225
6,897,267
4,312,378
401,474

12,356,860

Pa, .of2

| verify that this investment portfolio is in conformity with State laws and the
City of Clayton’s investment policy. The City's cash management program
provides sufficient liquidity to meet the next six month's expenditures.

N Mo Moy 10fies5

Kevin Mizuno, Finance Manager

h CM

‘Merle Hufford, City Treasurer
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CHRISTOPHER DENT
for
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at
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for
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at
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October 2015
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for
"Doing the Right Thing"
at
Clayton Valley Charter High School
by exemplifying great "Respect”
October 2015
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declaring
November 4™, 2015
As

Shelter in Place Education Day

WHEREAS, public and private schools and childcare centers throughout Contra

Costa County will be participating in the Shelter-in-Place Drill on November 4th:
and

WHEREAS, Contra Costa County Community Awareness Emergency Response Group
- CAER - is sponsoring the 14™ Annual Shelter-in-Place Drill and assisting schools
and childcare centers with their emergency preparedness: and

WHEREAS, emergency response agencies including fire, sheriff and health
officials all recommend Shelter-in-Place as the immediate action to take in case of
a hazardous release; and

WHEREAS, the Shelter-in-Place Drill increases public awareness about Shelter-in-
Place as a protective action and gives students and teachers practice in
implementing this important procedure; and

WHEREAS, the County Office of Education has endorsed the Shelter-in-place
Drill and encouraged all sites to participate.

NOW THEREFORE, I, David T. Shuey, Mayor, on behalf of the Clayton City
Council, do hereby proclaim November 4™, 2015 as "Shelter-in-Place Education
Day" and encourages participation in the Contra Costa CAER Group's public
education efforts. In support of the parents, teachers, students and staff that
will be participating with hundreds of other schools and childcare centers in the
Shelter-in-Place Drill.
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TO: HONORABLE MAYOR AND COUNCILMEMBERS
FROM: KEVIN MIZUNO, FINANCE MANAGER, CPA
DATE: November 3, 2015

SUBJECT: AUDIT REPORT FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2015 (FY 2014-15)

RECOMMENDATION

By motion, accept the “unmodified opinion” issued by the independent auditors on the City of
Clayton’s basic financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015.

BACKGROUND

The independent auditor, Cropper Accountancy Corporation, has issued an “unmodified
opinion” on the City of Clayton’s financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2015. This terminology means the independent auditors have issued a “clean opinion”,
whereby the City's financial statements are fairly presented in all material respects in
accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP). The source of GAAP
for State and Local governments in the United States is the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB), a private non-government organization.

The City’s financial statement reporting format includes a Management Discussion and
Analysis (MD&A) intended to serve as an introduction to the basic financial statements. A
“government-wide” statement of net position and statement of activities and changes in net
position present consolidated fund information on all the City’s assets and liabilities, with the
difference between the two reported as “net position”. The consolidated government-wide
financial statements present summaries of governmental and business type activities for the
City, or “primary government” as defined by GASB Statement No. 34 Basic Financial
Statements — and Management's Discussion and Analysis — For State and Local
Governments (GASBS 34). A balance sheet and statement of revenues, expenditures and
changes in fund balance is reported for each of the City’s major governmental funds as well
as a consolidated column for all non-major funds. On an annual basis, the City’'s major
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funds are determined based on a standard formula prescribed by GASBS 34. For fiscal
year 2014-15, the City's major funds are the General Fund, the Landscape Maintenance
District Fund, and the Capital Improvements Fund. Fiduciary funds, comprised of several
agency funds and the two Successor Agency private purpose trust funds, are not
considered part of the “primary government” and are therefore excluded from the net
position of the City as a whole in the government-wide financial statements.

DISCUSSION

General Fund

The City's adopted fiscal year 2015-16 budget projected the City’s General Fund would
report a sizable surplus by the close of fiscal year 2014-15. The audited financial
statements now reveal the actual surplus is $389,895. This positive outcome arose primarily
as a result of spikes in both normal operating and non-recurring revenue sources, offset by
an extraordinary loss arising from the completion of the AB 1484 “RDA Dissolution” Due
Diligence Reviews (DDRs). Ultimately, the surplus resulted in 7.57% increase to General
Fund balance bringing the total to $5,538,632 as of June 30, 2015. At the October 27,2015
Audit Sub-Committee meeting to review the draft audited financial statements, staff
presented a schedule of potential one-time project costs that may be addressed utilizing this
surplus (see Attachment 4). Any utilization of this surplus would be incorporated into the
current budget year (FY 2015-16) and would not be accompanied by current year revenues,
but rather use excess reserves at June 30, 2015 arising from said General Fund Surplus.
Staff requests further direction from the City Council on which project, if any, should be
pursued by the City. Any action to direct staff would take place at a future public meeting of
the City Council.

The growth in ordinary revenue sources was derived primarily from an increase in secured
property tax revenues of 8.65% ($133,133) over the prior year. The revenue spike
attributable to non-recurring special items arose from: (1) the consolidation of the Clayton
Community Gym with the General Fund following the favorable settlement to the dispute
with Mt. Diablo Unified School District over janitorial and field use billings ($88,793), and (2)
the City’s proportionate (6.9%) share of Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund (RPTTF)
monies after remitting all “unencumbered assets” of the Low-Moderate Income Housing
Fund to the County pursuant to the completed DDR ($255,592).

As noted previously, the General Fund reported an extraordinary loss totaling $200,000
pertaining to payments required to be remitted back to the Successor Agency and
Successor Housing Agency of $137,500 and $62,500 respectively. These required
payments were in accordance with the final DDRs approved by the Oversight Board on
March 13, 2015. These payments are classified as an “extraordinary loss” in accordance
with GASBS 34 as it meets the criteria of being material to the financial statements and is
both infrequent and unusual in nature. The California Department of Finance (DOF)
approved the Low-Moderate Income Housing DDR on April 24, 2015 resulting in the
General Fund remitting due payment ($62,500) to the Successor Housing Agency shortly
thereafter. As the DOF has not yet issued their final approval of the All Other Funds DDR,
the portion of the extraordinary loss attributable to All Other Funds ($137,500) has been
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expensed and reported as an accrued but unpaid liability as of June 30, 2015. The All Other
Funds liability is expected to be remitted sometime during fiscal year 2015-16 after the DOF
completes their (seemingly endless) review. Given there is at least a reasonable possibility
the DOF will demand an increase in the All Other Funds obligation following their review of
the DDR, this fact has been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

In addition to the surplus reported in actual resuilts, the General Fund budget-to-actual
schedule in the Required Supplementary Information section of the financial statements
reports operating expenditures under total appropriations by $10,352. From the revenue
perspective, revenues (excluding Transfers-In) came in higher than budgeted revenues by
$463,365.

Other Governmental Funds

In the aggregate, excluding the General Fund, the other governmental funds of the City
reported a net increase in fund balance totaling $750,530. The following is a summary of
activity for some significant governmental funds of the City:

e Gas Tax Fund (No. 201) — This fund reported a net increase in fund balance of
$209.631 to a total ending fund balance of $428,649. Consistent with the Measure J
fund, this increase in fund balance was primarily attributable to capital project costs
budgeted for fiscal year 2014-15 being largely suspended until fiscal year 2015-16,
with minor costs for project planning occurring in fiscal year 2014-15. As such, the
June 30, 2015 Gas Tax fund balance will be available to help finance the completion
of the 2015 Neighborhood Streets Program (CIP 10424) and the Collector Street
Rehab Project (CIP 10425) as well as any new projects approved by the City Council
during fiscal year 2015-16 or thereafter.

e Landscape Maintenance District (No. 210) — This fund reported a net increase in fund
balance of $476,040 to a total fund balance of $816,202 as of June 30, 2015.
Pursuant to the adopted fiscal year 2015-16 budget, $288,124 of this available fund
balance has been assigned to finance FY 2015-16 appropriations. The City Council
have already approved expenditure of some of this reserve in FY 2015-16 for trail
repaving, trail bridge replacement, and downtown planter box repair.

e The Grove Park Fund (No. 211) — This fund reported a net decrease of $41,427 in
fund balance to a total positive ending fund balance of $234,033. A decrease in fund
balance was planned for in the fiscal year 2014-15 budget, which authorized
utilization of $47,674 in reserves to help finance the repair and improvement of the
park’s water spray feature and tot lot play surface.

e Measure J Fund (No. 220) — This fund reported a net increase in fund balance of
$358,616 to a total fund balance of $457,525. This increase in fund balance was
primarily attributable to capital project costs budgeted for fiscal vear 2014-15 being
largely postponed until fiscal year 2015-16, with lesser costs for project planning
occurring in fiscal year 2014-15. As such, the June 30, 2015 Measure J fund
balance will be available to help finance the completion of the 2015 Neighborhood
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Streets Program (CIP 10424) as well as any new projects approved by the City
Council during fiscal year 2015-16 or thereafter.

Enterprise Funds

With the consolidation of the Clayton Community Gym into the General Fund in fiscal year
2014-15, Endeavor Hall is now the only “business-type” enterprise fund of the City. The
Endeavor Hall fund reported a decrease in net position of $36,472. This primarily resulted
from total depreciation expense of $36,067, comprising 54% of fiscal year 2014-15
operating expenses.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are presented on an “economic resources”
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, and unlike the
“modified accrual” fund financial statements, the government-wide statements report long-
term assets and liabilities in the Statement of Net Position. Over time, increases or
decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator or whether the financial position of
the City of Clayton is improving or weakening. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015,
excluding the impact of restating beginning net position to implement a new accounting
standard, the City-wide net position increased by $488,237 as a result of fiscal year 2014-15
activities.

In June 2012, the GASB issued Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Pensions — An Amendment of GASB Statement No. 27 (GASBS 68). GASBS 68 is
effective for financial statements for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2014, which was
fiscal year 2014-15 for the City of Clayton. This new standard revised and established new
financial repoiting requirements for governments that provide their employees with pension
benefits.

Previously under GASBS 27, as long as any CalPERS member city contributed its annual
required contribution (ARC) as published in the corresponding year's CalPERS funding
actuarial valuation, no pension liability would need to be reported. Under the new GASBS
68, all CalPERS cost sharing plan employer participants are required to recognize a pension
liability on their Government-wide “full accrual” financial statements for any unfunded portion
of the pension liability. Although past annual CalPERS funding actuarial valuations reported
unfunded liabilities chiefly arising from investment gains not meeting the actuarially assumed
return rate, these were not required to be reported in the government-wide financial
statements. As the unfunded liability for the City is not a new development attributable to
fiscal year 2014-15 activities, this is a reporting change only and does impact cash flow
directly. The issue of unfunded pension liabilities has already been acknowledged and
addressed by the City Council through the implementation of Tier Il and PEPRA plans and
by CalPERS through revisions to member agency contribution requirements which were
already incorporated in the fiscal year 2015-16 adopted budget.

In order to implement this new standard, the City was required to pay for and obtain new
actuarial valuations from CalPERS providing additional information beyond what is provided
annually by CalPERS in the funding actuarial valuation reports. Following GAAP, the
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implementation of new accounting standards required a prior period adjustment to restate
beginning net position of the Government-wide financial statements. Ultilizing the new
actuarial reports, beginning net position of the government-wide full accrual financial
statements was restated and decreased by $4,182,306 to a total net position of
$36,177,088.

FISCAL IMPACT

The acceptance of the audited financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2015 does
not have any direct fiscal impact on the City.

Respectively submitted,

T s Myir-.

Kevin Mizuno, CPA
Finance Manager

Attachments:

Attachment 1 - Basic Financial Statements and Independent Auditors’ Report

Attachment 2 - Auditors’ Required Communication of to Those Charged with
Governance Near the End of an Audit (Standard AU-C 260)

Attachment 3 - Auditors’ Communication of Intemal Control Related Matters Identified
During the Audit (Standard AU-C 265)

Attachment 4 - Summary of Potential Uses for FY 2014-15 General Fund Surplus

Presented at 10/27/2015 Audit Committee Meeting
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CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the City Council
City of Clayton, California

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Clayton , as of and for the
year ended June 30, 2015, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City
of Clayton’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The City of Clayton’s management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of
the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the City of Clayton, as of June 30, 2015, and the respective changes in financial

position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters

Required Supplemeniary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the following be presented
to supplement the basic financial statements: Management Discussion and Analysis on pages 3 — 10, the
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Budgetary Comparison information on pages 82 — 84 and 92-100, the Employees’ Retirement System Schedule of
the City’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability and the Employees’ Retirement System Schedule of
the City’s Contributions on pages 77 — 78, and the Other Postemployment Benefit (OPEB) Schedule of Funding
progress on page 79. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for
placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have
applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about
the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the
basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the
limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise City of Clayton’s basic financial statements. The combining and fund financial statements on pages 88 —
91 and 101 — 107 are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic
financial statements.

The combining and individual non-major fund financial statements the responsibility of management and were
derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the
basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining and individual non-major fund
financial statements are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a

whole.
Implementation of New Accounting Standards

As disclosed in Note 1 to the financial statements, the City of Clayton implemented GASB Statement No. 68,
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions — an Amendment of GASB Statement No. 27, and GASB
Statement No. 71, Pension Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date — and
amendment of GASB Statement No. 68, during the fiscal year.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 29, 2015 on
our consideration of City of Clayton’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of
that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering City of Clayton’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

(hapn Moy (ot

R ACCOUNTANCY 'CORPORATION
Wainui Creek, California
October 29, 2015



City of Clayton
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015

Management of the City of Clayton (the "City") provides this Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
the City's Basic Financial Statements for readers of the City's financial statements. This narrative
overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City is for its fiscal year ended June 30, 2015.
We encourage readers to consider this information in conjunction with the additional information that is
furnished with the City's financial statements, which follow.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS - PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

Government -Wide Highlishis

Net Position - The assets of the City of Clayton exceeded its liabilities at the close of the year ended
June 30, 2015 by $36,665,325. Of this amount, $4,736,936 was reported as "unrestricted net position"
and may be used to meet the ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

Changes in Net Position - The City's total net position increased by $488,237 in fiscal year 2015. Net
position of governmental activities increased by $519,838, while net position of business-type activities
decreased by $31,601.

Major Fund Highlights

Governmental Funds —As of the year ended June 30, 2015, the City's governmental funds reported a
combined ending fund balance of $10,869,410. Of this amount $4,506,705 represents "unassigned fund
balances" available for appropriation.

General Fund - The unassigned fund balance of the general fund on June 30, 2015 was $4,509,255,
while the non-spendable fund balance was $1,029,377.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City of Clayton's basic
financial statements. The City of Clayton's basic financial statements comprise three components: 1)
government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements and 3) notes to the financial
statements. This report also contains required supplementary information and supplemental information
in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.

Government-wide Financial Statements

The government -wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the
City of Clayton's finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

The statement of net position presents information on all of the City of Clayton's assets and liabilities,
with the difference between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net
position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City of Clayton is
improving or deteriorating.
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The statement of activities presents information showing how the City's net position changed during the
most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving
rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses
are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods
(e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave).

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City of Clayton that are
principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other
functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and
charges (business-type activities). The governmental activities of the City of Clayton include general
government, public safety, public works, parks and library. The business-type activities of the City of
Clayton include the Community Gym and Endeavor Hall.

Fund Financial Statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been
segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City of Clayton, like other state and local
governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements. All of the funds of the City of Clayton can be divided into three categories: governmental
funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

Governmental Funds

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental
activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial
statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of
spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal
year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a government's near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By
doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government's near-term financing
decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison
between governmental funds and governmental activities.

The City of Clayton maintains fourteen individual governmental funds. Information is presented
separately in the government funds balance sheet and in the governmental funds statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the General Fund, Clayton Landscape Maintenance
Fund, and Capital Improvements Fund, all of which are considered to be major funds.
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Proprietary Funds

The City of Clayton maintains two different types of proprietary funds. Enterprise funds are used to
report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial
statements. The City of Clayton uses enterprise funds to account for its Community Gym and Endeavor
Hall activities. Internal service funds are an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs
internally among the City of Clayton various functions. City of Clayton uses internal service funds to
account for its capital equipment replacement program and its self -insurance liabilities. Because both
of these services predominantly benefit governmental rather that business-type functions, they have been
included within governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. Proprietary funds
provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements, only in more detail.
Both of these enterprise funds are considered to be major funds. The internal service funds are
combined into a single, aggregated presentation in the proprietary fund financial statements.

Fiduciary Funds

Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the government.
Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statement because the resources of
those funds are not available to support the City of Clayton's own programs. The accounting used for
fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprietary funds.

Notes to the Financial Statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in
the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements can be found
on pages 34 — 74 of this report.

Other Information

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain
required supplementary information concerning the City of Clayton's progress in funding its obligation
to provide pension and other post-employment benefits to its employees and budgetary information for
the General Fund and each of the Major Funds.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENTS
Analysis of Net Position

As noted previously, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's financial
position. In the case of the City of Clayton, assets exceeded liabilities by $36,665,325 at June 30, 2015.
This is an increase of $488,237 or approximately 1.4% from the prior fiscal year’s ending net position as
restated as of June 30, 2014. Net position as of June 30, 2014 was restated for the implementation of
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 68 — Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Pensions — An Amendment of GASB Statement No. 27. The implementation of this new
accounting standard in the current fiscal year required the City of Clayton to report a net pension
liability of $4,507,319 and deferred outflows of $325,013 as of June 30, 2014. This required a
restatement to decrease Governmental Activities net position by $4,182,306 as of June 30, 2014. The
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new disclosures pertaining to this new accounting standard are found in Note 10 to the financial
statements.

The largest portion of the City of Clayton's net position reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g.,
land, buildings, machinery, and equipment), less any related debt used to acquire those assets that are
still outstanding. The City of Clayton uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens;
consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the City of Clayton's
investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources
needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves
cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

The following is condensed comparative Statements of Net Position for the fiscal years ended June 30,
2015 and 2014:

Business- Business-
Governmental Governmental Type Type

Activities Activities Activities Activities Total Total

2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
Current Assets $ 11,107,974 $ 9,514,916 $ (35,749) $ 45,573 $ 11,072,225 $ 9,560,489
Non-Current Assets 992,829 996,820 - - 992,829 996,820
Capital Assets 28,653,515 29,344,437 1,250,681 1,286,748 29,904,196 30,631,185
Total Assets 40,754,318 39,856,173 1,214,932 1,332,321 41,969,250 41,188,494
Deferred Outflows 471,130 325,013 - - 471,130 325,013
Current Liabilities 566,720 403,080 8,823 94,611 575,543 497,691
Long-term Liabilities 3,870,017 4,661,278 - - 3,870,017 4,661,278
Total Liabilities 4,436,737 5,064,358 8,823 94,611 4,445,560 5,158,969
Deferred Inflows 1,329,495 177,450 - - 1,329,495 177.450

Net investment

in capital assets 28,653,515 29,344,437 1,250,681 1,286,748 29,904,196 30,631,185
Restricted 2,024,193 3,470,831 - - 2,024,193 3,470,831
Unrestricted 4,781,508 2,124,110 (44,572) (49,038) 4,736,936 2,075,072

Total Net Position $§ 35459216 $ 34939378 $ 1,206,109 $ 1,237,710 $ 36,665,325 $ 36,177,088

Of the City of Clayton's total net position, $2,024,193 (5.5%), represents resources that are subject to
external restrictions on how they may be used. The balance of the unrestricted net position of
$4,736,936 may be used to meet the City's ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

City revenues for the year, including both governmental and business-type activities, were $6,672,726,
while expenses totaled $6,077,978, resulting in a net increase in net position of $594,748 excluding
extraordinary and special items. This net increase was primarily attributable to the General Fund
operating surplus and well as the planned deferral of significant capital project expenditures in specified
special revenue funds (Measure J, Gas Tax, and Landscape Maintenance District) to the following fiscal
year ending June 30, 2016. Further analysis is provided within the governmental and business-type
activity sections on the next page.
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Following is a recap of the City of Clayton’s Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Position for the

fiscal years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014:

Business Business
Governmental ~ Governmental Type Type
Activities Activities Activities Activities Total Total
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
Revenues:
Program revenues:
Charges for services 863,048 795,415 25,818 19,545 888,806 814,960
Operating and capital grants and
contributions 157,397 683,492 - - 157,397 683,492
Total program revenues 1,020,445 1,478,907 25,818 19,545 1,046,263 1,498,452
General revenues:
Property taxes 2,302,278 1,862,734 - - 2,302,278 1,862,734
Sales taxes 397,544 370,330 - - 397,544 370,330
Special taxes and assessments 1,407,850 1,260,823 - - 1,407,850 1,260,823
Other taxes 1,339,537 865,752 - - 1,339,537 865,752
Investment income 82,909 64,319 175 393 83,084 64,712
Maiscellaneous 91,230 175,082 4,316 - 95,546 175,082
Gain (loss) on sale of assets 624 - - - 624 -
Total general revenues 5,621,972 4,599,040 4,491 393 5,626,463 4,599,433
Total revenues 6,642,417 6,077,947 30,309 19,938 6,672,726 6,097,885
Expenses
General government 1,119,567 1,249,238 - - 1,119,567 1,249,238
Public works 2,139,918 2,118,015 - - 2,139,918 2,118,015
Parks and recreation services 339,894 352,498 - - 339,894 352,498
Community and economic development 405,941 410,413 - - 405,941 410,413
Public safety 2,006,052 2,016,145 - . 2,006,052 2,016,145
Community gym = - - - -
Endeavor hall - - 66,606 65,351 66,606 65,351
Total expenses 6,011,372 6,146,309 66,606 65,351 6,077,978 6,211,660
Increase (decrease) in Net Position
before transfers, special and 631,045 (68,362) (36,297) (45,413) 594,748 (113,775)
extraordinary items
Transfers in/(out) 88,793 (688,709) (88,793) - - (688,709)
Special items - - 93,489 - 93,489 -
Extraordinary items (200,000) - - - (200,000) -
Change in Net Position 519,838 (757,071) (31,601) (45,413) 488,237 (802,484)
Net Position - Beginning 34,939,378 39,969,445 1,237,710 1,192,433 36,177,088 41,161,878
Prior period adjustment (FY 2014) - (90,690) - 90,690 - -
Prior period adjustment (FY 2015) - (4,182,306) - - - (4,182,306)
Net Position - beg. of year, as restated 34,939,378 35,696,449 1,237,710 1,283,123 36,177,088 36,979,572
Net Position - Ending 35,459,216 34,939,378 1,206,109 1,237,710 36,665,325 36,177,0§8
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Analysis of Governmental Activities

Total governmental expenses were $6,011,372 in the current year compared to $6,146,309 in the prior
year. In order by relative size, expenses were incurred for the following functions for the fiscal year
ending June 30, 2015: public works (35.6%), public safety (33.4%), general government (18.6%),
community and economic development (6.8%), and parks and recreation services (5.7%).

Total program revenues from governmental activities were $1,020,445 in the current year. Per GASB
34, program revenues are derived directly from the program itself or from parties outside the reporting
government's taxpayers or citizenry. They reduce the net cost of the function to be financed from
government's general revenues. Of the governmental program revenues 84.6% were derived from
Charges for Services, which includes park use fees, rental fees, licenses and permits, plan checking fees,
police service fees, planning services fees, and other revenues. The remaining 15.4% of the
governmental program revenues came from grant funding. General revenues are all other revenues not
categorized as program revenues such as property taxes, sales taxes, motor vehicle fees, investment
earnings, special taxes and assessments, fines, franchise fees, use of money and property, service
charges, and other revenues.

Total general revenues from governmental activities were $5,621,972 in the current year, of which
$2,302,278 or 41% is pertained to general property taxes. Property tax revenues increased by $439,544
or 23.6%. This large increase pertained chiefly to the City’s proportional share of Real Property Tax
Trust Fund (RPTTF) monies arising from the distribution of unencumbered Low-Moderate Income
Housing funds to Contra Costa County pursuant to AB 1484 redevelopment agency dissolution law.
The remaining increase largely pertained to growth in assessed values of properties within the City
resulting from a steadily strengthening economy as well as the County Assessor’s Office continuing to
restore temporary real property devaluations arising from Proposition 8 (1978) back to their Proposition
13 (1978) ceiling levels.

Analysis of Business-Type Activities

Total business-type expenses were $66,606 in the current year compared to $65,351 in the prior year.
Total charges for services were $25,818 in the current year compared to $19,545 in the prior year, which
is a 32% increase. Although revenues came in noticeably higher than in the prior year, net position of
business-type activities still declined by $31,601 to a total of $1,206,109 at June 30, 2015 primarily due
to charges for services not being sufficient to cover annual depreciation expense of the underlying rental
facilities.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF INDIVIDUAL FUND STATEMENTS
Analysis of Governmental Funds

The focus of the City of Clayton's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows,
outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City of
Clayton's financing requirements. In particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure
of a government's net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Clayton's governmental funds reported combined
ending fund balances of $10,869,410. Of this amount, in order or relative significance, $4,506,705
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(41.5%) is unassigned, $3,309,135 (30.4%) is assigned for specific purposes, $1,303,081 (12.0%) is
restricted by law, regulation, or other outside contractual agreements, $1,029,377 (9.5%) is in non-
spendable form, and $721,112 (6.6%) is committed for specific expenditures in the future.

The City of Clayton's General Fund reported an increase in fund balance of $389,895 in the current
fiscal year. This increase in fund balance is largely attributable to expenditures coming in under budget,
significant revenue sources such as property and sales taxes coming in over budget, as well as non-
recurring spikes arising from the conclusion of the Low-Moderate Income Housing Fund AB 1484 Due
Diligence Review and the consolidation of the City’s Community Gym enterprise function into the
General Fund.

Analysis of Proprietary Funds

The City of Clayton's proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the government-
wide financial statements, but in more detail.

Total net position of the Major Enterprise Funds at the end of the year was $1,206,109, and those for the
Internal Service Fund amounted to $476,787. A resolution to the dispute with Mt. Diablo Unified
School District on the use of the Clayton Community Gym facility resulted in the closure of the
corresponding enterprise fund and consolidation of all activities into the General Fund during the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2015.

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

General Fund actual revenues and transfers in exceeded total budgeted revenues by $552,157 (14.2%).
This significant favorable variance was largely attributable to a spike in non-recurring revenues
including: (1) payment from the County of the City’s 6.9% share of the Low-Moderate Income Funds
Due Diligence Review residual balance, the resolution to the dispute with Mt. Diablo Unified School
District on the use of Clayton Community Gym facility resulting in the closure of the City’s former
Community Gym Enterprise Fund and consolidation into the General Fund, (3) an increase in the
General Fund’s share of Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund (RPTTF) revenues in January 2015
resulting from the DOF’s disallowance of 100% of items requested by the Successor Agency in the
ROPS 2014-15B, and (4) payments from the State for old claims on reimbursable state-mandated
activities under California Senate Bill 90 (SB 90). The final fiscal year 2014-15 General Fund budget for
expenditures totaled $3,852,275. Actual General Fund operating expenditures of $3,841,843 were under
the final legally adopted budget by $10,452 (0.2%).

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION
Capital Assets

The City of Clayton's investment in capital assets for its governmental and business type activities as of
June 30, 2015, amounted to $29,904,196 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital
assets includes land, building, improvements, machinery and equipment, park facilities, corporate yard
building, and roads. Total depreciation expenses on governmental assets totaled $916,485, versus
$884,830 in the prior year. The slight increase in depreciation was largely attributable to significant



City of Clayton
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015

capital assets deemed complete in the prior year ($1,499,899), that were depreciated for a full year for
the first time in the current year pursuant to the mid-year convention depreciation method.

Additional information on the City of Clayton's capital assets can be found in Note 5 of this report.
Debt Adminisiration

The remaining debt of the former RDA of $5,835,000 was transferred to the Successor Agency on
February 1, 2012 (fiscal year ending June 30, 2012). The City has no outstanding general obligation
debt. The former RDA maintains a "AAA" rating for Tax Allocation Bonds from Standard & Poor's.
Additional information on the Successor Agency's long-term debt obligations can be found in Note 12 of
the notes to the financial statements.

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGET

As the City of Clayton is largely a bedroom community, the annual General Fund operating budget
relies more heavily on property taxes to finance annual operating appropriations rather than other
sources of revenue larger municipalities have access to (i.e. sales and business license taxes). The City
strives to meet the ever evolving needs of local residents and businesses within the constraints of limited
and sometimes restrictive revenue sources.

There was a noteworthy increase in the General Fund's final budgeted operational expenditures for fiscal
year 2015-16 of $243,653 (6.3%). The rise in operational appropriations was partially attributable to an
unavoidable increase in the annual contract cost with the City of Concord for police dispatch services. In
addition, effective July 1, 2015 the City’s pension administrator (CalPERS) implemented a mandatory
hike in pension contributions arising from the Public Employee Pension Reform Act (PEPRA) of 2012
to address historical increases in the actuarially determined unfunded pension liability.

In the adopted fiscal year 2015-16 budget, total revenues of the General Fund are projected to be
$4,124,444, which is an increase of approximately $244,883 (6.3%) over the fiscal year 2014-15
adopted budget. The projected revenue increase is supported by actual 2014-15 operational revenue
results which were not available during budget preparation procedures in April-May of 2015. This
growth is further reinforced by the fact that budgeted 2015-16 General Fund revenues are actually only
$60,340 (1.5%) higher than actual “ordinary operating revenue” results for the fiscal year ending June
30, 2015, which excludes the non-recurring revenues spikes.

REQUEST FOR INFORMATION
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City of Clayton's finances for all
those with an interest in the City's finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in

this report, or requests for additional financial information, should be addressed to the Office of the
Finance Manager, 6000 Heritage Trail, Clayton, California 94517.
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City of Clayton
Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2015
Governmental  Business-Type

ASSETS Activities Activites Total
Current Assets:

Cash and investments $ 10,047,587 $ - $ 10,047,587

Accounts receivable (net of allowances) 973,788 - 973,788

Interest receivable 36,671 - 36,671

Internal balances 35,749 (35,749) -

Prepaid expenses 14,179 - 14,179
Total Current Assets 11,107,974 (35,749) 11,072,225
Noncurrent Assets:

Notes receivable 992,829 - 992,829

Nondepreciable assets 2,138,486 167,738 2,306,224

Depreciable assets, net 26,515,029 1,082,943 27,597,972
Total Noncurrent Assets 29,646,344 1,250,681 30,897,025
TOTAL ASSETS 40,754,318 1,214,932 41,969,250
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred pensions 471,130 - 471,130
TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 471,130 - 471,130
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilites:

Accounts payable 401,782 927 402,709

Deposits payable - 5,500 5,500

Accrued payroll 57,550 - 57,550

Compensated absences payable (current portion) 76,967 - 76,967

Other accrued liabilities 30,421 2,396 32,817
Total Current Liabilities 566,720 8,823 575,543
Noncurrent Liabilites:

Compensated absences payable (long-term portion) 76,967 - 76,967

OPERB liability 99,656 - 99,656

Net pension liability 3,693,394 - 3,693,394
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 3,870,017 - 3,870,017
TOTAL LIABILITIES 4,436,737 8,823 4,445,560
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Unearned revenue 69,977 - 69,977

Deferred billings 398,115 - 398,115

Deferred note receivable 15,931 - 15,931

Deferred pension 845,472 - 845,472
TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 1,329,495 - 1,329,495
NET POSITION

Net investment in capital assets 28,653,515 1,250,681 29,904,196

Restricted for special projects and programs 2,024,193 - 2,024,193

Unrestricted 4,781,508 (44,572) 4,736,936
TOTAL NET POSITION $ 35,459,216 $ 1,206,109 $ 36,665,325

The accompanying notes are an in{ezgral part of the financial statements




City of Clayton
Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Position
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015

Operating Capital
Charges Grants and Grants and Governmental  Business-type
For the fiscal year ended June 30,2015  Expenses for Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total
Primary Government:
Governmental Activities
General government $ 1,119,567 643,070 $ - $ - $  (476,497) $ - $  (476,497)
Public works 2,139,918 165,789 - . (1,974,129) - (1,974,129)
Parks and recreation services 339,894 14,337 - - (325,557) - (325,557)
Community and economic
development 405,941 25,990 - - (379,951) - (379,951)
Public safety 2,006,052 13,862 157,397 - (1,834,793) - (1,834,793)
Total Governmental Activities 6,011,372 863,048 157,397 - (4,990,927) - (4,990,927)
Business-Type Activities
Endeavor Hall 66,606 25,818 - - - (40,788) (40,788)
Total Business-Type Activities 66,606 25,818 - - - (40,788) (40,788)
Total Primary Government $ 6,077,978 $ 888,866 $ 157,397 $ - (4,990,927) (40,788) (5,031,715)

General revenues:

Taxes:
Property taxes 2,302,278 - 2,302,278
Sales taxes 397,544 - 397,544
Special taxes and assessments 1,407,850 - 1,407,850
Other taxes 1,339,537 - 1,339,537
Total Taxes 5,447,209 - 5,447,209
Investment income (loss) 82,909 175 83,084
Gain on fixed asset disposal 624 - 624
Miscellaneous 91,230 4,316 95,546
Transfer from Community Gym Fund 88,793 (88,793) -
Total general revenues and transfers 5,710,765 (84,302) 5,626,463
Change in net position from
continuing activities 719,838 (125,090) 594,748
Special item- gain on dispute - 93,489 93,489
Extraordinary loss on RDA settlement (200,000) - (200,000)
Change in net position 519,838 (31,601) 488,237
Net position - beginning of year 39,121,684 1,237,710 40,359,394
Prior period adjustment - Adoption
of GASB 68 (see Note 10) (4,182,306) - (4,182,306)
Net position - beginning of year,
as restated 34,939,378 1,237,710 36,177,088
Net position - end of year $35,459,216 $ 1,206,109 $ 36,665,325

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

General Fund

The General Fund is the general operating fund of the City. It is used to account for all financial
resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund. The major revenue sources for this
fund are property taxes, sales taxes, unrestricted revenues from the State, fines and forfeitures, and
interest income. Expenditures are made for administration, legislation, public safety, parks and
recreation and other services.

Major Special Revenue Funds:

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for revenues derived from specific revenue sources. These
funds are required by State statute or ordinance to finance particular functions or activities of
government. The City's major special revenue funds are:

Clayton Landscape Maintenance Fund - accounts for real property voter-approved assessments
collected to maintain arterial landscaping and open space within the City.

Major Capital Projects Funds:

Capital Projects Funds are used to account for financial resources to be used for the acquisition or
construction of major capital facilities other than those financed by proprietary funds. The following
represents the City's major capital projects funds:

Capital Improvements Projects Fund- accounts for the projects identified in the capital
improvement program funded by various federal and state grants as well as through transfers from
the General Fund.

Other Governmental Funds

This column accounts for all non-major governmental funds including special revenue, capital projects
and debt service fund types.

17



City of Clayton

Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds
June 30, 2015
Major Funds
Clayton Capital
Landscape Improvements
General Fund  Maintenance Fund
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 4,715,745 $ 907,014 $ 2,015,674
Accounts receivable 625,843 - -
Interest receivable 36,671 - -
Notes receivable 992,829 - -
Prepaid expenses 14,179 - -
Due from other funds 2,580 - -
Advance to other funds 38,299 - -
TOTAL ASSETS $ 6,426,146 $ 907,014 $ 2,015,674
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 272,386 $ 80,197 $ 7,586
Other payables 16,588 10,615 -
Accrued payroll 57,550 - -
Accrued vacation 76,967 - -
Due to other funds - - -
Advance from other funds - - -
TOTAL LIABILITIES 423,491 90,812 7,586
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred fee and rental receipts 69,977 - -
Deferred billings 378,115 - -
Deferred note receivable 15,931 - -
TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES 464,023 - -
FUND BALANCE
Non-spendable 1,029,377 - -
Restricted - 528,078 -
Committed - - -
Assigned - 288,124 2,008,088
Unassigned 4,509,255 - -
TOTAL FUND BALANCE 5,538,632 816,202 2,008,088
TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED
INFLOWS OF RESOURCES AND
FUND BALANCE $ 6,426,146 $ 907,014 $ 2,015,674

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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City of Clayton
Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds

June 30, 2015
Other

Governmental Total
$ 2,228,504 $ 9,866,937
347,945 973,788
- 36,671
- 992,829
- 14,179
- 2,580
- 38,299
$ 2,576,449 $ 11,925,283
$ 41,613 401,782
3,218 30,421
- 57,550
- 76,967
2,550 2,550
2,580 2,580
49,961 571,850
- 69,977
20,000 398,115
- 15,931
20,000 484,023
- 1,029,377
775,003 1,303,081
721,112 721,112
1,012,923 3,309,135
(2,550) 4,506,705
2,506,488 10,869,410
$§ 2,576,449 $ 11,925,283
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City of Clayton

Reconciliation of Governmental Funds Balance Sheet with the Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2015

Total Fund Balances - Governmental Funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not current financial resources and therefore are
not reported in the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet.

Non-depreciable capiial assets

Depreciable capital assets, net (net of internal service fund assets of $296,137)

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and therefore are not reported in
the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet.

OPEB liability

Compensated absences payable

Deferred outflows of resources for pensions not reported on the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet
Net pension liability not reported on the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet

Deferred inflows of resources for pensions not reported on the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet
Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain activities to individual

funds. The assets and liabilities of the internal service funds are included in the governmental
activities in the Government-wide Statement of Net Position.

Net Position of Governmental Activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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City of Clayton

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Governmental Funds
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015

REVENUES
Property taxes
Program income
Spccial taxes and assessments
Sales taxes
Permits, licenses and fees
Fines, forfeirtures and penalties
Intergovernmental
Motor vehicle in-lieu fees
Other in-lieu fees
Franchise fees
Service charges
Use of money and property
Other revenue

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
Current
General government
Public works
Parks and recreation services
Community and economic development
Public safety
Capital Outlay
TOTAL EXPENDITURES

REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfers in
Transfers out

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES AND OTHER
FINANCING USES

Extraordinary loss on AB 1484 dissolution

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES
FUND BALANCES:

Beginning of year

End of fiscal year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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Major Funds
Clayton Capital
Landscape Improvements
General Fund Maintenance Fund Fund
$ 2,302,278 $ - $ -
10,063 - =
- 1,005,309 -
397,544 - -
264,764 -
72,635 - -
107,724 - -
4,590 - -
151,816 - -
501,597 - -
366,080 - z
39,186 6,504 16,929
22,574 - 1,557
4,240,851 1,011,813 18,486
1,018,852 - -
167,282 719,921 =
349,862 - -
379,348 = -
1,926,479 - -
- 41,588 62,639
3,841,823 761,509 62,639
399,028 250,304 (44,153)
190,867 259,704 148,975
- (33,968) (259,705)
190,867 225,736 (110,730)
589,895 476,040 (154,883)
(200,000) -
389,895 476,040 (154,883)
5,148,737 340,162 2,162,971
S 5,538,632 $ 816,202 § 2,008,088



City of Clayton

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Governmental Funds

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015

Other
Governmental Total

$ - $ 2,302,278
- 10,063
282,439 1,287,748
- 397,544
41,781 306,545
- 72,635
959,033 1,066,757
- 4,590
- 151,816
- 501,597
- 366,080
18,789 81,408
67,000 91,131
1,369,042 6,640,192
- 1,018,852
455,170 1,342,373
- 349,862
31,624 410,972
79,128 2,005,607
156,668 260,895
722,590 5,388,561
646,452 1,251,631
912 600,458

(217,992) (511,665)
(217,080) 88,793
429,372 1,340,424

- (200,000)
429,372 1,140,424
2,077,116 9,728,986

$ 2,506,488

S 10869.410
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City of Clayton

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance to

the Statement of Activities
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015

Net Change in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities are different because:

Depreciation expense on capital assets is reported in the Government-Wide Statement of Activities and changes in Net
Assets, but they do not require the use of current financial resources. Therefore, depreciation expense is not reported as
expenditures in governmental funds. (Net of internal service fund depreciation of $112,061).

Certain long-term assets, such as notes receivable, developer receivable, and investment in low and moderate income
housing are reported as expenditures in the governmental funds and then are offset by a deferred revenue as they are not
available to pay current expenditures. When the long-terms assets are collected, they are reflected as revenue. This amount
is the net change in the long-term assets for the current period.

Long-term compensated absences are reported in the Government-Wide Statement of Activities, but they do not require the
use of current financial resources. Therefore, long-term compensated absences are not reported as expenditures in
governmental funds. The program expenses are adjusted for the current year net changes in compensated absences.

Capital asset acquisition, excluding internal service fund asset acquisitions.

Change in accrued net pension liability

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain activities, such as insurance and fleet
management, to individual funds. The net gain or loss of the internal service funds is reported with governmental activities.

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities on Statement of Activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statments
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(11,665)
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City of Clayton
Statement of Net Position

Proprietary Funds
June 30, 2015
Governmental
Activities
Community Endeavor Internal
Gym Hall Total Service Funds
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and investments $ - $ - $ - $ 180,650
Receivables:
Accounts - - - -
Interest - - - -
Noncurrent Assets
Land - 167,738 167,738 -
Depreciable assets, net - 1,082,943 1,082,943 296,137
TOTAL ASSETS - 1,250,681 1,250,681 476,787
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable - 927 927 -
Other payables - 2,366 2,396 -
Deposits payable - 5,500 5,500 -
Due to other funds - 35,749 35,749 -
TOTAL LIABILITIES - 44,572 44,572 -
NET POSITION
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt - 1,250,681 1,250,681 296,137
Unrestricted - (44,572) (44,572) 180,650
TOTAL NET POSITION $ - $ 1,206,109 $ 1,206,109 $ 476,787

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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City of Clayton

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
Proprietary Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015

OPERATING REVENUES

Charges for current services
Other operating income

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES

OPERATING EXPENSES

Personnel
General and administrative
Depreciation and amortization

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

Transfer to General Fund
Loss on disposal of assets
Investment income

TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

Special item- gain upon dispute resolution

CHANGE IN NET POSITION

NET POSITION:

Beginning of fiscal year

End of fiscal year

Governmental
Activities
Community Endeavor Internal
Gym Hall Total Services Funds
$ - $ 25818 $ 25,818 $ 56,672
- 4,316 4,316 100
- 30,134 30,134 56,772
- 15,980 15,980 -
- 14,559 14,559 17,244
- 36,067 36,067 112,061
- 66,606 66,606 129,305
- (36,472) (36,472) (72,533)
(88,793) - (88,793) -
- - - 624
175 - 175 1,501
(88,618) - (88,618) 2,125
93,489 - 93,489 -
4,871 (36,472) (31,601) (70,408)
(4,871) 1,242,581 1,237,710 547,195
8 - $1,206,109 $ 1,206,109 $ 476,787

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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City of Clayton

Statement of Cash Flows

Proprietary Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Cash received froin customers/other funds
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services
Cash payment to employees for services

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Transfer to General Fund
Acquistion of fixed assets

Net cash provided by capital and related financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Investment income received
Gain on sale of fixed assets

Net Cash provided by investing activities
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS:

Fiscal year ended June 30, 2014
Fiscal year end June 30, 2015

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET
CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash
provided (used) by operating activities:
Depreciation
Changes in current assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable
Accounts payable
Other payables
Due to other funds
Deposits payable
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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Major Enterprise
Funds
Governmental
Activities
Community Endeavor Internal

Gym Hall Total Service Funds

$ - $ 29,178 $ 29,178 $ 56,772
- (13,198) (13,198) (17,286)

- (15,980) (15,980) -

- - - 39,486

(77,793) - (77,793) -
- - - (63,223)
_(77,793) - (77,793) (63,223)

175 - 175 1,501

- - - 624

175 - 175 2,125
(77,618) - (77,618) (21,612)

77,618 - 77,618 202,262

$ - $ - $ - $ 180,650
$ $(36,472) $ (36,472) $  (72,533)

- 36,067 36,067 112,061
- (340) (340) (42)

- (2,003) (2,003) -

- 3,704 3,704 -

(956) (956) -

$ - $ - $ - $ 39,486




FIDUCIARY FUNDS

Agency Funds are custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities) and do not involve measurements of
results of operations. They are used to account for assets held in an agency capacity for others and
therefore cannot be used to support the City's program. Agency funds are accounted for using the
economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting.

Private Purpose Trust Funds account for resources held by the City as trustee for third party
beneficiaries, and are used to report both the Fiduciary Net Position and Changes in Fiduciary Net
Position for the Successor Agency for the former Redevelopment Agency. Private Purpose Trust Funds
are accounted for under the full accrual basis of accounting.
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City of Clayton
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position

Agency Funds

(Excludes Private Purpose Trust Funds)

June 30, 2015

Agency Funds

ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 2,308,642
Cash with fiscal agents 471,536
Assessments receivable 3,461,640
Other receivables 38,000
Investment in bonds 3,012,000
TOTAL ASSETS $ 9,291,818

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 7,125
Other liabilites 2,176,479
Other deposits 766,574
Notes payable 155,315
Local obligations payable 3,012,000
Due to bondholders 3,174,325
TOTAL LIABILITIES $ 9,291,818

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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City of Clayton
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position

Private Purpose Trust Fund - Successor Agency

June 30, 2015
Redevelopment Redevelopment
Retirement LMI Retirement
ASSETS Trust Fund Trust Fund Eliminations Total
Current assets:
Cash and investments $ 1,914,490 $ 557,378 $ - $ 2,471,868
Cash and investments with fiscal agents 274,095 - - 274,095
Accounts receivable 137,500 15,000 (15,000) 137,500
Total current assets 2,326,085 572,378 (15,000) 2,883,463
Noncurrent assets:
Advance to Redevelopment
Retirement Trust Fund - 592,412 (592,412) -
Notes receivable 139,384 4,120,800 - 4,260,184
Total noncurrent assets 139,384 4,713,212 (592,412) 4,260,184
Total assets $ 2,465,469 $ 5,285,590 $ (607,412) $ 7,143,647
LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES AND NET POSITION
Liabilities
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 15,000 $ - $ (15,000 $ -
Accrued interest payable - - - -
Current portion of long term debt 325,000 - - 325,000
Total current liabilities 340,000 - (15,000) 325,000
Noncurrent liabilities:
Long term debt, net of current portion 3,465,000 - - 3,465,000
Advance from Redevelopment LMI
Retirement Trust Fund 592,412 - (592,412) -
Notes payable 976,899 - - 976,899
Total noncurrent liabilities 5,034,311 - (592,412) 4,441,899
Total liabilities 5,374,311 - (607,412) 4,766,899
Deferred inflows of resources
Deferred notes receivables 139,384 3,397,000 - 3,536,384
Total deferred inflows of resources 139,384 3,397,000 - 3,536,384
NET POSITION
Held in trust for other governments _ (3,048,226) 1,888,590 - (1,159,636)
Total liablilities, deferred inflows
of resources and net position $ 2,465,469 $ 5,285,590 $ (607,412) $ 7,143,647

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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City of Clayton
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position

Private Purpose Trust Fund - Successor Agency
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015

Redevelopment Redevelopment
Retirement LMI Retirement
Trust Fund Trust Fund Total
Additions
Tax increment revenue $ 588,829 $ - $ 588,829
Program revenue 22,873 86,400 109,273
Interest income 13,929 21,817 35,746
Total additions 625,631 108,217 733,848
Deductions
Interest expense 52,302 - 52,302
Administrative costs 250,000 - 250,000
Other expenses 6,119 5,225 11,344
Total deductions 308,421 5,225 313,646
Extraordinary gain / (loss) 137,500 (3,616,725) (3,479,225)
Change in net position 454,710 (3,513,733) (3,059,023)
Net position held in trust - beginning (3,502,936) 5,402,323 1,899,387
Net position held in trust - ending $ (3,048,226) $ 1,888,590 $  (1,159,636)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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City of Clayton
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The basic financial statements of the City of Clayton, California (City) have been prepared in conformity
with generally accepted accounting principles (US GAAP) as applied to governmental agencies. The
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard setting body for establishing
governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The more significant of the City's accounting
policies are described below.

A. Reporting Enfity

The City of Clayton (City) is primarily a residential community nestled in the foothills of Mount Diablo in
Contra Costa County, California. The City was incorporated as a municipal corporation in 1964, and
encompasses four square miles with a population of 11,300.

The City operates under the Council-Manager form of government, with five elected Council members
served by a full-time City Manager and staff. The City's staff of 25 full time equivalent employees, of which
11 are sworn officers in the Police Department, are under contract with the City and responsible for the
following City services:

o Public Safety - The City provides 24-hour police services from a central station, using trained
personnel. The City contracts with the City of Concord for police dispatch-IT services.

¢ Streets and Roads - The City maintains its streets, curbs, gutters and related public property using
City employees. Major projects may be contracted to reduce costs.

e Inaddition, the City employs a varying number of seasonal personnel for maintenance.

The City is the primary government unit. Component units are those entities which are financially
accountable to the primary government, either because the City appoints a voting majority of the component
unit's board, or because the component unit will provide a financial benefit or impose a financial burden on
the City. The Clayton Redevelopment Agency (“RDA™), which was dissolved as of February 1, 2012 was
accounted for as a "blended" component unit of the City. Despite being legally separate, this entity was so
intertwined with the City that it is, in substance, part of the City's operations. Accordingly, the balances and
transactions of this component unit were reported within the funds of the City. Upon the dissolution of the
RDA, the City no longer has any blended component units.

B. Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus

The accounts of the City are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is considered a separate
accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of self-balancing
accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues, and expenditures or expenses as
appropriate. Government resources are allocated to and accounted for in individual funds based upon the
purpose for which they are to be spent and the means by which spending activities are controlled.
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City of Clayton
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued
B. Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus, Continued
Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements include a Statement of Net Position and a Statement of
Activities. These statements present summaries of governmental and business type activities for the City, the
primary government. Fiduciary aciivities of the City are not inciuded in these statements.

These financial statements are presented on an "economic resources" measurement focus and the accrual
basis of accounting. Accordingly, all of the City's assets and liabilities, including capital assets and related
infrastructure assets and long-term liabilities, are included in the accompanying Statement of Net Position.
The Statement of Activities presents changes in net position.

Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized in the period in which they are earned while
expenses are recognized in the period in which the liability is incurred.

Certain types of transactions are reported as program revenues for the City in three categories:

e Charges for services
e Operating grants and contributions

e Capital grants and contributions

Certain eliminations have been made as prescribed by GASB Statement No. 34 in regards to interfund
activities, payables and receivables. All internal balances in the Statement of Net Position have been
eliminated in the Statement of Activities; internal service fund transactions have been eliminated. However,
those transactions between governmental and business-type activities have not been eliminated. The
following interfund activities have been eliminated:

e Advances to/from other funds
e Due to/from other funds
o Transfers in/out

Governmental fund financial statements include a Balance Sheet and a Statement of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balances for all major governmental funds and non-major funds aggregated. An
accompanying schedule is presented to reconcile and explain the differences in fund balances as presented in
these statements to the net position as presented in the government-wide financial statements. The City has
presented all major funds that met the applicable criteria.
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City of Clayton
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued
B. Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus, Continued
Governmental Fund Financial Statements

All governmental funds are accounted for on a spending or "current financial resources" measurement focus
and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, only current assets and current liabilities are
included on the Balance Sheet. The Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
present increases (revenue and other financing sources) and decreases (expenditures and other financing
uses) in net current assets. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized in the
accounting period in which they become both measurable and available to finance expenditures of the
current period.

Revenues are recorded when received in cash, except those revenues subject to accrual (generally 60 days
after year-end) are recognized when due. The primary revenue sources, which have been treated as
susceptible to accrual by the City, are property tax, sales tax, intergovernmental revenues, and other taxes.
Revenues from other governmental agencies (excluding property taxes) are deemed to be available if
received within 180 days after fiscal year end. Expenditures are recorded in the accounting period in which
the related fund liability is incurred.

Deferred revenues arise when potential revenues do not meet both the "measurable" and "available" criteria
for recognition in the current period. Deferred revenues also arise when the government receives resources
before it has a legal claim to them, as when grant monies are received prior to incurring qualifying
expenditures. In subsequent periods when both revenue recognition criteria are met or when the government
has a legal claim to the resources, the deferred revenue is removed from the balance sheet and revenue is
recognized.

The Reconciliation of the Fund Financial Statements to the Government-Wide Financial Statements is
provided to explain the differences created by the integrated approach of GASB Statement No. 34. The City
has the following major governmental funds:

General Fund - This fund is the general operating fund of the City. It is used to account for all financial
resources except those that are required to be accounted for in another fund.

Capital Improvement Projects Fund - This accounts for the projects identified in the capital
improvement program funded by various federal and state grants as well as through transfers from the
General Fund.

Landscape Maintenance Fund — This fund accounts for the Community Facility District No. 2007-1
special assessment restricted to fund the operation, maintenance, and improvement of city-wide public
landscaped areas.
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City of Clayton
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued
B. Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus, Continued
Proprietary Fund Financial Statements

Proprietary fund financial statements include a Statement of Net Position, a Statement of Revenues,
Expenses and Change in Fund Net Position, and a Statement of Cash Flows for all proprietary funds.

Internal service funds are presented in these statements. However, internal service balances and activities
have been combined with the governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.

Proprietary funds are accounted for using the "economic resources" measurement focus and the accrual
basis of accounting. Accordingly, all assets and liabilities (whether current or noncurrent) are included on
the Statement of Net Position. The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position
present increases (revenues) and decreases (expenses) in total net position. Under the accrual basis of
accounting, revenues are recognized in the period in which they are earned while expenses are recognized in
the period in which liability is incurred.

Operating revenues in the proprietary funds are those revenues that are generated from the primary
operations of the fund. All other revenues are reported as non-operating revenues. Operating expenses are
those expenses that are essential to the primary operations of the fund. All other expenses are reported as
nonoperating expenses.

The City has the following major enterprise funds:
Community Gym - This fund accounts for all City activities located at the Mt. Diablo Unified School
District-owned Community Gym and managed under contract by All Out Sports League.

Endeavor Hall - This fund accounts for all activities related to use of the facility. The primary use has
been for Wedding Receptions.
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City of Clayton
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued
B. Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus, Continued
The City has the following internal service funds:

Capital Replacement - This fund accounts for the operation, maintenance, and replacement of the City
vehicles and equipment.

Self-Insurance Liability - This fund accounts for the administration of the City's self-insurance
programs, payment of Employee Assistance Programs, and self-insured liability claim deductibles.

Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements

The agency funds are custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities) and do not involve measurement of results
of operations, therefore only the Statement of Fiduciary Net Position is presented. Agency funds are
accounted for using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting.
Reclassifications were recorded to prior year amounts reported for various assets and liabilities for Agency
Funds in order to be consistent with the current year’s presentation.

Private Purpose Trust Funds account for resources held by the City as trustee for third party beneficiaries,
and are used to report both the Fiduciary Net Position and Changes in Fiduciary Net Position for the
Successor Agency for the former Redevelopment Agency. Private Purpose Trust Funds are accounted for
under the full accrual basis of accounting.

C. Use of Restricted and Unrestricted Net Position

When an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net position are
available, the City's policy is to apply restricted net position first.

D. Cash and Investments

The City pools cash and investments from all funds for the purpose of increasing income through investment
activities. Highly liquid money market investments with maturities of one year or less at time of purchase
are stated at amortized cost. All other investments are stated at fair value. Market value is used as fair value
for those securities for which market quotations are readily available.

Interest income on investments is allocated to the funds on the basis of average month-end cash and
investment balances.

The City’s investment policy (Policy) states that the primary investment objective is safety with investments
being legally permitted and sufficiently liquid to meet forecasted needs. Maximization of interest earnings is
a secondary objective. Further, the Policy states that the City Treasurer has the ultimate responsibility to
protect, preserve and maintain cash and investments. The Policy also established internal controls and
reporting requirements. The Policy stipulates "Permitted Investments and Limitation on Investments."
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City of Clayton
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued
D. Cash and Investments, Continued

The City invests in the California Local Agency Investment Fund ("LAIF"), which is part of the Pooled
Money Investment Account operated by the California State Treasurer. LAIF funds are invested in high
quality money market securities and are managed to insure the safety of the portfolio. A portion of LAIF's
investments are in structured notes and asset-backed securities.

LAIF determines fair value on its investment portfolio based on market quotations for these securities where
market quotations are readily available, and on amortized cost or best estimate for those securities where
market value is not readily available.

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 31, highly liquid money market investments with maturities of one
year or less at time of purchase are stated at amortized cost. All other investments are stated at fair value.
Market value is used as fair value for those securities for which market quotations are readily available.

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 40, Deposit and Investment Disclosures (Amendment of GASB No
.3), certain disclosure requirements, if applicable, for Deposits and Investment Risks are specified in the
following areas:

o Interest Rate Risk
e Credit Risk
e Overall
¢ Custodial Credit Risk
o Concentrations of Credit Risk

In addition, other disclosures are specified including use of certain methods to present deposits and
investments, highly sensitive investments, credit quality at year-end and other disclosures.

The City’s cash and cash equivalents for Statement of Cash Flows purposes are considered to be cash, cash
on hand, demand deposits, restricted cash, and investments held in the City investment pool.

E. Capital Assets

Capital assets are valued at cost or, during the initial implementation, estimated historical cost if actual
historical cost was not available. Donated fixed assets are valued at their estimated fair market value on the
date donated. City policy has set the capitalization threshold for reporting infrastructure at $100,000; all
other capital assets are set at $5,000. Depreciation is recorded on a straight-line basis over estimated useful
lives of the assets as follows:

Buildings 50 years
Improvements other than buildings 20 - 75 years
Vehicles, machinery and equipment 5 - 10 years
Infrastructure 20 - 75 years

39



City of Clayton
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued
E. Capital Assets, Continued

In June 1999, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement No. 34 which
requires the inclusion of infrastructure capital assets in local governments' basic financial statements. In
accordance with GASB Statement No. 34, the City has included all infrastructure into the current basic
financial statements.

The City defines infrastructure as the basic physical assets that allow the City to function. The assets include
streets, park lands, and buildings. Each major infrastructure system can be divided into subsystems. For
example, the street system can be subdivided into pavement, curb and gutters, sidewalks, medians,
streetlights, landscaping and land. These subsystems were not delineated in the basic financial statements.
The appropriate operating department maintains information regarding the subsystems.

Interest accrued during capital assets construction, if any, is capitalized for the business-type and proprietary
funds as part of the asset cost.

For all infrastructure systems, the City elected to use the Basic Approach as defined by GASB Statement
No. 34 for infrastructure reporting. The City commissioned an appraisal of City owned infrastructure and
property as of June 30, 2003. This appraisal determined the original cost, which is defined as the actual cost
to acquire new property in accordance with market prices at the time of first construction/acquisition.

Original costs were developed in one of three ways: (1) historical records; (2) standard unit costs appropriate
for the construction/acquisition date; or (3) present cost indexed by a reciprocal factor of the price increase
from the construction/acquisition date to the current date. The accumulated depreciation, defined as the total
depreciation from the date of construction/acquisition to the current date on a straight line, unrecovered cost
method was computed using industry accepted life expectancies for each infrastructure subsystem. The book
value was then computed by deducting the accumulated depreciation from the original cost.

F. Long-Term Liabilities

Government-Wide Financial Statements

Long-term debt and other financial obligations are reported as liabilities in the appropriate activities.

Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of the

bonds using the straight-line method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable premium or discount.
Issuance costs are reported as deferred charges.
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City of Clayton
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued
F. Long-Term Liabilities, Continued

Fund Financial Statements

The Governmental Fund Financial Statements do not present long-term debt, which are shown in the
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to the Government-Wide Statement of Net
Position.

Governmental funds recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, during the
current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financial sources. Premiums received on
debt issuance are reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuance reported as other
financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported
as debt service expenditures.

Proprietary Fund Financial Statements use the same principles as those used in the Government-Wide
Financial Statements.

Fiduciary funds that are Private Purpose Trust Funds have an “economic resources” measurement focus, which
is the accrual basis of accounting. The trust fund reports all of the assets (including capital assets) and
liabilities (including long term indebtedness). Effective February 1, 2012, the Successor Agency to the former
Clayton RDA began reporting on this basis.

G. Compensated Absences
Government-Wide Financial Statements

Compensated absences are recorded as incurred and related expenses and liabilities are reported by activity.
The long-term portion of governmental activities is liquidated primarily by the General Fund.

Fund Financial Statements

In governmental funds, compensated absences are recorded as expenditures in the years paid, as it is the
City's policy to liquidate any unpaid compensated absences at June 30 from future resources, rather than
currently available financial resources. Compensated absences include vacation. It is the policy of the City
to pay 100% of the accumulated vacation leave when a public safety employee retires or terminates, and up
to 18 months of a capped general employee's maximum annual accrual allowed upon the same leave of
employment action.

H. Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability and deferred outflows/inflows of resources related to
pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the City’s California Public
Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) plans (Plans) and additions to/deductions from the Plans’
fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by CalPERS. For this
purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and
payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value. CalPERS’ audited
financial statements are publicly available reports that can be obtained at CalPERS’ website under Forms
and Publications.
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued

H. Net Position / Fund Balances

Government-Wide Financial Statements

In the Government-Wide Financial Statements, net position is classified in the following categories:

Net Investment in Capital Assets - This amouni consists of capital assets net of accumulated
depreciation and reduced by outstanding debt that attributed to the acquisition, construction, or
improvement of the assets.

Restricted Net Position - This amount is restricted by external creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws
or regulations of other governments.

Unrestricted Net Position - This amount is all net position that do not meet the definition of "invested in
capital assets, net of related debt" or "restricted net position." Nonspendable governmental funds
balances are categorized as unrestricted net position on the Government-Wide Financial Statements.

Fund Balance Reporting

Under GASB Statement No. 54, Fund Balances for governmental funds are reported in classifications that
comprise a hierarchy based primarily on the extent to which the government is bound to honor constraints
on the specific purposes for which amounts in those funds can be spent. The City Council, as the highest
level of decision-making authority of the City, commits and assigns fund balances through resolutions.
These captions apply only to Fund Balance classifications:

* Nonspendable fund balance are those amounts that cannot be spent because they are either not in
spendable form, or are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.

*  Restricted fund balances are those amounts that should be reported as restricted when constraints placed
on the use of resources are either externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws and
regulations of other governments; or imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling
legislation.

* Committed fund balances are those amounts that cannot be used for any other purpose unless the
government removes or changes the specified use by taking the same type of action it employed to
previously commit those amounts.

*  Assigned fund balances are those amounts that are constrained by the government’s intent to be used for
specific purposes, but are neither restricted nor committed, except for stabilization arrangements.

*  Unassigned fund balances are those residual funds that have not been assigned to other funds, are not
nonspendable, restricted, committed, or assigned to specific purposes. The general fund should be the only
fund that reports a positive unassigned fund balance amount.

It is the policy of the City to spend funds in order from restricted to unassigned, as listed above.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued

1. Property Taxes

Property tax revenues are recognized in the fiscal year for which the tax and assessment is levied. The
County of Contra Costa (County) levies, bills and collects property taxes and special assessments for the
City. The County remits the entire amount levicd and handles all delinquencies, retaining interest and
penalties (under the Teeter Plan). Secured and unsecured property taxes are levied on July 1 based on
January 1 assessed valuation and are payable in two installments, becoming delinquent on December 10 and
April 10.

J.  Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions. These estimates and
assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities. In addition, estimates affect the reported amount of expenses. Actual results could differ from
these estimates and assumptions.

K. Interfund Balances/Internal Balances

Outstanding balances between funds are reported as due to and due from other funds. These are generally
repaid within the following fiscal year.

Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and business-type activities are
reported in the Government-Wide Financial Statements as "Internal balances."

L. New Accounting Pronouncements

* InJune of 2012, GASB issued GASBS No. 68, Financial Reporting for Pension Plans — an Amendment of
GASB Statement No. 27. The primary objective of this Statement is to improve accounting and financial
reporting by state and local governments for pensions. This Statement replaces the requirements of
Statement No. 27, Accounting for Pensions by State and Local Governmental Employers, as well as the
requirements of Statement No. 50, Pension Disclosures, as they relate to pensions that are provided
through pension plans administered as trusts that meet certain criteria relating to irrevocable contributions,
dedicated plan assets, and protection of plan assets from creditors. The requirements of Statements 27 and
50 remain applicable for pensions that are not covered by the scope of this Statement.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued
L. New Accounting Pronouncements, Continued

Note disclosure and required supplementary information requirements about pensions also are addressed.
Distinctions are made regarding the particular requirements for employers based on the number of
employers whose employees are provided with pensions through the pension plan and whether pension
obligations and pension plan assets are shared. Employers are classified into categories. Cost-sharing
employers, such as the City, are those whose employees are provided with defined benefit pensions
through cost-sharing multiple-employer pension plans. Cost-sharing plans are pension plans in which the
pension obligations to the employees of more than one employer are pooled and plan assets can be used to
pay the benefits of the employees of any employer that provides pensions through the pension plan.

In financial statements prepared using the economic resources measurement focus and accrual basis of
accounting, a cost-sharing employer that does not have a special funding situation is required to recognize
a liability for its proportionate share of the net pension liability (of all employers for benefits provided
through the pension plan)—the collective net pension liability. An employer’s proportion is required to be
determined on a basis that is consistent with the manner in which contributions to the pension plan are
determined, and consideration should be given to separate rates, if any, related to separate portions of the
collective net pension liability.

In addition, the effects of (1) a change in the employer’s proportion of the collective net pension liability
and (2) differences during the measurement period between the employer’s contributions and its
proportionate share of the total of contributions from employers included in the collective net pension
liability are required to be determined. These effects are required to be recognized in the employer’s
pension expense in a systematic and rational manner over a closed period equal to the average of the
expected remaining service lives of all employees that are provided with pensions through the pension plan
(active employees and inactive employees). The portions of the effects not recognized in the employer’s
pension expense are required to be reported as deferred outflows of resources or deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions. Employer contributions to the pension plan subsequent to the measurement
date of the collective net pension liability also are required to be reported as deferred outflows of resources
related to pensions.

A cost-sharing employer is required to recognize pension expense and report deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions for its proportionate shares of collective
pension expense and collective deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
pensions.

This Statement requires that notes to financial statements of cost-sharing employers include descriptive
information about the pension plans through which the pensions are provided. Cost-sharing employers
should identify the discount rate and assumptions made in the measurement of their proportionate shares of
net pension liabilities. Cost-sharing employers also should disclose information about how their
contributions to the pension plan are determined.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued
L. New Accounting Pronouncements, Continued

This Statement requires cost-sharing employers to present in required supplementary information 10-year
schedules containing (1) the net pension liability and certain related ratios and (2) information about
required contributions, contributions to the pension plan, and related ratios. The City is required to
implement provisions of this Statement for the current fiscal year (effective for periods beginning after
June 15, 2014). This Statement will require a change in curreni practice and result in an increase in
government-wide long-term liabilities equal to the City’s share of the pension plan’s unfunded liabilities.

* In January of 2014, GASB issued GASBS No. 69, Government Combinations and Disposals of
Government Operations. This Statement establishes accounting and financial reporting standards related
to government combinations and disposals of government operations. As used in this Statement,
government combinations includes a variety of transactions referred to as mergers, acquisitions, and
transfers of operations.

This Statement requires the use of carrying values to measure the assets and liabilities in a government
merger; it also requires measurements of assets acquired and liabilities assumed generally to be based
upon their acquisition values, provides accounting and financial reporting guidance for disposals of
government operations that have been transferred or sold, and requires disclosures to be made about
government combinations and disposals of government operations to enable financial statement users to
evaluate the nature and financial effects of those transactions. The City is required to implement
provisions of this Statement for the year ended June 30, 2016 (effective for periods beginning after
December 15, 2014). This Statement will not result in a change in current practice, or have a material
effect on the financial statements of the City.

* In November of 2013, GASB issued GASBS No. 71, Pension Transition for Contributions Made
Subsequent to the Measurement Date—an amendment of GASB Statement No. 68. The objective of this
Statement is to address an issue regarding application of the transition provisions of Statement No. 68,
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions. The issue relates to amounts associated with
contributions, if any, made by a state or local government employer or nonemployer contributing entity to
a defined benefit pension plan after the measurement date of the government’s beginning net pension
liability.

This Statement amends paragraph 137 of Statement 68 to require that, at transition, a government
recognize a beginning deferred outflow of resources for its pension contributions, if any, made subsequent
to the measurement date of the beginning net pension liability. Statement 68, as amended, continues to
require that beginning balances for other deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to pensions be reported at transition only if it is practical to determine all such amounts.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued
L. New Accounting Pronouncements, Continued (highlighted green are new)

The City is required to implement provisions of this Statement simultaneously with the provisions of
Statement 68 for the current fiscal year (effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2014). This
Statement resulted in a change in current practice, and will have a material effect on the financial
statements of the City. Please see Note 10 for additional details.

* In February of 2015, GASB issued GASBS No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application. Fair value
is described as an exit price. This Statement provides guidance for determining a fair value measurement
for financial reporting purposes. This Statement also provides guidance for applying fair value to certain
investments and disclosures related to all fair value measurement

This Statement requires a government to use valuation techniques that are appropriate under the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value. The techniques should be
consistent with one or more of the following approaches: the market approach, the cost approach, or the
income approach. This Statement generally requires investments to be measured at fair value. An
investment is defined as a security or other asset that (a) a government holds primarily for the purpose of
income or profit and (b) has a present service capacity based solely on its ability to generate cash or to be
sold to generate cash. The requirements of this Statement will enhance comparability of financial
statements among governments by requiring measurement of certain assets and liabilities at fair value
using a consistent and more detailed definition of fair value and accepted valuation techniques. This
Statement also will enhance fair value application guidance and related disclosures in order to provide
information to financial statement users about the impact of fair value measurements on a government’s
financial position. The City is required to implement the provisions of this Statement for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2016 (effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2015). This Statement will not result in
a change in current practice, or have a material effect on the financial statements of the City.

* In June of 2015, GASB issued GASBS No. 73, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions and
Related Assets that are Not Within the Scope of GASB Statement 68, and Amendments to Certain
Provisions of GASB Statements 67 and 68. This Statement establishes requirements for defined benefit
pensions that are not within the scope of Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Pensions, as well as for the assets accumulated for purposes of providing those pensions. In addition, it
establishes requirements for defined contribution pensions that are not within the scope of Statement 68. Tt
also amends certain provisions of Statement No. 67, Financial Reporting for Pension Plans, and Statement
68 for pension plans and pensions that are within their respective scopes, and clarifies the application of
certain provisions of Statements 67 and 68.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued

L. New Accounting Pronouncements, Continued

The requirements of this Statement extend the approach to accounting and financial reporting established
in Statement 68 to all pensions, with modifications as necessary to reflect that for accounting and financial
reporting purposes, any assets accumulated for pensions that are provided through pension plans that are
not administered through trusts that meet the criteria specified in Statement 68 should not be considered
pension plan assets. It also requires that information similar to that required by Statement 68 be included in
notes to financial statements and required supplementary information by all similarly situated employers
and nonemployer contributing entities.

The City is required to implement the provisions of this Statement for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016
(effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2015). This Statement may result in a change in current
practice, and have a material effect on the financial statements of the City.

* In June of 2015, GASB issued GASBS No. 74, Financial Reporting for Postsemployment Benefit Plans
Other Than Pension Plans. This Statement replaces Statements No. 43, Financial Reporting for
Postemployment Benefit Plans Other Than Pension Plans, as amended, and No. 57, OPEB Measurements
by Agent Employers and Agent Multiple-Employer Plans. Tt also includes requirements for defined
contribution OPEB plans that replace the requirements for those OPEB plans in Statement No. 25,
Financial Reporting for Defined Benefit Pension Plans and Note Disclosures for Defined Contribution
Plans, as amended, Statement 43, and Statement No. 50, Pension Disclosures.

The scope of this Statement includes OPEB plans—defined benefit and defined contribution—
administered through trusts that meet the following criteria:

= Contributions from employers and nonemployer contributing entities to the OPEB plan and earnings
on those contributions are irrevocable.

= OPEB plan assets are dedicated to providing OPEB to plan members in accordance with the benefit
terms.

= OPEB plan assets are legally protected from the creditors of employers, nonemployer contributing
entities, and the OPEB plan administrator. If the plan is a defined benefit OPEB plan, plan assets also
are legally protected from creditors of the plan members

For defined benefit OPEB plans that arc administered through trusts that meet the specified criteria, this
Statement requires two financial statements—a statement of fiduciary net position and a statement of
changes in fiduciary net position.

For single-employer and cost-sharing OPEB plans that are administered through trusts that meet the
specified criteria, the following information also is required to be disclosed:

" Information about the components of the net OPEB liability and related ratios, including the OPEB
plan’s fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total OPEB liability

47



City of Clayton
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued

L. New Accounting Pronouncements, Continued

* Significant assumptions and other inputs used to measure the total OPEB liability and information
about the sensitivity of the measure of the net OPEB liability to changes in the discount rate and
changes in the healthcare cost trend rate.

All defined benefit OPEB plans are required to present in required supplementary information a schedule
covering each of the 10 most recent fiscal years that includes the annual money-weighted rate of return on
OPEB plan investments for each year.

For single-employer and cost-sharing OPEB plans, the following information for each of the 10 most
recent fiscal years is required to be presented as required supplementary information:

®* Sources of changes in the net OPEB liability

* Information about the components of the net OPEB liability and related ratios, including the OPEB
plan’s fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total OPEB liability, and the net OPEB liability as a
percentage of covered-employee payroll.

In addition, all OPEB plans, including agent OPEB plans, are required to explain certain factors that
significantly affect trends in the amounts reported in the schedules of required supplementary information,
such as changes of benefit terms, changes in the size or composition of the population covered by the
benefit terms, or the use of different assumptions.

This Statement requires the net OPEB liability to be measured as the total OPEB liability, less the amount
of the OPEB plan’s fiduciary net position. The total OPEB liability generally is required to be determined
through an actuarial valuation. However, if an OPEB plan has fewer than 100 plan members (active and
inactive), use of a specified alternative measurement method in place of an actuarial valuation is permitted.
Actuarial valuations, or calculations using the specified alternative measurement method, of the total
OPEB liability are required to be performed at least every two years, with more frequent valuations or
calculations encouraged.

The City is required to implement the provisions of this Statement for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017
(effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2016). This Statement may result in a change in current
practice, and have a material effect on the financial statements of the City.

 In June of 2015, GASB issued GASBS No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment
Benefits Other Than Pensions. This Statement replaces the requirements of Statements No. 45, Accounting
and Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, as amended,
and No. 57, OPEB Measurements by Agent Employers and Agent Multiple-Employer Plans, for OPEB.
Statement No. 74, Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans Other Than Pension Plans,
establishes new accounting and financial reporting requirements for OPEB plans.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued
L. New Accounting Pronouncements, Continued

The consistency, comparability, and transparency of the information reported by employers and
governmental nonemployer contributing entities about OPEB transactions will be improved by requiring;

* The use of a discount rate that considers the availability of the OPEB plan’s fiduciary net position
associated with the OPEB of current active and inactive employees and the investment horizon of those
resources, rather than utilizing only the long-term expected rate of return regardless of whether the
OPEB plan’s fiduciary net position is projected to be sufficient to make projected benefit payments and
is expected to be invested using a strategy to achieve that return

= A single method of attributing the actuarial present value of projected benefit payments to periods of
employee service, rather than allowing a choice among six methods with additional variations

= Immediate recognition in OPEB expense, rather than a choice of recognition periods, of the effects of
changes of benefit terms

The requirements of this Statement will improve the decision-usefulness of information in employer and
governmental nonemployer contributing entity financial reports and will enhance its value for assessing
accountability and interperiod equity by requiring recognition of the entire OPEB liability and a more
comprehensive measure of OPEB expense. Decision-usefulness and accountability also will be enhanced
through new note disclosures and required supplementary information, as follows:

* More robust disclosures of assumptions will allow for better informed assessments of the
reasonableness of OPEB measurements.

® Explanations of how and why the OPEB liability changed from year to year will improve transparency.

* The summary OPEB liability information, including ratios, will offer an indication of the extent to
which the total OPEB liability is covered by resources held by the OPEB plan, if any.

= For employers that provide benefits through OPEB plans that are administered through trusts that meet
the specified criteria, the contribution schedules will provide measures to evaluate decisions related to
contributions.

The City is required to implement the provisions of this Statement for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018
(effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2017). This Statement may result in a change in current
practice, and have a material effect on the financial statements of the City.

* In June of 2015, GASB issued GASBS No. 76, The Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles for State and Local Governments. This Statement supersedes Statement No. 55, The Hierarchy
of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles for State and Local Governments, and reduces the GAAP
hierarchy to two categories of authoritative GAAP and addresses the use of authoritative and
nonauthoritative literature in the event that the accounting treatment for a transaction or other event is not
specified within a source of authoritative GAAP.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued

L. New Accounting Pronouncements, Continued

2.

The City is required to implement the provisions of this Statement for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016
(effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2015), and should be applied retroactively. This Statement
may result in a change in current practice, and have a material effect on the financial statements of the

City.

In August of 2015, GASB issued GASBS No. 77, Tax Abatement Disclosures. This Statement requires
governments that enter into tax abatement agreements to disclose the following information about the
agreements:

* Brief descriptive information, such as the tax being abated, the authority under which tax abatements
are provided, eligibility criteria, the mechanism by which taxes are abated, provisions for recapturing
abated taxes, and the types of commitments made by tax abatement recipients

" The gross dollar amount of taxes abated during the period

* Commitments made by a government, other than to abate taxes, as part of a tax abatement agreement.

Governments should organize those disclosures by major tax abatement program and may disclose
information for individual tax abatement agreements within those programs.

The City is required to implement the provisions of this Statement for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017
(effective for periods beginning after December 15, 2015). This Statement may result in a change in
current practice, and have a material effect on the financial statements of the City.

CASH AND INVESTMENTS
Statement of Net Position:
Cash and investments $ 10,047,587
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position, excluding S.A. funds:
Cash and investments 2,308,642
Cash with fiscal agents 471,536
Investment in bonds 3,012,000
Statement of Fiduc. Net Position, Priv. Purp. Trust Fund- Successor Agency:
Cash and investments 2,471,868
Cash with fiscal agents 274,095
Total $ 18,585,728
Cash and investments as of June 30, 2015, consist of the following:
Cash on hand $ 1,000
Deposits with financial institutions 1,593,159
Investments 16,991,569
Total $ 18,585,728
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2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS, Continued

Investments Authorized by the California Government Code and the City's Investment Policy

The table below identifies the investment types that are authorized for the City of Clayton by the California
Government Code (or the City's investment policy, where more restrictive). The table also identifies certain
provisions of the California Government Code (or the City's investment policy, where more restrictive) that
address interest rate risk, credit risk, and concentration of credit risk. This table does not address investments
of debt proceeds held by bond trustec that arc governed by the provisions of debt agreements of the City,

rather than the general provisions of the California Government Code or the Agency's investment policy.

Maximum

Maximum Investment
Maximum Percentage of in One
Authorized Investment Type Maturity Portfolio Issuer

Local Agency Investment Fund (State Pool) N/A None $40 million
Money Market Funds N/A None None
U.S. Treasury Obligations 5 years None None
U.S. Government Agency Issues S years 20% None

Insured Deposits with Banks and Savings

and Loans N/A None None
Negotiable Time Certificates of Deposit 5 years None None
Medium Term Corporate Bonds 5 years 20% None

Investments Authorized by Debt Agreements

Investments of debt proceeds held by bond trustees are governed by provisions of the debt agreements,
rather than the general provisions of the California Government Code or the City's investment policy. The
table below identifies the investment types that are authorized for investments held by bond trustees. The
table alsc identifies certain provisions of these debt agreements that address interest rate risk, credit risk, and

concentration of credit risk.

Maximum
Maximum Investment
Maximum Percentage of in One
Authorized Investment Type Maturity Portfolio Issuer
Money Market Mutual Funds N/A N/A N/A
U.S. Government Agency Issues 5 years 20% None
Federal Housing Administration debentures N/A N/A N/A
Commercial paper 92 Days N/A N/A
Demand or time deposits 366 Days N/A N/A

51



City of Clayton
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015

2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS, Continued
Disclosures Relating to Interest Rate Risk

Investment of debt proceeds held by bond trustees are governed by provisions of the debt agreements, rather
than the general provisions of the California Government Code or the City's investment policy. The
Investments are restricted to securities which will by their terms mature not later than the date the Agency
estimates the monies represented by the particular investment will be needed for withdrawal from such fund.
Monies invested in a reserve account shall be invested in Investment Securities which will by their terms
mature prior to the date which is the final maturity date of the bonds.

Remaining Maturity (in Months)

12 Months 13-24 25-36 37-48 49 - 60 More than
Investment Type Totals or Less Months Months Months Months 60 Months
State Investment Pool ~ § 2,194,519 $§ 2,194,519 §$ -3 -3 - $ - $ -
Certificates of Deposit 10,020,518 1,644,989 1,199,719 1,884,251 2,589,673 2,601,886 100,000
Gov’t Agency Notes 999,578 - - - - 399,832 599,746
Held by bond trustees:
Money Market Funds 764,954 764,954 - - - - -
Bonds held in refunding 3,012,000 296,000 316,000 342,000 362,000 383,000 1,313,000

$_ 16,991,569 $ 4,900,462 $ 1,515,719 $ 2226251 $ 2,951,673 $ 3,384,718 $ 2,012,746

Disclosures Relating to Credit Risk

Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of
the investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating
organization. Presented below is the minimum rating required by (where applicable) the California
Government Code, the City's investment policy, or debt agreements, and the actual rating as of fiscal year
end for each investment type.

Minimum Exempt from
Investment Type Legal Rating Disclosure AAA AA A Not Rated

State Investment Pool N/A $ - $ -5 -8 -5 2,194,519
Certificates of Deposit N/A - - - - 10,020,518
Gov’t Agency Notes N/A - - - - 999,578
Held by bond trustees:
Money Market Funds N/A - - - - 764,954
Bonds N/A - - - -
Bonds held in refunding N/A - . - - 3,012,000

Total $ - 8 -5 _ -8 - 8 16,991,569

Concentration of Credit Risk

The investment policy of the City contains limitations on the amount that can be invested in any one issuer.
There are no investments that represent 5% or more of total City investments.
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2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS, Continued
Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial
institution, a government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral
securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk
that, in the event of the failure of the counter party (e.g. broker-dealer) to a transaction, a government will
not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of another
party. The California Government Code and the City's investment policy do not contain legal or policy
requirements that would limit the exposure to custodial credit risk for deposits or investments, other than the
following provision for deposits. The California Government Code requires that a financial institution secure
deposits made by state or local governmental units by pledging securities in an undivided collateral pool
held by a depository regulated under state law (unless so waived by the governmental unit). The fair value of
the pledged securities in the collateral pool must equal at least 110% of the total amount deposited by the
public agencies. California law also allows financial institutions to secure City deposits by pledging first
trust deed mortgage notes having a value of 150% of the secured public deposits.

Investments in State Investment Pool

The City is a voluntary participant in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) that is regulated by the
California Government Code under the oversight of the Treasurer of the State of California. The fair value
of the City's investment in this pool is reported in the accompanying financial statements at amounts based
upon the City's pro-rata share of the fair value provided by LAIF for the entire LAIF portfolio (in relation to
the amortized cost of that portfolio). The balance available for withdrawal is based on the accounting
records maintained by LAIF, which are recorded on an amortized cost basis.

3. NOTES RECEIVABLE

As of June 30, 2015, notes receivable of the General Fund consisted of the following:

Balance at Balance at
Description July 1, 2014 Additions Deletions  June 30, 2015
Oak Street Bridge $ 19,921 § - % (3991 $ 15,930
SA to RDA Retirement Trust Fund 501,899 - - 501,899
SA to LMI RDA Retirement Trust Fund 475,000 - - 475,000
Total $ 996,820 $ - % (3,991 $ 992,829

On June 17, 1999, the former RDA purchased a parcel of land for $475,000, from the City. In exchange for
the parcel of land the former RDA issued a note in the amount of $475,000 to the City. The principal amount
is payable by the Successor Agency on or before January 1, 2023. As of June 30, 2015, the outstanding
balance of the note was $475,000.
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3. NOTES RECEIVABLE, Continued

On July 1, 1987, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 31-87 ordering “2% election” payments to the City
each year by the former RDA as authorized by the H&S Code related to the Clayton Redevelopment Project. The
2% election payments to the City were designed to commence in the fiscal year ending June 30, 1989. During an
examination of the former RDA’s remaining fiscal condition during calendar year 2009, it was discovered by the
former RDA’s staff and its consultant, Seifel Consulting, Inc., that these payments had never been made to the
City. Subsequent review by the County’s Auditor-Controller’s Office confirmed that the former RDA owed the
City an accumulated total of $501,689 in 2% election payments since 1987. The City recognized this note
receivable and the former RDA agreed to pay back this note in four annual installments of $125,475. As of June
30, 2013, the balance due from the Successor Agency is $501,899.

In fiscal year 1999, the General Fund provided $48,310 in funding for a portion of the Oak Street Bridge project
and recorded a note receivable from the Oak Street Bridge Assessment District. The note, which bears interest at
6%, is being paid off over 20 years. As of June 30, 2015, the outstanding balance due to the General Fund was
$15,930.

4. INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS

A. Due To, Due From

At June 30, 2015, the City had the following short-term interfund receivables and payables related to short-term
cash flow borrowings from the General Fund:

DUE FROM

Non-major Endeavor

Governmental Hall
DUE TO Funds Fund Total
General Fund  $ 2,550 $ 35,749 $ 38,299
Total $ 2,550 $ 35749 ¢ 38299

B. Interfund Transfers
At June 30, 2015, the City had the following transfers:

TRANSFERS IN
Landscape Capital Non-major

General Maint  Improvement Gov’tal
TRANSFERS OUT Fund Fund Fund Funds Total
Landscape Maint. Fund $ 33,056 $ - $ - $ 912  § 33,968
Capital Improvement Fund - 259,704 - - 259,704
Non-major Gov’tal Funds 69,018 - 148,975 - 217,993
Community Gym Fund 88,793 - - - 88,793
Total $190.867 $259,704 _$ 148975 § 912  $600.458
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4. INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS, Continued
B. Interfund Transfers (Continued)

The City transferred $102,074 into the General Fund from the following funds: Clayton Landscape
Maintenance Fund ($33,056) and Non-major Governmental Funds ($69,018) to reimburse the City for
administrative expenses. The Community Gym transferred its remaining balance of ($88,793) into the
General Fund upon its discontinuance and merger into the General Fund.

The City transferred $259,704 primarily to return residual funding for the Clayton Road Median Landscape
Project (CIP No. 10430) completed in fiscal year 2012-13 from the Capital Improvement Fund to the
Landscape Maintenance Fund. The City transferred $148,975 from Non-major Governmental Funds into the
Capital Improvement Fund to cover capital improvement project deficits. The City also transferred $912 to
Non-major governmental funds from the Clayton Landscape Maintenance Fund as a reimbursement for
stormwater filing fees.

C. Note payable

On May 10, 2011, the former Redevelopment Agency received a loan from the Low to Moderate Income
Housing Fund in the amount of $592,412 to partially cover a demand from the California Department of
Finance for property tax revenues to K-12 schools during the 2011-12 fiscal year via the Supplemental
Educational Revenue Augmentation Funds (SERAF). The loan is expected to be repaid by the Successor
Agency without interest upon the California Department of Finance approval of the All Other Funds Due
Diligence Review.

This space intentionally left blank.
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5. CAPITAL ASSETS
A. Government-Wide Financial Statements

At June 30, 2015, the City's capital assets consisted of the following:

Business -
Governmental Type
Activities Activities Total

Non depreciable Assets:
Land $ 2,086,965 $ 167,738 § 2,254,703
Construction in progress 51,521 - 51,521
Total non depreciable assets 2,138,486 167,738 2,306,224

Depreciable Assets:

Buildings 5,895,576 1,400,744 7,296,320
Improvements 6,108,657 151,004 6,259,661
Machinery and equipment 1,255,949 5,024 1,260,973
Infrastructure 29,388,794 - 29,388,794
Total depreciable assets 42,648,976 1,556,772 44,205,748
Total accumulated depreciation (16,133,947) (473,829)  (16,607,776)
Depreciable assets, net 26,515,029 1,082,943 27,597,972

Total governmental activities capital assets, net $ 28,653,515 $ 1,250,681 $ 29,904,196

The following is a summary of capital assets for governmental activities:

Balance Transfers & Balance
July 1. 2014 Additions Deletions Adjustments June 30, 2015
Non depreciable Assets:
Land $ 2,086,965 $ -8 -3 -3 2,086,965
Construction in progress 1,400 50,121 - - 51,521
Total non depreciable assets 2,088,365 50,121 - - 2,138,486
Depreciable Assets:
Buildings 5,895,576 - - - 5,895,576
Improvements 5,996,439 112,218 - - 6,108,657
Machinery and equipment 1,216,355 63,224 (23,630) - 1,255,949
Infrastructure 29,388,794 - - - 29,388,794
Total depreciable assets 42,497,164 175,442 (23,630) - 42,648,976
Accumulated depreciation:
Buildings (2,250,384) (117,750) - - (2,368,134)
Improvements (1,704,825) (192,588) - - (1,897,413)
Machinery and Equipment (871,380) (112,061) 23,630 - (959,811)
Infrastructure (10,414,503) (494,086) - (10,908,589)
Total accumulated depreciation _ (15,241,092) (916,485) 23,630 - (16,133,947)
Depreciable asseis, net 27,256,072 (741,043) - - 26,515,029
Total governmental activities
capital assets, net $ 29344437 § (690,922) $ -3 - $ 28,653,515
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5. CAPITAL ASSETS, Continued
A. Government-Wide Financial Statements, Continued

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

General government $ 30,626
Public works 704,489
Public safety 69,309
Internal service 112,061

Total depreciation expense - governmental activities $ 916,485

The following is a summary of capital assets for business-type activities:

Balance Balance
July 1,2014  Additions  Deletions  June 30, 2015

Non depreciable Assets:

Land $ 167,738 $ -$ -3 167,738
Depreciable Assets:
Buildings $ 1,400,744 $ -3 -3 1,400,744
Improvements 151,004 - - 151,004
Machinery & Equipment 5,024 - - 5,024
Total depreciable assets 1,556,772 - - 1,556,772
Accumulated Depreciation (437,762) (36,067) - (473,829)
Depreciable assets, net 1,119,010  (36,067) - 1,082,943
Total business-type activities capital
assets, net $ 1,286,748 $  (36,067) $ -3 1,250,681

Business-type activities depreciation expense for capital assets for the year ended June 30, 2015, was as
follows:

Endeavor hall $ 36,067
Total depreciation expense $ 36,067

B. Fund Financial Statements

The Governmental Fund Financial Statements do not present General Government Capital Assets, which are
shown in the Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to the Government-Wide Statement
of Net Position.

The capital assets of the enterprise funds in the Proprietary Fund Financial Statements are the same as those

shown in the business-type activities of the Government-Wide Financial Statements. Internal Service Funds'
capital assets are combined with governmental activities.
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6. COMPENSATED ABSENCES

Compensated absences include vacation and sick leave. It is the policy of the City to pay 100% of the
capped accumulated vacation leave when a public safety employee retires or terminates, and up to 18
months of a general employee's maximum annual accrual allowed upon the same leave of employment
action. The City recognizes the liability for its compensated absences in the governmental activities. The
foliowing is a summary of compensated absences transactions during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015:

Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Balance
July 1, 2014 (Deletions) June 30, 2015
Compensated Absences $ 131,936 $ 21,998 $ 153,934

7. NON-CITY OBLIGATIONS

Middle School Community Facilities District- Original Issue $6,400.000

Middle School Community Facilities District (CFD) Bonds in the principal amount of $6,400,000 were
issued on September 2, 1990 by the City under the Melllo-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982. Principal
payments are payable on September 2 of each year. Interest payments are payable semi-annually on March 2
and September 2. The bonds are non-city obligations and are secured solely by special assessment revenue
from CFD No. 1990-1. As of June 30, 2015, the outstanding balance of the non-city bond obligation was
$3,012,000.

Clayton Station Community Facilities District- Original Issue $1,269.000

Clayton Station Community Facilities District (CFD) Bonds in the principal amount of $1,269,000 were
issued on September 2, 2000 by the City. Principal payments are payable on September 2 of each year.
Interest payments are payable semi-annually on March 2 and September 2. The bonds are non city
obligations and are secured solely by special assessment revenue from CFD 1990-2. As of June 30, 2015,
the outstanding balance of the non-city bond obligation was $121,000.

Lydia Lane Sewer Assessment District-Original Issue $228.325

Lydia Lane Sewer Assessment District Bonds in the principal amount of $228,325 were issued on August 5,
2002 by the City. Principal payments are payable on September 2 of each year. Interest payments are
payable semi-annually on March 2 and September 2. The bonds are non city obligations and are secured by
sewer assessment district revenue. As of June 30, 2015, the outstanding balance of the non-city bond
obligation was $173,325.
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7. NON-CITY OBLIGATIONS, Continued

Clayton Financing Authority 2007 Special Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds-Original Issue 35,060,000

Refunding bonds were issued on May 17, 2007 by the Clayton Financing Authority in the principal amount
of $5,060,000 to refund the Authority's 1997 Special Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds (the "1997 Bonds"),
finance the acquisition and construction of certain public capital improvements (the Project), establish a
reserve fund for the Bonds (funded part in cash and part from a reserve fund surety bond), and to pay the
costs of issuance of the Bonds. The 1997 Bonds were issued to purchase the CFD 1990-1 local obligations,
which are recovered by special assessment revenues from CFD 1990-1. Principal payments are payable on
September 2 of each year. Interest payments are payable semi-annually on March 2 and September 2. The
bonds are non city obligations and are secured by revenues received by the Authority as the result of the
payment of debt service on the CFD 1990-1 Local Obligations. As of June 30, 2015, the outstanding balance
of the non-city bond obligation was $2,880,000.

8. OTHER FUND DISCLOSURES

A. Expenditures over Appropriations

At June 30, 2015, the Oakhurst Geological Hazard Abatement District Fund, Clayton Development Impact
Fees, and the Street Lighting Revenue Fund had expenditures in excess of appropriations of $6,584;
$11,185; and $4,498, respectively.

B. Deficit Fund Balances

At June 30, 2015, the funds below had the following deficit fund balance or net position:

Amount
Non-major — Stormwater Treatment District $ (2,550)
Total Governmental Funds $  (2,550)

The deficit in the Stormwater Treatment District is expected to be recovered from future revenues.
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9. RISK MANAGEMENT

The City participates in the Municipal Pooling Authority of Northern California (MPA), a joint powers
agreement between twenty cities, which provides insurance coverage for liability, auto, property and
workers' compensation claims. Claims liabilities are accrued when it is probable that a loss has occurred and
the amount of that loss can be reasonably estimated.

The MPA covers claims in an amount up to $29,000,000. The City has a deductible of $5,000 per claim for
liability cases and no deductible for workers' compensation claims. Once the City's deductible is met, the
MPA becomes responsible for payment of all claims and legal defense.

The MPA is governed by a board consisting of one voting representatives from each member municipality.
The Board controls the operations of the MPA including selection of management, approval of operating
budgets, and is independent of any influence by member municipalities beyond their representation on the
Board.

The City's general liability premium payments to the MPA in the amount of $57,833 for fiscal year 2014-
2015 are in accordance with formulas established by the Authority. Actual surpluses or losses are shared
according to a formula developed from overall loss costs and spread to member entities on a percentage
basis after a retrospective rating.

The City has had no settlements which exceeded insurance coverage during fiscal year ending June 30,
2015.

Estimates of incurred, but not reported, liability claims are included in the City's claims estimates and based
upon historical experiences as calculated by the MPA.

10. PENSION PLANS
A. General Information about the Pension Plan

Plan Descriptions — The Plan is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered
by the California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS). A full description of the pension plan
benefit provisions, assumptions for funding purposes but not accounting purposes and membership
information is listed in the June 30, 2013 Annual Actuarial Valuation Report. This report is a publically
available valuation report that can be obtained at CalPERS’ website under Forms and Publications. All
qualified permanent and probationary employees are eligible to participate in the City’s separate Public
Safety (police) and Miscellaneous (all other) Employee Pension Plans, cost-sharing multiple employer
defined benefit pension plans administered by the California Public Employees’ Retirement System
(CalPERS). Benefit provisions under the Plans are established by State statute and City resolution. CalPERS
issues publicly available reports that include a full description of the pension plans regarding benefit
provisions, assumptions and membership information that can be found on the CalPERS website.
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10. PENSION PLANS, Continued

Benefits Provided — CalPERS provides service retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living
adjustments and death benefits to plan members, who must be public employees and beneficiaries. Benefits
are based on years of credited service, equal to one year of full time employment. Members with five years
of total service become vested and are eligible to retire at age 50 with statutorily reduced benefits. All
members are eligible for non-duty disability benefits after 10 years of service. The death benefit is one of the
following: the Basic Death Benefit, the 1957 Survivor Benefit, or the Optional Settlement 2W Death
Benefit. The cost of living adjustments for each plan are applied as specified by the Public Employees’
Retirement Law.

The Plans’ provisions and benefits in effect at June 30, 2015, are summarized as follows:

Miscellaneous

Tier I Tier I1 PEPRA**

Hire date Before 7/1/2010 On or after 7/1/2010 but On or after
before 1/1/2013 1/1/2013
Benefit formula 2% @ 55 2% @ 60 2% @ 62
Benefit vesting schedule 5 years of service 5 years of service 5 years of service
Benefit payments Monthly for life Monthly for life Monthly for life
Minimum retirement age 50 50 52
Monthly benefits, as % of eligible compensation 1.426% - 2.418% 1.092% - 2.418% 1.0% - 2.5%
Required employee contribution rates 7.000% * 7.000% 6.250%
Required employer contribution rates 17.232% 8.005% 6.250%
Public Safety

Tier I Tier I PEPRA**

Hire date Before 7/1/2010 On or after 7/1/2010 but On or after
before 1/1/2013 1/1/2013

Benefit formula 3% @ 55 2% @ 50 2.7% @ 57
Benefit vesting schedule 5 years of service 5 years of service 5 years of service
Benefit payments Monthly for life Monthly for life Monthly for life
Minimum retirement age 50 50 50
Monthly benefits, as % of eligible compensation 2.4%-3.0% 2.0%-2.7% 2.0% -2.7%
Required employee contribution rates 9.000% * 9.000% 11.500%
Required employer contribution rates 39.158% 20.083% 11.500%

* Paid on behalf of employee per labor agreement referred to as "Employee Paid Member Contribution" (EPMC) by CalPERS.
** The California Public Employees’ Reform ACT (PEPRA) was enacted in 2012 and became effective January 1, 2013.

Contributions — Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees’ Retirement Law (PERL) requires that
the employer contribution rates for all public employers be determined on an annual basis by the actuary and
shall be effective on the July 1 following notice of a change in the rate. The total plan contributions are
determined through the CalPERS’ annual actuarial valuation process. The Plan’s actuarially determined rate
is based on the estimated amount necessary to pay the costs of benefits earned by employees during the year,
with an additional amount to pay any unfunded accrued liability. The employer is required to contribute the
difference between the actuarially determined rate and the contribution rate of employees.
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For the measurement period ended June 30, 2014 (the measurement date), the active employee contribution

rate of annual pay, and the average employer’s rate of annual payroll are below:

Miscellaneous Tier 1
Miscellaneous Tier IT
Miscellaneous PEPRA

Public Safety Tier I

Public Safety Tier II

For the year ended June 30, 2015, the contributions recognized as part of pension expense for each Plan

were as follows:

Miscellaneous Tier I
Miscellaneous Tier I1
Miscellaneous PEPRA
Public Safety Tier I
Public Safety Tier II
Public Safety PEPRA

Employer Employee
Contribution Contribution Active

Rates Rates Members
16.445 6.89 13

8.049 6.88 4

6.250 6.308 2

38.16 8.980 7

19.90 8.922 1

Employer-Paid
Member Contributions

Employer (EMPC) Total
228,048 47917 275,965
7,351 - 7,351
225 - 225
328,278 47,471 375,749
22,283 - 22,283
19,906 - 19,906
606,091 95,388 701,479

B. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to

Pensions

The following table shows the Plan’s proportionate share of the risk pool collective net pension liability over

the measurement period:

Balance at: 6/30/13 -
Valuation date $
Balance at: 6/30/14 —
Measurement date

Total Net Pension

Miscellaneous Public Safety
Proportionate Share Proportionate Share
of Net Pension Liability % of Net Pension Liability %
1,858,207 057% $ 2,649,112 .055%
1,494,844 .060% 2,198,550  .059%
(363,363)  .045% 3 (450,562) .044%

Lisbility $
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The City’s net pension liability for each Plan is measured as the proportionate share of the net pension
liability. The net pension liability of each is measured as of June 30, 2014, and the total pension liability for
each Plan used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30,
2013 rolled forward to June 30, 2014 using standard update procedures. The City’s proportion of the net
pension liability was based on a projection of the City’s long-term share of contributions to the pension
plans relative to the projected contributions of all participating employers, actuarially determined.

For the year ended June 30, 2015, the City recognized pension expense of $356,560 (Public Safety -
$213,080 and Miscellaneous - $143,481) based on the measurement period ended June 30, 2014 for the
Plan. At June 30, 2014, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred

Outflows Inflows
of Resources of Resources
Pension contributions subsequent to measurement date $ 471,130 $ -

Net differences between projected and actual earnings on

pension plan investments - (805,928)
Adjustment due to differences in proportions - (39,544)
Total $ 471,130 $ (845,472)

$471,130 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to contributions subsequent to the measurement
date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2016
(measurement period ended June 30, 2015). Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized as pension expense as follows:

Measurement Period Deferred

Ended June 30 Outflows/(Inflows) of
Resources

2015 $ (215,604)

2016 (215,604)

2017 (212,782)

2018 (201,482)

2019 -

Thereafter =

The amounts above are the net of outflows and inflows recognized in the fiscal 2014 measurement period.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions Used to Determine Total Pension Liability — For the measurement
period ending June 30, 2014 (the measurement date), the total pension liability was determined by rolling
forward the June 30, 2013 total pension liability. Both the June 30, 2013 total pension liability and the June
30, 2014 total pension liability were determined using the following actuarial methods and assumptions:
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Miscellaneous Public Safety

Valuation Date June 30, 2013 June 30, 2013
Measurement Date June 30, 2014 June 30, 2014
Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal Entry Age Normal
Actuarial Assumptions:

Discount Rate 7.50% 7.50%

Inflation 2.75% 2.75%

Payroll Growth 3.00% 3.00%

Depending on age,
service, and type of

Depending on age,
service, and type of

Projected Salary Increase

employment employment

Investment Rate of return 7.5% 1) 7.5%

Mortality Rate Table Derived using Derived using
CalPERS’ Membership CalPERS’ Membership
Data for all Funds (2) Data for all Funds

Post Retirement Benefit Increase  Contract COLA up to Contract COLA up to
2.75% until Purchasing 2.75% until Purchasing
Power Protection Power Protection

Allowance Floor on
Purchasing Power
applies. 2.75% thereafter

Allowance Floor on
Purchasing Power
applies. 2.75% thereafter

(1) Net of pension plan investment and administrative expenses; including inflation

(2) The mortality table used was developed based on CalPERS’ specific data. The table
includes 20 years of mortality improvements using Society of Actuaries Scale BB. For
more details on this table, please refer to the 2014 experience study report. The experience
study can be found on the CalPERS website under Forms and Publications..

Discount Rate — The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.50%. To determine
whether the municipal bond rate should be used in the calculation of a discount rate for each plan, CalPERS
stress tested plans that would most likely result in a discount rate that would be different from the actuarially
assumed discount rate. Based on the testing, none of the tested plans run out of assets. Therefore, the current
7.50 percent discount rate is adequate and the use of the municipal bond rate calculation is not necessary.
The long term expected discount rate of 7.50 percent will be applied to all plans in the Public Employees
Retirement Fund (PERF). The stress test results are presented in a detailed report that can be obtained from
the CalPERS website.

According to Paragraph 30 of Statement 68, the long-term discount rate should be determined without
reduction for pension plan administrative expense. The 7.50 percent investment return assumption used in
this accounting valuation is net of administrative expenses. Administrative expenses are assumed to be 15
basis points. An investment return excluding administrative expenses would have been 7.65 percent. Using
this lower discount rate has resulted in a slightly higher total pension liability and net pension liability.
CalPERS checked the materiality threshold for the difference in calculation and did not find it to be a
material difference.
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CalPERS is scheduled to review all actuarial assumptions as part of its regular Asset Liability Management
(ALM) review cycle that is scheduled to be completed in February 2018. Any changes to the discount rate
will require Board action and proper stakeholder outreach. For these reasons, CalPERS expects to continue
using a discount rate net of administrative expenses for GASB 67 and 68 calculations through at least the
2017-18 fiscal year. CalPERS will continue to check the materiality of the difference in caiculation untii
such time as we have changed our methodology.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block
method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension
plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.

In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took into account both short-term and long-
term market return expectations as well as the expected pension fund cash flows. Using historical returns of
all the funds’ asset classes, expected compound returns were calculated over the short-term (first 10 years)
and the long-term (11-60 years) using a building-block approach. Using the expected nominal returns for
both short-term and long-term, the present value of benefits was calculated for each fund. The expected rate
of return was set by calculating the single equivalent expected return that arrived at the same present value
of benefits for cash flows as the one calculated using both short-term and long-term returns. The expected
rate of return was then set equivalent to the single equivalent rate calculated above and rounded down to the
nearest one quarter of one percent.

The table below reflects the long-term expected real rate of return by asset class. The rate of return was
calculated using the capital market assumptions applied to determine the discount rate and asset allocation.
These rates of return are net of administrative expenses.

New Strategic Real Return Years 1 - Real Return Years
Asset Class Allocation 10 (a) 11+ (b)
Global Equity 47.0% 5.25% 5.71%
Global Fixed Income 19.0% .99% 2.43%
Inflation Sensitive 6.0% 45% 3.36%
Private Equity 12.0% 6.83% 6.95%
Real Estate 11.0% 4.50% 5.13%
Infrastructure and Forestland 3.0% 4.50% 5.09%
Liquidity 2.0% -0.55% -1.05%
Total 100%

{(a) An expected inflation of 2.5% used for this period.
(b) An expected inflation of 3.0% used for this period.
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Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate — The
following presents the City’s proportionate share of the net pension liability, calculated using the discount
rate of 7.50 percent, as well as what the City’s proportionate share of the net pension liability/(asset) would
be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower (6.50%) or 1-percentage point
higher (8.50%) than the current rate:

Miscellaneous Public Safety
1% Decrease 6.50% 6.50%
Net Pension Liability 2,380,276 3,368,095
Current Discount Rate 7.50% 7.50%
Net Pension Liability 1,494,844 2,198,550
1% Increase 8.50% 8.50%
Net Pension Liability 760,021 1,234,895

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position — Detailed information about each pension plan’s fiduciary net
position is available in the separately issued CalPERS financial reports.

C. Payable to the Pension Plan

At June 30, 2015, the City reported a payable of $6,655 for the outstanding amount of contributions to the
pension plan required for the year ended June 30, 2015.

11. POST EMPLOYMENT HEALTH CARE BENEFITS

Plan Description - The City of Clayton Retired Employee Health Care Program is a single-employer defined
benefit healthcare program administered by the City of Clayton. The Program offers medical only (no
dental) insurance benefits to eligible retirees and their families through the same self-insured program
coverage to active City employees. In connection with this, the City has established a plan to provide post-
employment benefits other than pensions as defined in section 7500-7514.5 of the California Public
Employees' Retirement Law.

Separate stand-alone statements are not issued for this plan.
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Funding Policy - The contribution requirements of plan members and the City are established and may be
amended by the City Council. The required contribution is based on projected pay-as-you-go financing
requirements, with the potential for additional amounts to pre fund benefits as determined annually by the
City Council. Currently the City pays the Public Employee’s Medical and Capital Care Act (PEMHCA)
minimum employer contribution which is $103.70 per month as of June 30, 2015. For Fiscal Year 2015,
there were six retired employees receiving retiree premium benefits. Retirees’ contributions totaled $24,902
(78% of the total) monthly contributions. The City contributed retiree premiums of $7,160 (22% of the total)
and there was no additional pre funding contribution.

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation - The City's annual other post employment benefit (OPEB)
cost is calculated based on the annual required contribution of the employer (ARC), an amount actuarially
determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement 45. The ARC represents a level of
funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any
unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed thirty years.

The following table shows the components of the City's OPEB cost for the year, the amount actually
contributed to the plan, and the changes in the City's OPEB obligation for the program:

Annual Required Contribution (ARC) $ 45,457
Interest on net OPEB obligation 3,520
Adjustment to ARC (5,250)
Annual OPEB Cost 43,727
Contributions made by the City (7,160)
Contributions made by retirees (24,902)
Total Contributions (32,062)
Increase (decrease) in net OPEB obligation 11,665
Net OPEB obligation (asset) as of July 1, 2014 87,991
Net OPEB obligation (asset) as of June 30, 2015 $ 99,656

The City’s annual OPEB cost was $43,727 resulting in a net OPEB obligation of $99,656. The fiscal year
ended June 30, 2010 was the first year for which an actuarially determined ARC of $50,667 was calculated
for the City of Clayton Retired Employees Health Care Program. The total implied subsidies for the years
ended June 30, 2015 and 2014 were $32,062 and $30,251, respectively.

Funded Status and Funding Progress- The City's actuarial Accrued Liability (AAL) and unfunded Actuarial
Accrued Liability (UAAL) is $428,065, which is 20% of the $2,187,737 City payroll. There are no plan
assets and as of June 30, 2015, since the OPEB trust has not yet been set up.

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions
about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about future
employment, mortality, and healthcare cost trends. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the
plan and the annual required contributions of the employer are subject to revision every three years.
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Actuarial Methods and Assumptions- The City of Clayton, in accordance with GASB 45, employed the
Alternative Measurement Method to determine the OPEB obligation. Projections of benefits for financial
reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan as understood by the employer and the plan
members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time valuation.

In the July 1, 2012 actuarial valuation, the Entry Age Normal method was used. The actuarial assumptions
included a 4.0% investment rate of return, and an annual healthcare cost increase rate of 7% initially,
reduced ultimately to 5% by 2023. The UAAL is being amortized using the level dollar method and an
amortization period of 30 years.

12. REDEVELOPMENT SUCCESSOR AGENCY ACTIVITIES

This purpose of this footnote is to explain the impacts of the dissolution of the Redevelopment Agency on

- .
the City's financial statements.

On June 28, 2011, the California State Legislature adopted two pieces of legislation - AB IX 26 and AB IX
27 (the Bill) - that eliminated redevelopment agencies and provided cities with the opportunity to preserve
their redevelopment agency if they agreed to make certain payments to the County Auditor Controller. On
behalf of cities and redevelopment agencies throughout the State, the League of California Cities and
California Redevelopment Association requested a stay on the implementation of both pieces of legislation
and filed a lawsuit with the California Supreme Court challenging both pieces of legislation. The stay was
rejected and on December 29, 2011, the Supreme Court validated AB IX 26 and overturned AB IX 27.
Further, the Supreme Court indicated that all redevelopment agencies in the State of California were to be
dissolved and cease operations as a legal entity as of February 1, 2012.

Under the new law, redevelopment agencies in the State of California cannot enter into new projects, obligations, or
commitments. Subject to the control of a newly established oversight board, remaining assets can only be used to pay
enforceable obligations in existence at the date of dissolution (including the completion of any unfinished project that
were subject to legally enforceable contractual commitments).

In future fiscal years, successor agencies will only be allocated revenue in the amount that is necessary to pay the
estimated annual installment payments on enforceable obligations of the former redevelopment agency until all
enforceable obligations of the prior redevelopment agency have been paid in full and all assets have been liquidated.

The Bill directs the California State Controller to review the propriety of any transfers of assets between
redevelopment agencies and other public bodies that occurred after January 1, 2011. If the public body that received
such transfers is not contractually committed to a third party for the expenditure or encumbrance of those assets, the
State Controller is required to order the available assets to be transferred to the public body designated as the
Successor Agency by the Bill.

Amongst numerous requirements, AB IX 26 requires the following:
1. subject to the control of a newly established oversight board, assets of the former redevelopment agency must
be disposed expeditiously and property tax revenue generated by a former redevelopment agency can only be
used to pay enforceable obligations (i.e. debt obligations and other third party contractual obligations);
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ii. either the city or another unit of local government may agree to serve as the “Successor Agency” to hold the net
position until they are distributed to units of state and local government;

iiil. successor agencies may transfer housing functions of the former redevelopment agency to the appropriate
entity; and

1v. any property tax revenue in excess of enforceable obligations is to be distributed by county auditor controllers to
taxing entities, which includes the City, as surplus property tax.

As a result of the restrictions placed on the assets and liabilities of the former redevelopment agency, they were
transferred to a private purpose trust fund on February 1, 2012. Prior to the transfer, the
Redevelopment Agency was treated as a blended component unit in fiscal year 2011 — 2012. On January 11,
2012, the City Council elected to become the Successor Agency to the former Redevelopment Agency in
accordance with AB IX 26 as part of City resolution number 03-2012.

Subsequent to the adoption of AB IX 26 and AB IX 27, the California State Legislature adopted AB 1484 in
June 2012. Among other things, AB 1484 required the following:

i. A process to transfer housing assets of the former redevelopment agency to the entity designated to
receive these assets. In the case of the City, assets with a total value of $14,057,320 and liabilities
with a total value of $10,999,595 were transferred to the Successor Agency from the former
Redevelopment Agency.

ii. Requirements that the Successor Agency must complete reviews (Due Diligence Reviews) of the
assets of the former Low and Moderate Income Housing Fund and all other funds of the former
redevelopment agency. The Due Diligence Reviews of the Clayton Successor Agency were finalized
and approved by the Oversight Board on October 9, 2014 via Resolution No. 2014-04 and 2014-05.
These reports concluded that payments of $887,404 and $3,791,725 are required to be remitted to
Contra Costa County by the Redevelopment Successor Agency and Successor Housing Agency
respectively.

iii. Upon the California Department of Finance’s approval of the Due Diligence Reviews, and the
distribution of unobligated funds, the Successor Agency can apply for a Finding of Completion. The
Finding of Completion enables the Successor Agency to transfer and sell land and buildings of the
former Redevelopment Agency, subject to the review and approval of a Property Management Plan
by the State Department of Finance. In addition by receiving the Finding of Completion, the City
may establish loans between the City and the former Redevelopment Agency as enforceable
obligations. As noted previously, as of the date of this report, the City’s Due Diligence Reviews had
not been finalized.
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A.  Successor Agency Assets and Liabilities

Cash and Investments

The total cash and investments balance of $2,471,868 is presented in a format consistent with GASB 31 and
is presented at fair value. Under AB IX 26 and AB 1484, all unencumbered cash balances have been
previously distributed to the County Auditor Controller for distribution to taxing entitles. See Note 4 for
further information and disclosures regarding the City’s pooled cash and investments.

Restricted Cash and Investments

$274,095 represents cash and investments held by fiscal agents at June 30, 2015 , which has been designated
for debt service payments.

B. Loans To Other Funds

Notes Receivable transferred from former RDA to Successor Agency, effective February 1, 2012:

The former RDA provided assistance to special assessment districts within the City, to fund repairs and
improvements. The High Street Permanent Road Division and Oak Street Sewer Assessment District
received loans from the former RDA to finance necessary infrastructure improvements. These loans are
secured by special assessment property tax levies within the District’s boundaries. As of June 30, 2015, the
outstanding balance of the loans due to the Successor Agency was $139,384.

On September 21, 1999, the former RDA made a loan to the Professional Apartment Management, Inc.
("PAM") in the amount of $750,000, at a non-interest bearing rate, to construct and develop an affordable
senior assisted living center on the site known as "Diamond Terrace." The note is secured by the Deed of
Trust. The former RDA loaned an additional $1,286,000 on October 24, 2001. On December 1, 2003, PAM
began drawing on a $2,000,000 loan from the former RDA in the amount of $200,000 annually. The
principal balance is payable commencing on October 1, 2005 through October 1, 2030. As of June 30, 2015,
the outstanding balance of the loan due to the Successor Agency was $3,397,000.

On October 13, 1992, the former RDA made a loan to the Peace Grove, Inc. in the amount of $567,000, at a
non-interest bearing rate, for the purchase of land for a redevelopment and housing project for low-income
mental health system clients. The loan is secured by the Deed of Trust. The principal balance is payable on
December 18, 2052. As of June 30, 2015, the outstanding balance of the loan due to the Successor Agency
was $567,000.

The former RDA participated in a second mortgage assistance program, whereby qualified applicants
are loaned money for a "silent second" down payment to purchase a home in the Stranahan
Development within the City. There are seven individual loans outstanding. As of June 30, 2015, the
outstanding balance of the loans due to the Successor Agency was $156,800.
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C. Due To the City Of Clayton

On June 17, 1999, the former RDA purchased a parcel of land for $475,000, from the City. In exchange for
the parcel of land the former RDA issued a note in the amount of $475,000 to the City. The principal amount
is payable by the Successor Agency on or before January 1, 2023. As of June 30, 2015, the outstanding
balance of the note was $475,000.

On February 16, 2010, the former RDA recognized a debt incurred from 1987 through 2009 which was
owed to the City in the amount of $501,899. The debt resulted from the former RDA omitting payment to
the City of an annual 2% election payment for twenty-one fiscal years. The City recognized this note
receivable and the former RDA agreed to pay back this note in four annual installments of $125,475. As of
June 30, 2015, the balance due from the Successor Agency is $501,899.

D. Advance From LMI Fund

On May 10, 2011, the former Redevelopment Agency received a loan from the Low to Moderate Income
Housing Fund in the amount of $592,412 to partially cover a demand from the California Department of
Finance (DOF) for property tax revenues to K-12 schools during the 2011-12 fiscal year via the
Supplemental Educational Revenue Augmentation Funds (SERAF). The loan balance is currently being
reported on the required obligation payment schedules (ROPS) as an enforceable obligation to be repaid
upon the “Successor Agency’s™ receipt of a notice of completion.

E. Long-Term Debt
The following is a summary of changes in long-term debt transactions for the year ended June 30, 2015:

Balance Additions/ Balance Due within Due in more
June 30, 2014 (Deletions) June 30, 2015 One Year  than One Year

2014 Refunding Tax
Allocation Bonds $ 3,790,000 $ - $§ 3,790,000 $ 325000 $ 3,465,000
Total $ 3,790,000 $ - $ 3,790,000 $ 325000 $ 3,465,000

2014 Refunding Tax Allocation Bonds

Refunding Tax Allocation Bonds, Series 2014, in the principal amount of $3,790,000 were issued on June
25,2014 by the Successor Agency. Principal payments are payable on August 1 of each year, beginning on
August 1, 2015. Interest payments are payable semi-annually on February 1 and August 1. The bonds are
special obligations of the Successor Agency and are secured by the Successor Agency’s tax increment
revenue.

The 2014 refunding was exercised in order to take advantage of more favorable interest rates. The
refunding decreased the City’s total debt service payments by approximately $601,895. The transaction
resulted in economic gain (difference between present value of the debt service on the old and new
bonds) of approximately $580,184.
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The annual debt service requirements to amortize the Successor Agency’s 2014 Refunding Tax Allocation
Bonds outstanding at June 30, 2015, were as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending
June 30, Principal Interest Total
2016 $ 325,000 $ 83433 $ 408,433
2017 330,000 75,900 405,900
2018 395,000 67,563 462,563
2019 400,000 58,420 458,420
2020 415,000 49,048 464,048
2021-2025 1,925,000 109,766 2,034,766
Total $ 3,790,000 $ 444,130 $ 4,234,130

13. CONTINGENCIES

The City is a defendant in claims which have arisen in the normal course of business. While substantial
damages are alleged in some of these actions, their outcome cannot be predicted with certainty. In the
opinion of the City Attorney, these actions, when finally adjudicated, will not have a material adverse effect
on the financial position of the City.

Pursuant to California Health and Safety Code section 34167.5, the California State Controller’s Office
(SCO) conducted a review of all asset transfers made by the former City of Clayton Redevelopment Agency
(RDA) to the City after January 1, 2011. The SCO issued their final Asset Transfer Review Report on
December 23, 2014, concluding a total of $200,000 in previously transferred assets is required to be remitted
from the City of Clayton to the Successor Agency.

On March 13, 2015 the Oversight Board to the Clayton Successor Agency adopted Resolutions 03-2015 and
04-2015 approving the Due Diligence Review (DDR) reports of the former Low and Moderate Income
(LMI) Housing Fund AND All Other Funds of the former RDA to remit payments of $3,679,225 in LMI and
$550,396 in non-housing former RDA funds to the Contra Costa County Auditor-Controller for distribution
to the affected taxing entities. On March 19, 2015 the City submitted the Successor Agency Oversight
Board-authorized AB 1484 DDR reports for the former RDA’s housing and non-housing funds to the
California Department of Finance (DOF). On April 24, 2015, the City received the Final Determination
Letter from the DOF, which approved the Low-Moderate Income (LMI) Housing Funds DDR report “as is”
and ordered the release of the “unencumbered” balance of housing funds to the County totaling $3,679,225
within 5 business days. Of this balance, $62,500 pertained to the amount ordered to be repaid from the
General Fund to the Successor Housing Agency. In accordance with the demand letter and as no
modifications were noted, the City remitted this payment to the Contra Costa County Auditor-Controller’s
Office on May 1, 2015.
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An extraordinary loss of $200,000, equal to the amount reported in the SCO Asset Transfer Review Report,
is reported in the General Fund for the year ended June 30, 2015. Of this extraordinary loss, $137,500
pertains to an accrued loss from the General Fund to the Successor Agency for non-housing former RDA
asset transfers. As the DOF’s determination letter dated October 28, 2015, the All Other Funds DDR is still
being contested pursuant to the DOF’s administrative Meet and Confer process as of the date of this report,

$137,500 is considered to be the most probable loss as this amount is both known and not being contested by
the City

vy .

14. PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT

A prior period adjustment of $4,182,306 was made to decrease the governmental activities’ beginning net
position. The adjustment was made to reflect the prior period costs related to the implementation of the net
pension liability.

The restatement of beginning net position of the governmental activities is summarized as follows:

Net position at July 1, 2014, as previously stated $ 39,121,684
Net pension liability adjustment (4,182,306)
Net position at July 1, 2014, as restated $ 34,939,378

15. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Management has evaluated subsequent events through October 29, 2015, the date on which the financial
statements were available to be issued.

This City of Clayton received a determination letter from the California Department of Finance (the “DOF”)
on October 28, 2015 summarizing the results of the state’s review of the City’s All Other Funds due
diligence review (the “DDR”) pursuant to AB 1484. Pursuant to the letter, the DOF ordered adjustments to
the DDR increasing the obligation owed from the Successor Agency to Contra Costa County by $705,983 to
a revised total of $1,256,379. The adjustments to the DDR report outlined in the letter, if enforceable, would
also result in an increase to the General Fund’s obligation to the Successor Agency for the All Other Funds
DDR by $230,983 to a revised total of $368,483. As of the year ended June 30, 2015, the extraordinary loss
reported in the General Fund reflects, in part, the amount reported in the final in the All Other Funds DDR
approved by the Successor Agency Oversight Board on March 6, 2015, or $137,500. Management of the
City disagrees with certain conclusions reached by the DOF in the letter and intends to file a Meet and
Confer pursuant to AB 1484 to dispute some of the findings. The final obligation owed from the Successor
Agency to Contra Costa County will be determinable after the Meet and Confer and, if necessary, all legal
options of the Successor Agency and City have been exhausted. It is expected the final payment will be
remitted sometime in the next fiscal year ending June 30, 2016 although the final amount is indeterminable
at this time.
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City of Clayton

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015

16. FUND BALANCES

In the governmental funds, the segregate portions of fund balances are presented as follows for the fiscal

year ended June 30, 2015:
Landscape Capital Non-major
Fund Balance Classifications General Fund  Maintenance  Improvement funds Totai
Non-spendable:
Notes receivable $ 1,015,198 $ -3 - 8 - $1,015,198
Prepaid expenses 14,179 - - - 14,179
Total Non-spendable Fund Balance 1,029,377 - - - 1,029,377
Restricted for:
Transportation - - - 33,164 33,164
Stormwater unfunded mandates - - - 65,651 65,651
Streetlighting - - . 125,957 125,957
Landscaping = 528,078 - - 528,078
Parks - - - 228,381 228,381
Grant funded programs - - - 292,676 292,676
Hazard prevention and repair - - - 29,174 29,174
Total Restricted Fund Balance - 528,078 - 775,003 1,303,081
Committed for: -
Geological hazard prevention and repair - - - 120,583 120,583
Development impact - - - 600,529 600,529
Total Committed Fund Balance - - - 721,112 721,112
Assigned for:
FY 2014-15 budget - 288,124 - 1,012,923 1,301,047
Capital projects - - 2,008,088 - 2,008,088
Total Assigned Fund Balance - 288,124 2,008,088 1,012,923 3,309,135
Unassigned 4,509,255 - - (2,550) 4,506,705
Total Fund Balance $ 5,538,632 § 816,202 § 2,008,088 $2,506,488 $ 10,869,410
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City of Clayton
Required Supplementary Information
June 30, 2015

1. PENSION AND OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

This information is intended to help users assess the City’s Pension and Other Postemployment Benefits
(OPEB) plan’s status on a going-concern basis, assess progress made in accumulating assets to pay
benefits when due, and make comparisons with other public employers.

2. BUDGETARY PRINCIPLES

The City follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial
statements:

* By June 30, the City Manager submits to the City Council a proposed operating budget for the
year commencing July 1. The operating budget includes proposed expenditures and the means of
financing them. Continuing appropriations are re-budgeted by the City Council as part of the
adoption of subsequent year's budgets.

 Public hearings are conducted to obtain taxpayer comments.

* The budget is legally enacted through passage of a resolution during a City Council meeting in
the month of June.

 The City Manager is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts within an activity, within any fund,;
however, any revisions that alter the total expenditures of any fund must be approved by the City
Council.

¢ Formal budgeting is employed as a management control device during the year for the general,
certain special revenue and debt service funds. The Presley Settlement, Stormwater Treatment
District Assessment, and Clayton Development Impact Fees funds are not budgeted for and thus
do not have budget to actual comparison statements.

* Budgets for the general, certain special revenue and debt service funds are adopted on a basis
consistent with generally accepted accounting principles (US GAAP).

* Budgets for capital projects funds are adopted on a project-life basis.

Budgeted amounts are as originally adopted or as amended by the City Council. Budget amendments
were not material in relation to the original appropriations.

Under encumbrance accounting, purchase orders, contracts and other commitments for expenditures are
recorded to reserve that portion of the applicable appropriation. Encumbrance accounting is employed as
an extension of formal budgetary accounting. Since encumbrances do not yet constitute expenditures or
liabilities, encumbrances outstanding at year-end are reported as reservations of fund balances.
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City of Clayton
Required Supplementary Information
Pension Plans — Last 10 Years*
June 30, 2015

Schedule of the City’s Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability

Miscellaneous Miscellaneous Miscellaneous
Tier I Tier I1 PEPRA
/30/14 6/30/14 6/30/14
Plan’s Proportion of the Net Pension
Liability/(Asset) 0.024% 0.00002% 0.00000%
Plan’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension
Liability/(Asset) $ 1,493,574 $ 1,190 $80
Plan’s Covered-Employec Payroll $ 923,757 $ 166,035 $43,276

Plan’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension

Liability/(Asset) as a Percentage of its

Covered-Employee Payroll 161.68% 12% 18%
Plan’s Proportionate Share of the Fiduciary

Net Position as a Percentage of the Plan’s

Total Pension Liability 77.60% 83.02% 83.01%

Plan’s Proportionate Share of Aggregate

Employer Contributions $ 139,893 $ 157 $11
Public Public
Safety Safety
Tier 1 Tierll

6/30/14' 6/30/14

Plan’s Proportion of the Net Pension Liability/(Asset) 0.03524% 0.00010%

Plan’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability/(Asset) $2,192,623 $5,927

Plan’s Covered-Employee Payroll? $651,853 $178,133

Plan’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability/(Asset) as a

Percentage of its Covered-Employee Payroll 336.37% 3.33%

Plan’s Proportionate Share of the Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage

of the Plan’s Total Pension Liability 74.80% 81.42%

Plan’s Proportionate Share of Aggregate Employer Contributions™* $184,217 $735

* Amounts presented above are for the only year available for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015.
Additional years will be presented as they become available.

" Historical information is required only for measurement periods for which GASB 68 is applicable

: Covered-employee payroll represented above is based on pensionable earnings provided by the employer.

3 The plan’s proportionate share of aggregate contributions may not match the actual contributions made by the employer
during the measurement period. The plan’s proportionate share of aggregate contributions is based on the plan’s proportion of
fiduciary net position shown on line 5 of the table above.

* This data is not required to be displayed by GASB 68 for employers participating in cost-sharing plans, but it is being

shown here because it is used in the calculation of the Plan’s pension expense.
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City of Clayton

Required Supplementary Information
Pension Pians — Last 10 Years*

June 30, 2015

Schedule of the City’s Contributions’

Miscellaneous Miscellaneous Miscellaneous
Tier I Tier II PEPRA
6/30/14 6/30/14 6/30/14
Actuarially determined contribution’ 123,783 15,920 5,453
Contributions in Relation to the Actuarially
Determined Contribution’ (123,783) (15,920) (5,453)
Contribution Deficiency (Excess) - - -
Covered-Employee Payroll>* $923,757 $166,035 $43,276
Contributions as a Percentage of Covered-
Employee Payroll 13.40% 9.59% 12.60%
Public Safety Public Safety
Tier I Tier I1
6/30/14 6/30/14
Actuarially determined contribution® 233,706 32,963
Contributions in Relation to the Actuarially Determined
Contribution’ (233,706) (32,963)
Contribution Deficiency (Excess) - -
Covered-Employee Payrol] 7 $651,853 $178,133
Contributions as a Percentage of Covered-
Employee Payroll 35.85% 18.50%

*Amounts presented above are for the only year available for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015.

Additional years will be presented as they become available.

3 Historical information is required only for measurement periods for which GASB No. 68 is applicable.

¢ Employers are assumed to make contributions equal to the actuarially determined contributions.

7 Covered-employee payroll represented above is based on pensionable earnings provided by the employer.
Payroll from prior year ($896,851 miscellaneous and $632,632 public safety) was assumed to increase by the 3.0 % payroll

8

growth assumption.
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City of Clayton
Required Supplementary Information
Other Postemployment Benefit Plan — Schedule of Funding Progress

June 30, 2015
Entry Age UAAL asa
Actuarial Actuarial Unfunded Percentage of
Actuarial Value of Accrued AAL Funded Covered Covered
Valuation Assets Liability (AAL)  (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
Date (a) (b) (b—a) (a/b) (c) ((b—a)/c)
6/30/2010 -3 400,257 $ 400,257  0.0% $2,063,079 19%
6/30/2013 - 428,065 428,065 0.0% 1,934,929 22%
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City of Clayton

Required Supplementary Information
Budgetary Comparison Schedule
General Fund

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015

REVENUES

Property taxes

Program income

Sales tax

Permits, licenses and fees
Fines, forfeitures and penalties
From other agencies
Motor vehicle in-lieu fees
Other in-lieu fees
Franchise fees

Service charges

Use of money and property
Other revenue

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

General government

Public works

Parks and recreation services
Community and economic development
Public safety

TOTAL EXPENDITURES
REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers in
Transfers out

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Net Change
Extraordinary gain (loss) on RDA settlement

Change in fund balances
FUND BALANCES:
Beginning of year

End of year

Variance from
Final Budget

Adopted Final Favorable
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
$1,917,190 $1,917,190 $2,302,278 $ 385,088
10,710 10,710 10,063 (647)
358,420 358,420 397,544 39,124
239,127 239,127 264,764 25,637
72,710 72,710 72,635 (75)
80,430 80,430 107,724 27,294
4,700 4,700 4,590 (110)
151,816 151,816 151,816 -
522,500 522,500 501,597 (20,903)
363,585 363,585 366,080 2,495
37,600 37,600 39,186 1,586
18,700 18,700 22,574 3,874
3,777,488 3,777,488 4,240,851 463,363
982,363 982,363 1,018,852 (36,489)
180,885 180,885 167,282 13,603
409,855 409,855 349,862 59,993
372,314 372,314 379,348 (7,034)
1,906,858 1,906,858 1,926,479 (19,621)
3,852,275 3,852,275 3,841,823 10,452
(74,787) (74,787) 399,028 473,815
102,073 102,073 190,867 88,794
102,073 102,073 190,867 88,794
$ 27,286 $ 27,286 589,895 $ 562,609
(200,000)
389,895
5,148,737
$5,538,632
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City of Clayton

Required Supplementary Information
Budgetary Comparison Schedule
Capital Improvements Fund

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015

Variance from

Final Budget
Favorable
Final Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
REVENUES
From other agencies $ 385,000 $ - $ (385,000)
Use of money and property - 16,929 16,929
Other revenue 18,270 1,557 (16,713)
TOTAL REVENUES 403,270 18,486 (384,784)
EXPENDITURES
Capital outlay 1,170,041 62,639 1,107,402
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,170,041 62,639 1,107,402
REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES (766,771) (44,153) 722,618
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 837,231 148,975 (688,256)
Transfers out - (259,705) (259,705)
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 837,231 (110,730) (947,961)
REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES
AND OTHER FINANCING USES $ 70,460 (154,883) $ (225,343)
FUND BALANCES:
Beginning of year 2,162,971
End of year $ 2,008,088
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City of Clayton
Required Supplementary Information
Budgetary Comparison Schedule

Clayton Landscape Maintenance Special Revenue Fund

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015

REVENUES

Special Assessments
Use of money and property
Other revenue

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

Public works
Capital outlay

TOTAL EXPENDITURES
REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SQURCES (USES)

Transfer in
Transfers out

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES
AND OTHER FINANCING USES

FUND BALANCES:
Beginning of year

End of year
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Variance from

Final Budget
Favorable
Final Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
$ 1,005,224 $ 1,005,309 $ 85
4,000 6,504 2,504
1,009,224 1,011,813 2,589
843,789 719,921 123,868
207,000 41,588 165,412
1,050,789 761,509 289,280
(41,565) 250,304 291,869
- 259,704 259,704
(33,968) (33,968) -
(33,968) 225,736 259,704
$  (75,533) 476,040 § 551,573
340,162
S_816202



NON-MAJOR
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Non-Major Special Revenue Funds:

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for revenues derived from specific revenue sources. These
funds are required by State statute or ordinance to finance particular functions or activities of
government. The City's various non-major special revenue funds are:

Street Lighting - accounts for assessments collected to maintain residential strect lighting.

Stormwater Treatment District Assessment Fund - this fund was formed to provide a mechanism
for the levying of private development (property) benefit assessments to fund the cost of
inspections, maintenance and capital improvements related to the stormwater treatment
requirements imposed upon the City by the Regional Water Quality Control Board as part of the
City's General Stormwater Discharge Permit.

Stormwater Assessment - accounts for real property assessments collected to comply with the
National Pollution Discharge Elimination System.

Presley Settlement - accounts for litigation settlement received for specific programs and projects.

Oakhurst Geological Hazard Abatement District - accounts for voter-approved real property
assessments collected from Oakhurst parcels to provide preventive maintenance measures within
the district to mitigate potential landslides and other hazardous geological conditions within the
district.

Measure J Fund - accounts for a $0.05 sales tax extended by voters in 2004 to provide
transportation and street improvements, a growth management process, and a regional planning
process to address quality of life issues. A portion of their county wide voter-approved tax is
returned to local governments.

Grants - accounts for grants received for specific programs and projects.

Clayton Development Impact Fees Fund - accounts for projects funded with the Development
Impact Fees.

Gas Tax Fund - accounts for taxes raised under Street and Highway Code Sections 2106, 2107 and
2107.5, used for the maintenance and construction of City streets.

Downtown Park CFD Fund - accounts for voter-approved real property assessments collected to
operate, maintain, repair and replace landscaping, irrigation, hardscape, lights, public restroom,
gazebo, and playground equipment.
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Capital Projects Funds:

Capital Projects Funds are used to account for financial resources to be used for the acquisition or
construction of major capital facilities other than those financed by proprietary funds. The following
represents the City's non-major capital projects funds:

Clayton Development Impact Fees Fund - accounts for projects funded with the Development
Impact Fees.
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City of Clayton

Combining Balance Sheets

Non-Major Governmental Funds

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015

Special Revenue

Stormwater QOakhurst
Treatment Geological
District Hazard
Street Assessment  Stormwater Presiey Abatement
Lighting Fund Assessment  Settiement District
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 153,692 $ - $143,920 $120,583 $ 30,381
Accounts receivable - - 14,235 - -
TOTAL ASSETS $ 153,692 $ - $158,155 $120,583 $ 30,381
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 15,700 $ - $ 3,500 $ - $ 1,184
Other payables - - 815 - -
Due to other funds - 2,550 - - -
Advance from other funds - - - - -
TOTAL LIABILITIES 15,700 2,550 4,315 - 1,184
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred billings 5 - - - -
TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES = - s - R
FUND BALANCE
Restricted 125,957 - 65,651 - 29,173
Committed - - - 120,583 -
Assigned 12,035 - 88,189 - 24
Unassigned - (2,550) - - -
TOTAL FUND BALANCE 137,992 (2,550) 153,840 120,583 29,197
TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCE $ 153,692 $ - $158,155 $120,583 $ 30,381
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City of Clayton

Combining Balance Sheets
Non-Major Governmental Funds
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015

Special Revenue

Clayton Total Other
Measure J Development Downtown Governmental
Fund Grants Impact Fees Gas Tax Park CFD Funds

$ 190,216 $ 334,845 $ 603,109 $ 407,488 $ 244,270 $2,228,504
267,309 14,791 - 31,610 20,000 347,945

$ 457,525 $ 349,636 $ 603,109 $ 439,098 $ 264,270 $ 2,576,449
$ - $ 1,245 $ - $ 10,449 $ 9,535 $ 41,613
- 1,701 - - 702 3,218

- - - - - 2,550

- - 2,580 - - 2,580

- 2,946 2,580 10,449 10,237 49,961

- - B - 20,000 20,000

- - - - 20,000 20,000

- 292,677 - 33,164 228,381 775,003

- - 600,529 - - 721,112

457,525 54,013 - 395,485 5,652 1,012,923

- - - - - (2,550)

457,525 346,690 600,529 428,649 234,033 2,506,488

$ 457,525 $ 349,636 $ 603,109 $ 439,098 $ 264,270 $ 2,576,449
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City of Clayton

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balances

Non-Major Governmental Funds

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015

Special Revenue

Stormwater Oakhurst
Treatment Geological
District Hazard
Street Assessment Stormwater Presley Abatement
Lighting Fund Assessment Settlement District
REVENUES
Special assessments $ 125,991 $ - $ 90,195 $ - $ 36,523
Permits, licenses and fees - - 40,644 - -
Intergovernmental - - - - -
Use of money and property 1,215 - 1,076 1,025 196
Other revenue = - - - -
TOTAL REVENUES 127,206 - 131,915 1,025 36,719
EXPENDITURES
Current
Public works 128,694 - 123,325 - -
Community and economic development - - - - 20,439
Public safety 2 = g - s
Capital Outlay - - - - 18,315
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 128,694 - 123,325 - 38,754
REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES (1,488) - 8,590 1,025 (2,035)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in - - 912 - -
Transfers out (10,568) - (34,112) - (6,635)
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) (10,568) - (33,200) - (6,635)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (12,056) - (24,610) 1,025 (8,670)
FUND BALANCES
Beginning of year 150,048 (2,550) 178,450 119,558 37,867
End of year $ 137,992 $ (2,550) $ 153,840 $ 120,583 $§ 29,197
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City of Clayton

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balances

Non-Major Governmental Funds

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015

Special Revenue

Clayton Total Other
Measure J Development Downtown Governmental
Fund Grants Impact Fees Gas Tax Park CFD Funds
$ - $ - $ - $ 29,730 $ - $ 282,439
- - - - 1,137 41,781
361,586 157,397 - 319,948 120,102 959,033
1,892 2,725 5,187 3,214 2,259 18,789
- - - - 67,000 67,000
363,478 160,122 5,187 352,892 190,498 1,369,042
750 - - 90,747 111,654 455,170
- - 11,185 - - 31,624
- 79,128 - - - 79,128
- 24,798 - - 113,555 156,668
750 103,926 11,185 90,747 225,209 722,590
362,728 56,196 (5,998) 262,145 (34,711) 646,452
- - - - - 912
(4.112) - (103,336) (52,513) (6,716) (217,992)
(4,112) - (103,336) (52,513) (6,716) (217,080)
358,616 56,196 (109,334) 209,632 (41,427) 429,372
98,909 290,494 709,863 219,017 275,460 2,077,116
$§ 457,525 $ 346,690 $ 600,529 § 428,649 § 234,033 $ 2,506,488
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City of Clayton

Required Supplementary Information
Budgetary Comparison Schedule
Street Lighting Special Revenue Fund
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015

REVENUES
Special assessments
Use of money and property

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
Current:
Public works

TOTAL EXPENDITURES
REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers out
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES
AND OTHER FINANCING USES

FUND BALANCES:
Beginning of year

End of year
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Variance from

Final Budget
Favorable
Final Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
$ 125,991 $125,991 $ -
1,880 1,215 (665)
127,871 127,206 (665)
124,196 128,694 (4,498)
124,196 128,694 (4,498)
3,675 (1,488) (5,163)
(10,568) (10,568) -
(10,568) (10,568) -
$ (6,893) (12,056) $ (5,163)
150,048
$137,992



City of Clayton

Required Supplementary Information

Budgetary Comparison Schedule

Stormwater Assessment Special Revenue Fund
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015

REVENUES
Special assessments
Permits, licenses and fees
Intergovernmental
Use of money and property

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
Current:
Public works
Capital Outlay
TOTAL EXPENDITURES
REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers in
Transfers out

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES
AND OTHER FINANCING USES

FUND BALANCES:
Beginning of year

End of year
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Variance from

Final Budget
Favorable
Final Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
$ 82,973 $ 90,195 $ 7,222
40,436 40,644 208
456 - (456)
1,300 1,076 (224)
125,165 131,915 6,750
160,919 123,325 37,594
160,919 123,325 37,594
(35,754) 8,590 44,344
912 912 -
(34,112) (34,112) -
(33,200) (33,200) -
$ (68,954) (24,610) $§ 44344
178,450
$153,840



City of Clayton

Required Supplementary Information
Budgetary Comparison Schedule
Presley Settlement Fund

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015

REVENUES
Use of money and property

TOTAL REVENUES

REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES
AND OTHER FINANCING USES

FUND BALANCES:
Beginning of year

End of year

94

Variance from
Final Budget

Favorable
Final Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
$ 1,360 $§ 1,025 $ (335)
1,360 1,025 (335)
§ 1,360 1,025 $ (335)
119,558
$ 120,583



City of Clayton

Required Supplementary Information

Budgetary Comparison Schedule

Oakhurst Geological Hazard Abatement District Special Revenue Fund
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015

Variance from

Final Budget
Favorable
Final Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
REVENUES

Special assessments $ 36,509 $36,523 $ 14

Use of money and property 400 196 (204)

Other revenue - - -
TOTAL REVENUES 36,909 36,719 (190)
EXPENDITURES

Current:

Community and economic development 20,470 20,439 31

Capital Qutlay 11,700 18,315 (6,615)
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 32,170 38,754 (6,584)
REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES 4,739 (2,035) (6,774)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers out (6,635) (6,635) -
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) (6,635) (6,635) -
REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES
AND OTHER FINANCING USES $ (1,896) (8,670) $  (6,774)
FUND BALANCES:

Beginning of year 37,867

End of year $29,197
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City of Clayton

Required Supplementary Information
Budgetary Comparison Schedule
Measure J Revenue Fund

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015

REVENUES
From other agencies
Use of money and property

TOTAL REVENUES
EXPENDITURES
Current;
Public works
TOTAL EXPENDITURES
REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers in
Transfers out

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES
AND OTHER FINANCING USES

FUND BALANCES:
Beginning of year

End of year
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Variance from

Final Budget
Favorable
Final Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
$ 235,723 $ 361,586 $§ 125863
500 1,892 1,392
236,223 363,478 127,255
1,000 750 250
1,000 750 250
235,223 362,728 127,505
(381,264) (4,112) 377,152
(381,264) (4,112) 377,152
$ (146,041) 358,616 $ 504,657
98,909
s 457525



City of Clayton

Required Supplementary Information
Budgetary Comparison Schedule

Grants Special Revenue Fund
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015

REVENUES
Intergovernmental
Use of money and property
Other revenues

TOTAL REVENUES
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Public safety
Capital outlay

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES
AND OTHER FINANCING USES

FUND BALANCES:
Beginning of year

End of year
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Variance from

Final Budget
Favorable
Final Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
$ 141,325 $157,397 $ 16,072
2,480 2,725 245
143,805 160,122 16,317
103,860 79,128 24,732
33,462 24,798 8,664
137,322 103,926 33,396
$ 6,483 56,196 $ 49,713
290,494
$346,690



City of Clayton

Required Supplementary Information
Budgetary Comparison Schedule
Clayton Development Impact Fees

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015

Variance from
Final Budget

Favorable
Final Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

REVENUES

Use of money and property $§ 8,700 $ 5,187 § (3,513
TOTAL REVENUES 8,700 5,187 (3,513)
EXPENDITURES

Community and economic development - 11,185 (11,185)
TOTAL EXPENDITURES - 11,185 (11,185)
REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES 8,700 (5,998) (14,698)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers in - - -

Transfers out (59,297) (103,336) (44,039)
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) (59,297) (103,336) (44,039)
REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES
AND OTHER FINANCING USES $ (50,597) (109,334) $ (58,737
FUND BALANCES:

Beginning of year 709,863

End of year $ 600,529
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City of Clayton

Required Supplementary Information
Budgetary Comparison Schedule

Gas Tax Special Revenue Fund

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015

REVENUES
Special assessments
From other agencies
Use of money and property

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
Current:
Public works

TOTAL EXPENDITURES
REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers in
Transfers out

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES
AND OTHER FINANCING USES

FUND BALANCES:
Beginning of year

End of year
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Variance from
Final Budget

Favorable

Final Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
$ 26,500 $ 29,730 $ 3,230
292,821 319,948 27,127
600 3,214 2,614
319,921 352,892 32,971
99,706 90,747 8,959
99,706 90,747 8,959
220,215 262,145 41,930
(408,726) (52,513) 356,213
(408,726) (52,513) 356,213
$(188,511) 209,632 $ 398,143

219,017

$ 428,649



City of Clayton

Required Supplementary Information
Budgetary Comparison Schedule

Downtown Park CFD Special Revenue Fund
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015

REVENUES
Special assessments
From other agencies
Permits, licenses and fees

Use of money and property
Other revenue

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
Current:
Public works
Parks and recreation services
Capital outlay
TOTAL EXPENDITURES
REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers out
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING

SOURCES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES
AND OTHER FINANCING USES

FUND BALANCES:
Beginning of year

End of year

Variance from

Final Budget
Favorable
Final Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
$ 120,106 $ - $ (120,106)
- 120,102 120,102
- 1,137 1,137
3,400 2,259 (1,141)
55,000 67,000 12,000
178,506 190,498 11,992
- 111,654 (111,654)
111,857 - 111,857
107,607 113,555 (5,948)
219,464 225,209 (5,745)
(40,958) (34,711) 6,247
(6,716) (6,716) -
(6,716) (6,716) -
§ (47,674) (41,427) $ 6,247
275,460
$234,033
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INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

Internal Service Funds account for the financing of goods or services provided by a department for other
departments on a cost reimbursement basis. Funds included are:

Capital Replacement — This fund accounts for the operation, maintenance, and replacement of City
vehicles and equipment.

Self-Insurance — This fund accounts for the administration of the City’s self-insurance program and
payment of workers’ compensation and liability claims.
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City of Clayton
Combining Balance Sheet
Internal Service Funds

June 30, 2015
Capital Self-Insurance
Replacement Liability Total
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and investments $ 121,058 $ 59,592 $180,650
Noncurrent Assets:
Depreciable assets, net 296,137 - 296,137
TOTAL ASSETS 417,195 59,592 476,787
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable - - -
TOTAL LIABILIITES - - -
NET POSITION
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 296,137 - 296,137
Unrestricted 121,058 59,592 180,650
TOTAL NET POSITION $ 417,195 $ 59,592 $476,787




City of Clayton

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

Internal Service Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015

OPERATING REVENUES

Charges for current services
Other operating income

TOTAL GPERATING REVENUES

OPERATING EXPENSES

General and administrative
Depreciation and amortization

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

Gain on disposal of assets
Investment income (loss)

TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

CHANGE IN NET POSITION

Beginning of fiscal year

End of fiscal year

Capital Self-Insurance
Replacement Liability Total

$ 56672 $ - % 56672
100 5 100
56,772 - 56,772
1,509 15,735 17,244
112,061 : 112,061
113,570 15,735 129,305
(56,798) (15,735) (72,533)
624 - 624
1,016 485 1,501
1,640 485 2,125
(55,158) (15,250) (70,408)
472,353 74,842 547,195

$ 417,195 $ 59,592 $ 476,787




City of Clayton

Combining Statement of Cash Flows
Internal Service Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015

Capital Self-Insurance
Replacement Liability Total
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Cash receipt from customers/otherfunds 56,772 - 56,772
Cash payment to suppliers for good and services (1,509) (15,777) (17,286)
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 55,263 (15,777) 39,486
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Acquisition of fixed assets (63,223) - (63,223)
Net cash provided (used) by capital and related financing activities (63,223) - (63,223)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Interest received on investments 1,016 485 1,501
Gain on sale of assets 624 - 624
Net Cash provided (used) by investing activities 1,640 485 2,125
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (6,320) (15,292) (21,612)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS:
Beginning of fiscal year 127,378 74,884 202,262
End of fiscal year $ 121,058 $ 59,592 $180,650
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET
CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Operating income (loss) (56,798) (15,735) (72,533)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash
provided (used) by operating activities:
Depreciation 112,061 - 112,061
Changes in current assets and liabilities: - -
Accounts payable - (42) (42)
Total Adjustments 112,061 (42) 112,019
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities $ 55263 $ (15777 $ 39,486
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AGENCY FUNDS

Agency Funds are used to account for assets held by the City in a fiduciary capacity or as an agent for
individuals, government entities and others.

Deposits — represents funds held for:
Performance Deposits
Clayton Community Library Foundation Deposits
Clayton Community Gym Donation Deposits
Rental Deposits
Planning Services Deposits
Other Deposits

Clayton Financing Authority - accounts for projects related to the Financing Authority.

Middle School CFD (Debt Service Account — 1990-1) — consists of assessments accumulated to
pay the obligations of the Middle School Community Facilities District on its 1990-1 Bonds.

Clayton Station CFD (Debt Service Account - 1990-2) — consists of assessments accumulated to
pay the obligations of the Clayton Station Community Facilities District on its 1990-2 Bonds.

High Street Bridge — accounts for real property assessments collected to maintain bridges.
Oak Street Bridge — accounts for real property assessments collected to maintain bridges.

Lydia Lane Sewer Assessment — accounts for real property assessments to be collected for
construction of a sewer system.

Oak Street Sewer Assessment — accounts for real property assessments to be collected for
construction of a sewer system.

CFA Clayton Financing Authority 2007 - accounts for the refunding of the Authority's 1997
Special Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds payable from revenues received by the Authority as the
result of payment of debt service on the local obligations of the Middle School CFD 1990-1 Bonds.

Diablo Estates Benefit Assessment — accounts for parcel owner approved real property assessments

collected to maintain certain infrastructure components (including street lighting) for the Diablo
Estates development.

10¢



City of Clayton

Combining Statement of Assets and Liabilities

Agency Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015

Assets:
Cash and investments
Cash with fiscal agent
Investments held in trust
Assessments receivable
Interest receivable
Investment in bonds

Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Other liabilities
Other deposits
Benefit plan obligations
Notes payable
Local obligations payable
Due to bondholders

Total liabilities

Clayton Clayton High

Financing Middle Station: Street Oak Street

Deposits Authority Schoc! CFD CED Bridge Bridge
$ 769,423 $ 699,488 $ 417,351 $ 129,479 $§ 4,884 $ 20,880
- - 3,012,000 121,000 20,275 15,931
$ 769,423 $ 699,488 $ 3,429,351 $ 250,479 $ 25,159 $ 36,811
$ 2,849 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
- 699,488 417,351 129,479 4,884 20,880
766,574 - - - - -
- - - - 20,275 15,931
- - 3,012,000 - - -
- - - 121,000 - -
$§ 769,423 $ 699,488 $3,429,351 $ 250,479 $ 25,159 $ 36,811
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City of Clayton

Combining Statement of Assets and Liabilities, Continued

Agency Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015

CFA-
Clayton Diablo
Lydia Lane QOak Street Financing Estates
Sewer Sewer Authority Benefit June 30,
Assessment Assessment 2007 District Total 2014
$ 73,274 § 3,787 $ 118,212 71,864 2,308,642 $ 2,359,454
12,804 - 458,732 - 471,536 468,827
- - - - - 1,518,019
173,325 119,109 - - 3,461,640 3,891,611
- - 38,000 - 38,000 -
- - 3,012,000 - 3,012,000 3,293,000
$ 259,403 $ 122,896 $3,626,944 71,864 9,291,818 $11,530,911
$ - $ - $ - 4,276 7,125 $ 18,568
86,078 3,787 746,944 67,588 2,176,479 2,269,008
- - - - 766,574 648,705
- - - - - 1,518,019
- 119,109 - - 155,315 185,286
- - - - 3,012,000 3,293,000
173,325 - 2,880,000 - 3,174,325 3,598,325
$ 259,403 $ 122,896 $3,626,944 71,864 9,291,818 $11,530,911
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office location railing address
C R O P P E R 2700 Ygnacio Valley Road, Ste 230 2977 Ygnacio Valley Rd, PMB 460 WWW.Cropperaccountancy.com
Walnut Creek, CA 94598 Walnut Creek, CA 94598

an accountaticy corporation

(925) 932-3860 tel (925) 476-9930 efax

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE
AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the City Council
City of Clayton, California

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of
City of Clayton as of and for the year ended June 30, 2015, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise City of Clayton’s basic financial statements, and have issued our
report thereon dated October 29, 2015.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered City of Clayton’s internal
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of City of Clayton’s internal control. Accordingly,
we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of City of Clayton’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination
of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement
of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with

governance.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
financial reporting that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations,
during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we
consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been

identified.
Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether City of Clayton’s financial statements are free
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material
effect on the determination of financial siatement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance
with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other maiters that are
required to be reported under Government Auditj g-Standards.

professionﬂfw. service. 109




Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly,
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

(appr Acsuntanay Lorprshn

CROPPER ACCOUNTANCY CORPORATION
Walnut Creek, California
October 29, 2015
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ATTACHMENT 2
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CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

October 29, 2015

To the Clayton City Council:

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Clayton (‘the City’) for the year ended June 30,
2015, and have issued our report thereon dated October 29, 2015. Professional standards require that we
provide you with information about our responsibilities under generally accepted auditing standards, as
well as certain information related to the planned scope and timing of our audit. Professional standards
also require that we communicate to you the following information related to our audit.

Our Responsibility under U.S. Generally Accepted Auditing Standards

As stated in our engagement letter, our responsibility, as described by professional standards, is to
express opinions about whether the financial statements prepared by management with your oversight
are fairly presented, in all material respects, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles. Our audit of the financial statements does not relieve you or management of your
responsibilities.

As part of our audit, we considered the internal control of the City. Such considerations were solely for
the purpose of determining our audit procedures and not to provide any assurance concerning such

internal control.

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement, we performed tests of the City’s compliance with certain provision of laws, regulations,
contracts and grants. However, the objective of our tests was not to provide an opinion on compliance
with such provisions.

Other Information in Documents Containing Audited Financial Statements

The auditor’s responsibility for other information in documents containing the entity’s financial
statements and report does not extend beyond the financial information identified in the report, nor does
the auditor have an obligation to perform any procedures to corroborate other information contained in

these documents.

The auditor reserves the right to read and/or review any document containing the entity’s financial
statements. This procedure is deemed prudent to determine that nothing comes to our attention that
causes us to believe that such information, or its manner of presentation, is materially inconsistent with
the information, or manner of its presentation appearing in the financial statements.

professiondl pers«m&z»&h service.
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Significant Audit Findings

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. In accordance
with the terms of our engagement letter, we will advise management about the appropriateness of
accounting policies and their application. The significant accounting policies used by City of Clayton are
described in Note 1 to the financial statements. Effective for the year ended June 30, 2015, the City
implemented GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions — an
Amendment of GASB Statement No. 27, and GASB Statement No. 71, Pension Transition for
Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date — an amendment of GASB Statement No. 68,
during the fiscal year. We noted no transactions entered into by the governmental unit during the year
for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. There are no significant transactions
that have been recognized in the financial statements in a different period than when the transaction

occurred.

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are
based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about
future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the
financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ
significantly from those expected. The most sensitive estimates affecting the financial statements were:

¢ The new pension requirements (GASB 68 and 71) are actuarially determined and have resulted
in reported deferred outflows ($471,130), deferred inflows ($845,472) and a net pension liability
(83,693,394), which are based on various actuarial assumptions. Additional information is found
in Note 10 as well as in the Required Supplementary Information section.

e The Other Post Employment Benefit (OPEB) data in provided in Note 11. The actuarial
assumptions may change, which could revise the annual required contribution (ARC) needed to
amortize the unfunded liability of $428,065.

* Management’s estimates of contingent liabilities related to outstanding lawsuits and claims
against the City, including claims by the State Controller’s Office related to the dissolution of the
former Redevelopment Agency. We evaluated the legal representation letters obtained from the
City’s attorneys to determine that the legal reserves are adequate.

The disclosures in the financial statements are neutral, consistent, and clear. Certain financial statement
disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to financial statement users. The most
sensitive disclosure affecting the financial statements was:

¢ The disclosure of the Pension Plan benefits payable. As disclosed in Note 10 to the financial
statements, the Pension Plan benefits payable calculation is very sensitive to the assumed
discount rate. If the assumed 7.5% rate is not achieved, the Pension Plan benefits payable would

increase significantly.

¢ The disclosure of the Other Post Employment Benefits (OPEB) payable. In Note 11 to the
financial statements, the annual required contribution (ARC) of the City was determined to be
$45,457, the interest on the net OPEB obligation was $3,520 and there was and adjustment to
ARC of ($5,250). Total contributions totaled $32,062 (including $24,902 paid by retirees), which
resulted in an ending net OPEB obligation of $99,656 which was booked as a long term liability
in the financial statements.

Page 2 of 4



Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing
our audit.

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the
audit, other than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management.
Management has corrected all such misstatements. The corrected journal entries are included on the
schedule provided on page 4.

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a financial
accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be
significant to the financial statements or the auditor’s report. We are pleased to report that no such
disagreements arose during the course of our audit.

Management Representations

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management
representation letter dated October 29, 2015.

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting
matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation involves
application of an accounting principle to the governmental unit’s financial statements or a determination
of the type of auditor’s opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards
require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant
facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants.

Other Audit Findings or Issues

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and
auditing standards, with management each year prior to retention as the City’s auditors. However, these
discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a
condition to our retention.

This information is intended solely for the use of the Clayton City Council and management of the City
of Clayton and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Very truly yours,

L -
(oo Aoty Coprnbin

CROPPER ACCOUNTANC
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Client: 13452 - City of Clayton
Engagement:  City of Clayton 2015

Period Ending: 6/30/2015

Trial Balance:  TB 00 - Trial balance
Workpaner: 7B 02 ~ Clayion 2015 AJE Rep

Account Description W/P Ref

Adjusting Journal Entry JE # 9 T02

To accrue remaining SB90 claims received in July of

2015

101-1300-00 Accounts Receivable Accruals 132,553.00

101-2720-00 Deferred Revenues 132,653.00
Total 132,553.00 132,553.00
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ATTACHMENT 3
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CERTIFIED PUBLIZC ACCOUNTANTS

(925) 932-3860 tel (925) 476-9930 efax

To the City Council and City Management
of the City of Clayton

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of the business-type activities of the
City of Clayton (‘the City’) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2015, in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, we considered the City’s internal control
over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the
purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion
on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be significant deficiencies
or material weaknesses and, therefore, there can be no assurance that all such deficiencies have been
identified. However, as discussed below, we identified certain deficiencies in internal control that we

consider to be significant deficiencies.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination
of deficiencies in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement
of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. We
did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.

A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance. We consider the following deficiency in the City’s internal control to be significant

deficiencies:

PRIOR YEAR’s COMMENTS

Data Security

e The City had one server to back up Blackbaud/Financial Edge and another to back up all other City
files. The two servers are seated right next to each other and back up one another, which would

create a nightmarish situation in the event of a disaster.

» We recommended that both servers should be backed up at an offsite location, such as the
cloud.

2015 Status: Implemented
» Servers are now remote and the City is on contract with Blackbaud’s disaster recovery plan.



Other Observations

The following items were observed during our audit and do not rise to the level of a Material
Weakness or a Significant Deficiency:

Segregation of Duties:

Under prudent internal controls there are three key areas that need to be separated: (a) recording in the
general ledger; (b) authorizations; and (c) the reconciliation process.

While the City has implemented many mitigating controls, there is always the risk of management
override relating to recording in the general ledger and authorization, due to the small size of the City
finance department and the cost/benefit constraint.

Recommendation: The City continuously reviews internal control policies and procedures. Mitigating
controls are implemented whenever possible.

e Cash Receipts: Currently, everyone in the administrative offices receives cash and checks from
walk-ins. They all have access to the receipt book and access to where the cash is stored. We
recommend the City take steps to limit the staff responsible for cash and maintain the cash collected

in a lock box or locked cabinet.

Finance Manager Distractions

e The Finance Manager does not currently have a private office or cubicle, which is an unusual
situation for the manager of a City’s Finance Department.

» We believe the Finance Manager position requires an office to reduce unnecessary
distractions and increase the Finance Manager’s ability to remain organized and maintain
confidentiality.

This communication is intended solely for the information and use of management, the City Council,
and others within the organization, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other
than these specified parties.

kezovectan a‘r‘h’d’h.m

CROPPER ACCOUNTANCY CORPORATION
Walnut Creek, California
October 29, 2015



ATTACHMENT 4

City of Clayton

Summary of Potential Uses for FY 2014-15 General Fund Surplus
Presented at Audit Committee Meeting

The following is a summary of potential one-time project costs which may be addressed by
utilizing the City of Clayton's FY 2014-15 General Fund surplus in the current year (FY 2015-16).
Any utilization of this surplus would be incorporated into the current budget year (FY 2015-16)
and are not accompanied by current year revenues, but rather use of excess reserves at 6/ 30/15
arising from said surplus.

Staff requests further direction and input from the Audit Sub-Committee members.

General Fund FY 2014-15 Surplus Per Audited Financial Statements: $ 389,895

Potential One-Time Expenditures:

Estimated
Project Description Cost
F-450 Utility Truck (CERF) 70,000
Maintenance Yard Carport 10,000
Mini-Excavator (on traks) [CERF] 50,000
Paint Library Interior 15,000
Police Carport (City Hall Sideyard) 40,000
Replace Library Carpet 100,000
Replace Wood Street Light Poles 250,000
Restore Outbuildings 80,000
Solar Power Contingency (Clayton Fountain) ?
Update City Noise Element 50,000
Total of Potential One-Time Expenditures (665,000)

Excess of Uses Over Available FY 2014-15 Surplus $ (275,105)




MINUTES Agenda Date: 11-03-2019

CLAYTON FINANCING AUTHORITY
REGULAR MEETING
January 20, 2015

hgenda ttem: Da_¥in

1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL - the meeting was called to order by
President Shuey at 8:29 p.m. in Hoyer Hall of the Clayton Community Library, 6125
Clayton Road. Board of Directors present: President Shuey, Vice President Geller,
Board Members Diaz, Haydon and Pierce. Board of Directors absent: None.

Staff members present: Executive Director Napper, Secretary Brown, and General
Counsel Subramanian.

2. CLOSED SESSION - None.
3. PUBLIC COMMENTS - None.

4. CONSENT CALENDAR - It was moved by Board Member Pierce, seconded
by Board Member Haydon, to approve the Consent Calendar as submitted.
(Passed; 5-0 vote).

(@)  Approved the minutes of the regular meeting of January 6, 2015.
(b)  Approved the Clayton Financing Authority’s Audited Financial Statement for FY
2013-14.

5. ACTION ITEMS - None.

6. BOARD ITEMS — None.

7. ADJOURNMENT- On call by President Shuey the meeting adjourned at 8:30
p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Janet Brown, Secretary
Approved by
Board of Directors, Clayton Financing Authority

David T. Shuey, President
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TO: HONORABLE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
FROM: KEVIN MIZUNO, FINANCE MANAGER, CPA
DATE: November 3, 2015

SUBJECT: AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE CLAYTON FINANCING
AUTHORITY FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

RECOMMENDATION

By minute motion, accept the “unmodified opinion” issued by the independent auditors on the
basic financial statements of the Clayton Financing Authority for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2015.

BACKGRCUND

The Joint Powers Agreement creating the Clayton Financing Authority (CFA) was executed
on December 4, 1990 between the City of Clayton and the Redevelopment Agency of the
City of Clayton. The CFA is authorized to buy or issue bonds and other obligations that are
secured in whole or in part by obligations or revenue sources of the member agencies. In
May of 2007 the CFA issued $5,060,000 in Special Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds (the
2007 Bonds) for the purpose of refunding the CFA’'s 1997 Special Tax Revenue Refunding
Bonds, financing the acquisition and construction of certain public capital improvements, and
to establish a reserve fund for the Bonds. The 2007 Bonds are secured by payments of
debt service received by the CFA as owner of the City of Clayton “Middle School”
Community Facilities District 1990-1 (CFD) Special Tax Bonds, Refunding Series 1997
(Local Obligations).

The Joint Powers Agreement for the CFA meets the criteria of a Special District as defined
by California Government Code section 12463(d)(2). As a special district, Government
Code section 26909 requires that an audit be completed and filed with the SCO within 12
months after the close of the fiscal year(s) under examination.

DISCUSSION
The independent auditors (Cropper Accountancy Com.) issued an “unmodified opinion” of the
CFA's financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015 regarding the statements’
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presentation in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) in all material
respects. An unmodified opinion is a “clean” audit opinion, concluding that as a result of the
independent auditors’ audit procedures it did not identify any material uncorrected departures
from GAAP in the underlying CFA financial statements.

Following the independent audit opinion letter on pages 1 and 2 of the report, the CFA’s basic
financial statements are comprised of two major components: 1) the financial statements, and 2)
the notes to the financial statements. The financial statements section includes a Statement of
Net Position, a Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position, and a
Statement of Cash Flows.

The Statement of Net Position presents information on all of the CFA’s assets and liabilities,
with the difference between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases or
decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of
the CFA is improving or worsening.

The Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position presents information
showing how the CFA’s net position changed during the fiscal year. All changes in net
position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs,
regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus revenues and expenses are reported in
the statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods.

The Statement of Cash Flows presents information about the cash receipts and cash
payments of the CFA during the fiscal year. When used with related disclosures and
information in the other financial statements, the information provided in this statement
should help financial report users assess the CFA’s ability to generate future net cash flows,
its ability to meet its obligations as they become due and its need for external financing. It
also provides insight into the reasons for differences between operating income and
associated cash receipts and payments; and the effects on the CFA'’s financial position of its
cash and its noncash investing, capital and related financing transactions during the period.

The notes to the financial statements provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the financial statements. The notes to the financial
statements can be found on pages 6 through 12 of the report.

The following are some financial highlights included in the report:

* The bulk of the CFA'’s total assets (69%) is the CFA’s ownership of the CFD’s Local
Obligations, which totaled $3,012,000 as of June 30, 2015.

o Cash and cash equivalents, totaling $817,700, made up 18% of total assets. Nearly
85% ($699,488), of CFA cash and cash equivalents pertained to remaining cash
proceeds and accrued interest from the CFA’s sale of real property in October of
2006 (i.e. CVS/Pharmacy land site). The remaining 15% ($118,212) of cash and
cash equivalents is available for annual CFA operational costs and has been used, in
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part, to help systematically reduce the CFD’s annual tax levy through the application
of “levy credits” included in the annual reports approved by the CFD.

¢ Total cash with fiscal agent was $458,732, which made up 10% of total assets.
Nearly 54% ($251,990) of the cash with fiscal agent balance pertained to the 2007
Bonds’ reserve fund held by the fiscal agent (US Bank) and restricted to debt service
at the maturity of the 2007 Bonds. The remaining 46% ($206,743) of cash with fiscal
agent is used to systematically reduce the CFD’s annual tax levy through the
application of “levy credits” included in the annuai reports approved by the CFD.

¢ The 2007 Bonds made up nearly 97% ($2,880,000) of the CFA'’s liabilities at June
30, 2015. The notes further disclose principal payments are due September 2™ of
each year through final maturity in 2022, with interest payments due on March 2™
and September 2™ of each year. In the fiscal year ending June 30, 2015 total
principal and interest paid was $305,000 and $119,495 respectively.

¢ Total net position of the CFA was $1,381,132 at June 30, 2015. Approximately 51%
($681,644) of total net position is restricted to future debt service payments. The
remaining 49% ($699,488) is unrestricted and pertains to the remaining cash
proceeds and accrued interest from the CFA'’s sale of real property in October 20086.
Unrestricted net position is available for capital, operating, or investment purposes at
the discretion of the CFA Board of Directors.

* The CFA has no paid employees nor any administrative charges levied to it by the
City of Clayton for management of the special district.

FISCAL IMPACT
The Board's acceptance of the audited financial statements for the year ended June 30,

2015 does not have any direct fiscal impact on the Clayton Financing Authority.

Respectively submitted,

Kevin Mizuno, CPA &
Finance Manager

Attachment 1 - Clayton Financing Authority Annual Financial Statement Report for the
Year Ended June 30, 2015 (With Auditors’ Report Thereon)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Governing Board of
Clayton Financing Authority
Clayton, California

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Clayton Financing Authority (the
Authority) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2015, and the related notes to the financial statements,
as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or

€ITor.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from

material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial

statemenis.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion. ~

L



Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Authority, as of June 30, 2015, and the respective changes in financial position
and cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information Omitted

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis of the financial statements be presented to supplement the basic financial
statements. Management has omitted this required supplementary information. Such information,
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic
financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. Our opinion on the
basic financial statements is not affected by the missing required supplementary management discussion
and analysis information.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 29,
2015, on our consideration of the Authority’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of
its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Authority’s internal
control over financial reporting and compliance.

CROPPER ACCOUNTANCY CORPORATION

Walnut Creek, California
October 29, 2015



Clayton Financing Authority
Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2015

ASSETS
Restricted investments:
Cash and cash equivaients $ 817,700
Cash with fiscal agent 458,732
Accrued interest receivable 38,000
Investments in local obligations:
Due within one year 296,000
Due after one year 2,716,000
TOTAL ASSETS 4,326,432
LIABILITIES
Accrued interest payable 65,300
Bonds payable
Due within one year 315,000
Due after one year 2,565,000
TOTAL LIABILITIES 2,945,300
NET POSITION
Restricted for debt service 681,644
Unrestricted 699,488

TOTAL NET POSITION

$ 1,381,132

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Clayton Financing Authority
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015

OPERATING REVENUES
Interest income from participating agency $ 116,193
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 116,193
OPERATING EXPENSES
Professional services, including paying agent fees 8,726
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 8,726
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) $ 107,467

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

Interest expense on long-term liabilities (144,026)
Interest and investment income 7,164

TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) (136,862)

CHANGE IN NET POSITION (29,395)
NET POSITION - BEGINNING 1,410,527
NET POSITION - ENDING $ 1,381,132

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Clayton Financing Authority
Statement of Cash Flows
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Principal received from participating agency
Interest received from participating agency
Payments to suppliers of services

Net cash provided by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Principal payments on long-term liabilities
Interest payments on long-term liabilities

Net cash used by capital financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest received on investments
Capital contribution to participating agency

Net cash used by investing activities
Net increase in cash and equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Included in the Statement of Net Position as follows:
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash with fiscal agent

Total cash and equivalents at end of year

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided by
operating activities:

Operating income

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net
cash provided by operating activities:

Change in assets and liabilities:
Decrease in accrued interest receivable
Decrease in loans receivable from participating agency

Net cash provided by operating activities

$ 281,000
148,023

(8,726)
420,297

(305,000)

(119,495)
(424,495)

7,164

7,164

2,966

1,273,466

$ 1,276,432

$ 817,700
458,732

$ 1,276,432

$ 107,467
31,830
281,000

8420207

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Clayton Financing Authority
Notes to Financial Statements
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
A. Reporting Entity

The Clayton Financing Authority (the Authority) was created for the purpose of refunding the
Authority’s 1997 Special Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds (the “1997 Bonds™), finance the
acquisition and construction of certain public capital improvements (the Project), establish a
reserve fund for the 1997 Bonds (funded part in cash and part from a reserve fund surety bond),
and to pay the costs of issuance of the Bonds. The 1997 Bonds were issued to purchase the CFD
1990-1 local obligations, which are recovered by special assessment revenues from CFD 1990-1.
Principal payments are payable on September 2 of each year. Interest payments are payable
semi-annually on March 2 and September 2. The bonds are non-city obligations and are secured
by revenues received by the Authority as the result of the payment of debt service on the CFD
1990-1 local obligations. As of June 30, 2015, the outstanding balance of the non-city bond
obligation was $2,880,000. The Authority meets the criteria set forth in accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America as a fiduciary fund of the City because the
governing body is the same as the City, and the City has fiduciary responsibility for the
Authority.

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City of Clayton’s
Financing Authority. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report, or
requests for additional financial information, should be addressed to the Office of the Finance
Manager, 6000 Heritage Trail, Clayton, California 94517.

B. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

The financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the
accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recorded when earned and expenses
when the liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.

The Authority distinguishes operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services in connection with
Authority's principal ongoing operations. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition
are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses. The principal operating revenue of the
Authority is interest income from investments in local obligations.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the Authority's policy
to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

C. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results could
differ from those estimates.

-6-



Clayton Financing Authority
Notes to Financial Statements
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued

D. Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Authority considers all short-term highly liquid
investments with an original maturity of three months or less, including restricted investments, to be
cash and cash equivalents.

2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS

Cash and cash equivalents and investments as of June 30, 2015, are classified in the
accompanying financial statements as follows:

Statement of Net Position:

Cash and investments $ 817,700
Cash with fiscal agents 458,732
Bonds held in refunding 3,012,000

Total $ 4288432

Cash and investments as of June 30, 2015 consist of the following:

City of Clayton investment pool $ 817,700
Money market mutual funds 458,732
Municipal bonds 3,012,000

Total $ 4,288,432

The Authority reports its investments at fair value. At June 30, 2015, $681,644 of the cash and
cash equivalents were held as reserves for debt service. All policies for investing cash and cash
equivalents are governed by the bond indentures.

This space intentionally left blank.



Clayton Financing Authority
Notes to Financial Statements
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015

2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS, Continued
Disclosures Relating to Interest Rate Risk

Investment of debt proceeds held by bond trustees are governed by provisions of the debt
agreements, rather than the general provisions of the California Government Code or the City's
investment policy. The investments are restricted to securities which will by their terms mature
not later than the date the Agency estimates the monies represented by the particular investment
will be needed for withdrawal from such fund. Monies invested in a reserve account shall be
invested in investment securities which will by their terms mature prior to the date which is the

final maturity date of the bonds.
Remaining Maturity (in Months)

12 Months 13-24 25-36 37-48 49 - 60 More than
Investment Type Totals or Less Months Months Months Months 60 Months

City of Clayton
Investment Pool $ 817,700 $ 817,700 $ - $ -9 -$ -3 -

Held by bond
trustees:

Federal Home
Loan Bank - g - - = - “

Money Market
Mutual Funds 458,732 458,732 - - - - -

Municipal Bonds 3,012,000 296,000 316,000 342,000 362,000 383,000 1,313,000

$ 4288432 $ 1572432 $§ 316,000 $ 342,000 $ 362,000 $ 383,000 $ 1,313,000

Disclosures Relating to Credit Risk

Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the
holder of the investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally
recognized statistical rating organization. Presented below is the minimum rating required by
(where applicable) the California Government Code, the City's investment policy, or debt
agreements, and the actual rating as of fiscal year end for each investment type.

Minimum Exempt from

Investment Type Legal Rating  Disclosure AAA Not Rated
City of Clayton Investment
Pool N/A $ - 3 - $ 817,700
Held by bond trustees:
Money Market Mutual Funds N/A - 458,732
Municipal Bonds N/A - - 3,012,000
Total $ - $ 458,732 $ 3,829,700




Clayton Financing Authority
Notes to Financial Statements
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015

2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS, Continued

Concentration of Credit Risk

The investment policy of the City contains limitations on the amount that can be invested in any
one issuer. There are no investments that represent 5% or more of total City investments.

Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository
financial institution, a government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to
recover collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The custodial credit
risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counter party (e.g. broker-
dealer) to a transaction, a government will not be able to recover the value of its investment or
collateral securities that are in the possession of another party. The California Government Code
and the City's investment policy do not contain legal or policy requirements that would limit the
exposure to custodial credit risk for deposits or investments, other than the following provision
for deposits. The California Government Code requires that a financial institution secure deposits
made by state or local governmental units by pledging securities in an undivided collateral pool
held by a depository regulated under state law (unless so waived by the governmental unit). The
fair value of the pledged securities in the collateral pool must equal at least 110% of the total
amount deposited by the public agencies. California law also allows financial institutions to
secure deposits of governmental entities by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes having a
value of 150% of the secured public deposits.

3. INVESTMENTS IN LOCAL OBLIGATIONS
Middle School Community Facilities District- Original Issue $6,400,000

Middle School Community Facilities District (CFD) Bonds in the principal amount of
$6,400,000 were issued on September 2, 1990 by the Authority under the Mello-Roos
Community Facilities Act of 1982. Principal payments are payable on September 2 of each year.
Interest payments are payable semi-annually on March 2 and September 2. The bonds are
secured solely by special assessment revenue from CFD No. 1990-1. As of June 30, 2015, the
outstanding balance of the bond obligation was $3,012,000.

Changes in investments in local obligations for the period ended June 30, 2015, were as follows:

Investment in CFD No. 1990-1 Bonds at June 30, 2014 $ 3,293,000
Principal payments received September 2, 2014 (281.000)

Investment in CFD No. 1990-1 Bonds at June 30, 2015 $ 3,012,000



Clayton Financing Authority
Notes to Financial Statements
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015

4. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Long-term liabilities consist of the following at June 30, 2015:

Clayton Financing Authority 2007 Special Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds-Original Issue
$5,060,000

Refunding bonds were issued on May 17, 2007 by the Clayton Financing Authority in the
principal amount of $5,060,000 to refund the Authority's 1997 Special Tax Revenue Refunding
Bonds (the "1997 Bonds"), finance the acquisition and construction of certain public capital
improvements (the Project), establish a reserve fund for the Bonds (funded part in cash and part
from a reserve fund surety bond), and to pay the costs of issuance of the Bonds. The 1997 Bonds
were issued to purchase the CFD 1990-1 local obligations, which are recovered by special
assessment revenues from CFD 1990-1. Principal payments are payable on September 2 of each
year. Interest payments are payable semi-annually on March 2 and September 2. The bonds are
non city obligations and are secured by revenues received by the Authority as the result of the
payment of debt service on the CFD 1990-1 Local Obligations. As of June 30, 2015, the
outstanding balance of the non-city bond obligation was $2,880,000.

Principal payments on the bonds are due September 2™ each year through final maturity in 2022.
Interest payments are due on March 2™ and September 2. Total principal and interest
remaining on the bonds is $3,365,046, payable through September 2022. For the current year,
principal and interest paid were $305,000 and $119,496, respectively.

Changes in long-term liabilities for the period ended June 30, 2015, were as follows:

Bonds payable at June 30, 2014 $ 3,185,000
Principal payments paid September 2, 2014 (305,000)
Bonds payable at June 30, 2015 2 000

5. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
Management has evaluated subsequent events through October 29, 2015, the date on which the

financial statements were available to be issued. There are no known material violations of
finance-related legal and contractual provisions.

-10-
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Governing Board of
Clayton Financing Authority
Clayton, California

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the Clayton
Financing Authority (the Authority) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2015, and the related notes to
the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Authority’s basic financial statements, and
have issued our report thereon dated October 29, 2015.

Internal Control Over Financizal Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Authority’s internal
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged

with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material

weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Authority’s financial statements are free
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material
effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express
such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that
are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Coppr Awostonm Coparin

CROPPER ACCOUNTANCY CORPORATION

Walnut Creek, California
October 29, 2015
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